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Her Royal Highness Princess Maha Chakr Sirindhorn personally wisited Thai Stanley on Friday,
August 24, 2018 at 13.00 hrs. The visited areas included the ground floor of the Head Office | the
Safety Dojo Center, the R&D Center and the Lamp 7 Factory. HRH Princess Maha Chakn
Sirindhormn signed her name on an acrylic board and planted a Sirindhorn magnolia (Magnolia
sirindhorniae Noot & Chalermglin) in front of the office building. She also took a group photo with
the Board of Directors, the Executive Board and the Lee-issaranukul Family. While the Board of
Directors and the management donated money and an electric golf cart for her personal use,
respectively, the management also donated an AED device for use in Chitralada Technology

Institute’s attairs.







STANLEY GROUP VISION
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STANLEY SPIRIT

Outshining Light
W shall Blacee our own trail to ri!li;ml futiie by daring to “outshine light,”
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BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY

The boundless pursuit of the Value of Light

We shall contribute broadly to society by explofing the infinite p»nﬁ&ibi]il s of light and bringing its value to humankind.

Business innovation by maximizing our potential as a manufacturer

We shall continually reinvent our processes tgdraw out further value and quility from our business base in manufacturing,

Ensuring the welfare of those who truly support our mission

We shall value those wiit truly support Stanley and endeay %10 ensure their welfare.
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THE FIVE WAYS OF CREATING VALUE WITH L HT
We shall create new benefits to hgmankind by dedicating ourselves bo the Five i:._ ays of Creating Valuwe with Light.

CREATING creating light
RECOGNIZING sensing and recognizing wit igght
NFORMING processing information with light
ENERGIZING harmessing light's energy .
EXPRESSING producing feeling with light
*

GUIDELINES FOR ACTION
CHALLENGE

Alwals challenge vourself with the highest standards and sets out to reach them.

INNOVATE

§ Combine boundless creativity and user understanding to create new value§

COLLABORATE

Share and leverage our diverse tolal know-how to enhance our overall value.

HUMANIZE

B comsiderate of seciety in general and our environment e develop vou humanity,

GLOBALIZE
Respect and understand global diversity.
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TO OUR THE BOARD OF

RECTORS & y HEW PRODUCTS

SHAREHOLOER THE EXECUTIVES

For the year ended Far the year ended Change

HIGHLIGHTS ok
Sales 14,634,621 13,220,446 10.70
Total Revenues 14,907,068 13418320 11.09
Cost of Sales 11.864,535 10,775,580 10.11

Selling and Administrative Expense and other 9=27.798 889,951 425
Profit before income tax 2430915 =.048,547 1B.67
Met Profit [Loss) 1.977.762 1658662 18.24

PN Cial St e e N N

Current Assets 9.033.803 9,290,056 [2.76]
Total Assets 19,254,504 16,838,772 13.67
Current Liabilities 2,883,108 2,066,180 39.54
Taotal Liabilities 3.287.944 2,407,382 36.58
ShareholdersEquity 15,966,559 14,531,380 5988
Financial Ratio _——
Met Profit Margin [%) 13.27 12.36
Return on Equity [ROE) (&) 1297 11.91
Return on Total Asset [ROA] [36) 1093 10.33
Debt to Equity [DE] [time) 0.21 0.17
Price Earning ratio [PE] time 8.80 1067
Current Ratio [time] 213 4.50
Met Profit [Loss] per share 2581 21.65
Far Value a.00 0.00
Book Value per Share 208.37 18965

Met Sales Met Profit Met Profit (Loss) per Share

(Unit - million bah) — et : million bakit) . (Unit - baht) a5 g4

13,220 , 1,607 VESE 20,97 2165 M
11%3’11':"2‘339 5231D'E?£1£2J - & - i'ﬁ? 1,303 4 274 & P 15:1 7.0 -
!‘ l " 1157 L B 1511 M 16858
- M e
7,800
i 1

726 9.48
[
I

2012 203 A4 2015 2016 2047 2048 20189 2002 203 A4 2015 2016 20V E1a e 2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 208 3019
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

1. Economic Overview

The That cconomy in 2018 continued to expand from the previous year, making 2018 a year of
economic stability, 2018 witnessed a slight increase of GDP to 4.1% from 3.9% from a year ago. Yet, this was
the record high rate from 2012 when the GDP rate was the highest at 6.4%. The GDP expansion in 2018 also
witnessed the continued trend of GDP increase since 2015 (at 2.9%%). On a quarterly basis, the GDP in 2018
was 4.8% in Q1 (January to March), 4.6% in Q2 (April to June), 4.0% in Q3 (July to September) and 4.0%
Q4 (October to December).

Ministry of Finance released the GDP growth rate forecast in 2019 at 4.0%. Yet, Q1 export was not
quite cood, a signal that exports for the entire year of 2019 could worsen. As a result, it's expected that
Thailand’s economic expansion is likely to contract to 3.8%.

Growlh Bate of GODP (2012- 2019)

Percentage
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2. Trend of the Automobile Industry

The automotive industry, which we are in, shightly improved, Domestic sales of automobile in 2018
totaled 1,040000 cars (19.5% increase from the previous year ). The production rate also increased to
2,168,000 cars (9.0% increase from the previous year ), a result of better domestic sales of automobiles.

However, based on the quarterly-based production activity, 1t was found that 540,000 units were
produced from January to March; 517 000 units from April to June; 348 000 units from July to September,
and 564 000 units from October to December.

The Federation of Thai Industries (FTI) forecasts that 2,150,000 cars will be produced in 2019 (or
decrease 0.8%). Of this, 1,050,000 will be produced for domestic sales (2.4% increase from the previous
year) and 1,100,000 for export (3.7% increase from the previous year ). As a result, domestic sales of
automobiles are expected to continue supporting the sluggish export of Thai automobiles.

The company cxpects domestic sales of automobiles to continue growing thanks largely to the
government’s policy to continue preparing basic infrastructure and its low-interest loan rate policy. Yet, the

cxport outlook isn’t that rosy due to risks from impacts of a trade war between the US and China.

On the other hand, 1,788,000 units of motorcycle were sold domestically in 2018 (decrease 1.2% from

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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the previous year). About 2,063,000 Completely Built Up (CBU) motorcycles were manufactured in the same
year (increase 0.4% from the previous year),

The FTI forecasts that about 2,140,000 CBU motoreyeles will be manufactured in 2019 (increase
3.7% from the previous year). This is further divided into 1,780,000 units produced for domestic sales

(increase 5.2% from the previous year) and 360,000 units to be destined for export (deerease 3.0% from the
previous vear).

Units Units
JO00000 e— 2500000 ==
2500000 == SO00000 ==
2000000
1 S0O0000 =
1500000 L
1000300 L 1000000 ==
S00000 L SO0
0 i f } } f | vear 0 } f } } f | year
2013 24 2015 204 2007 2018 2013 2004 2005 2004 2007 2018
Automobile Manufacturing Volume (2013-2018) Motoreycle Manufacturing Velume {2013-2018)
{Domestic + Export) (The Federation of Thai Industries)

(Tha Federation of Thai Industries)

3. Our Operation

Based on economic and industrial situations described above, our sales in 2018 rose 10.69% from the
same period a year ago thanks to our move to enhance the way we worked where production efficiency was
upgraded through the SNAP (Stanley New Approach for Higher Productivity) activity and where we
continued to increase quality standards with a goal to reduce waste to zero level, strengthen customer’s
confidence and improve overall operation results through strategic activities to increase performance.

Sales structure

Our 3 core businesses are Auto Bulb products, Automotive Lighting products and Dic & Mold/Design
products,

Sales from the automotive lighting products accounted for 94.15% while those from auto bulb
products and die & mold products encompassed 4.05% and 1.80%, respectively,

Aside from selling dircetly to the market, our auto bulb products were also sold to the automotive
lighting product business to be assembled as part of automotive lamps.

The die & mold products were not only tools for the lamp die & mold process but they were also
distributed to companics within the Stanley Group and other suppliers,

As for our design business, aside from designing our own lamp products, the business also sclls
designs to companics within the Stanley Group

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMF'I‘EIJ‘
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Sale

Amount and proportions of sale structure of each business during 2015 are as follows:

Trait - hMillion Baht

Fiscal year 2018 Fiscal year 2017
(Apr 2018-Mar 2019) (Apr 2017 - Mar 2018) Change
(%)
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion

Auto bulb 59311 4.,05% 592 37 4.48%, 0,12%
Automotive lamp 13,778.34 94.15% 12, 186.60 92.18% 13.06%
Die & mold and Design 263.17 1.80% 441,49 3.34% | (40.39%)
Total 14,634.62 100, 00% 13,220.46 100% 10,69%

« Automotive Bulb and Dhie & Mold not include miernal transier.

Invesiment

Investment in 2018 are as [ollows:

Uit : Million Baln

Fiscal year 2018 Fiscal year 2017
(Apr 2018-Mar 2019) (Apr 2017- Mar 2018) CTEEE
Amount Amount g
Land 127.8 6.09 T1.098.52%
Buildings 817.28 142.58 473.21%
Machines & Equipment 1,829.19 T28.09 151.23%
Molds & Tools 377.57 270.12 39.78%
Others 696 10.27 (32.23%)
Total 3,158.80 1.157.15 172.98%
Employment
Number of employees at the end of 2018 as [ollows :,
Unit : person
Employee as at ending ol Employee as at ending of
2019 2018 Change
Thai employee (male) 1,711 1,590) 121
Thai employee (female) 1,460 1,381 79
Japanese stafT 25 26 (1)
Total 3,196 2,997 199

EANNUAL REPORT 2018




THE BUARD UF

DARECTIRS 8. ! NEW PRODUCTS
THE EXECUTIVES

4. Future Trends

The new government will start managing Thailand’s cconomy and politics in 2019, We expect that the
government’s strategy to continue building infrastructure in order to stimulate public spending will help
stimulating the local economy.

However, the intensifying trade war between the US and China will likely impede our exports
overseas, which could dampen our economy. That’s why we need to elosely monitor the world's cconomy,

The automotive industry continucs to play a pivotal role as a center that distributes automobiles to
markets around the world. In terms of production, competitions with neighboring countrics in Asean are
increasing, and we need to compete in terms of price at the international level.

Regarding product development, we need to increasingly respond to needs in product development
cspecially for Ascan countries. Our customers and other companies in the automotive industrics will also be
required to enhance their development capacity.

While it’s expected that the automobile and motorcycle industries will continue to grow. at present,
there are also needs within the industry to accommodate an emerging trend of electric car production, starting
from hybrid car, and a rapid technological development for driverless cars. The Company must adjust our
position as an automaotive lighting manufacturer by closely watching the trends and re-orienting ourselves to
become a manufacturer with expertise to respond to customers’ needs.

The Company has so far bundled up our intellect and capacity of our people and those of companics
within the group to inercase our competitiveness within the industry. We also enhance our productivity for
long-term sustainability where the SNAP (Stanley New Approach for Higher Productivity) has been
implemented. Technology and products are further developed with a goal to grow and to deliver the most
attractive products to our customers.

We will build up our system relating to Q (Quality), C (Cost) and D ( Delivery) to gain trust from our
customers.

We continue to adhere to our principle where the business is managed with a focus to share profit that
will enable our company to grow in tandem with all stakcholders.

The Company will try our best to pursuc a varcty of measures mentioned above to allocate profits

while taking into account satisfaction of all sharcholders. We wish to express our heartfelt gratitude for every
support we have kindly received so far,

S s et

Mr.Apichart Lee-issaranukul Mr Koichi Nagano
Executive Chairman President

Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr, Apichart Lee-issaranukul
Director
Executive Chairman

Mr. Koichi Magano
Director
President

Mr. Tadao Suzumura
Director

Executive General Manager
Lighting Equipment Division

Mr. Thanong Lee-issaranukul
Director
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Audit Committee
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Independent Director
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1.Mr. Apichart Lee-issaranukul 3.Mr. Tadao Suzumura 2.Mr . Kazunori Nakai
Executive Chairman Executive General Manager Executive General Manager
Executive General Manager Lighting Equipment Division Marketing Division

Administration Division

2.Mr. Koichi Nagano 4 .Mr. Koji Kobayashi 6.Mr. Etsuya Kawashima
President Executive General Manager Executive General Manage
R&D Center Die & Mold Division
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NEW PRODUCTS

Last year, Manufacturers have produced motorcycles and automobiles with new models as follow :

/ Motorcycles

HONDA

ALL NEW
WAVE 110i

HONDA
CLICK 150i

Automobile

MITSUBISHI
TRITON

EANMUAL REPORT 2018
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BREFPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL REPORTS

The Board of Directors of Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited is responsible for the Financial
Statements of the Company which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards in Thailand under the Accounting Act B.E.2543 |, and the financial reporting requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.2535 . The accounting
policies adopted are deemed appropriate and applied consistently with completely and adequate disclosure
of significant information in the notes to the financial statements and information data that appears in the
2018 annual report and this was to ensure transparency and benefits to the shareholders and investors.

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee consists of independent directors to review of
financial statements and the internal control system to ensure that accounting records are accurate |
complete and timely. The views of the Audit Committeg are report in the Audit Committes 's report in the
Company's annual report.

The company ‘s financial statements were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Co.Ltd. , the
company's auditor, During the audit, the Board of Directors supported the auditor with various infarmation
and documents so that the auditor could audit and express its opinions according to the accounting
standards. The auditor's opinions appear in the report of auditor in this annual report.

The Board of Directors is confident of the company's internal contral system that the financial statements of

Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited presents the financial position , the results of operation and
cash flows accurately in all material respects with generally accepted under financial reporting standards.

S s e

( Mr.Apichart Lee-issaranukul) (Mr.Koichi Nagano)
Executive Chairman President

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited was appointed following a
resolution at the Board of Directors Meeting on 29 July 2018, consists of 3 independent directors who have
expertise and also have qualification as required under the MNotification of the Office of Securities and
Exchanges Commission. The Audit Committee duty performed its duties within the scope and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board of Directors which are prescribed in the Audit Committee’s Charter and in line with
the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

In year 2018, the Audit Committee conducted 8 meeting which meeting with the Auditor without
attendance of any management 4 times, the details of attendance of each Audit Committee's member are as

follows,
1.Mr. Krisada Visavateeranon Chairman of Audit Committee attendance 8 out of 8
2 Mr.Chokechai  Tanpoonsinthana  Audit Committee attendance 8 out of 8
3.Mr. Suchart Phisitvanich Audit Committee attendance 8 out of 8

In each meeting was the meeting with auditors, internal auditors and management in accordance with
relevant agendas for consultations on significant matters as well as acknowledgments of performances and
recommendations, including problems and difficulties during performing of duties. The Audit Committee
independently reported, made and opinion and gave recommendation to the Board of Directors of which it can
be summarized as follows:

1. Review the financial report, The Audit Committee considered and reviewed material financial
information of quarter financial statement and annual financial statement of the company for the
yvear 2018 and made inquiries and received clarification from the managements and the auditor
including the acknowledgement of recommendation as per auditing and suggestion of the auditor.
The Audit Committee agreed with the auditors that the financial statements was duly prepared in
all material as aspects in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standard and had disclosing
in sufficient

2. Reviewed the internal control and risk management system, The Audit Committee reviewed and
assess the sufficient of internal control system of the company to ensure that the company had
and appropriate and sufficient internal control for the company business with consideration from
the internal audit report in the company’s significant performances, which it resulted in there was
no weakness or deficiency. In addition the Audit Committee had considered the evaluation result
of internal control in accordance with the guidelines established by SEC. The Audit Committee
had cpinion that the internal controls system sufficient and appropriate and accordance to internal
control framework of COS0. For the risk management, the company has a Risk Management
Committee and responsible party for risk management and determining adequate and appropriate
risk management measures.

3. Reviewed the internal audit system, The Audit Commitiee has considered the scope of work,

duties and responsibilities, independent of the Internal Audit Department and consider to
approving the annual internal audit plan. The Audit Committee has opinion that the company has
a sufficient and appropriate internal audit system,

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

4. Review compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Audit Committee reviewed the
operation of the company through the audit of the intemal audit unit lo ensure thal the operation

of the company in accordance with the laws concerning securities and exchange, the Stock

Exchange of Thailand's regulations and relevant laws in connection with the company's business.
The Audit Committee opined that company had internal control on the compliance with relevant
laws and regulations in sufficient and effectiveness.

5. Review related party transaction and conflict of interest. The Audit Committee considered related
party transaction or transactions with conflict of interest lo comply with laws and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand's regulations, which the Audit Commillee opined that the company entered
into related party transactions in accordance with general trading condition and reasonable price
as entry into the same transaction with general person and for the highest benefits of the
company's business. In addilion, the company fully complied wilh policy and disclosed
information pursuant 1o the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

6. Consider to nomination appointment and determination of the Auditor's remuneration, The Audit

Committee considered to nominate, appoint and determine the Auditors remuneration from
qualification, quality of audit tasks, independence in performing, knowledge and ability in
profession. For the Auditor's remuneration the Audit Commiltee considered the suitability and
scope of responsibility of the auditor,
The Audit Committee considered to appointing Miss Varaporn Vorathitikul, Certified Public
Accountant No. 4474 and/or Mr. Chaisiri  Ruangritchai, Certified Public Accountant No. 4526
and/or Mr. Vichien Khingmontri, Cerlified Public Accountant No. 3977 in the name of the
PricewaterhouseCoopears ABAS Co,, Ltd. as the Company's auditors for fiscal year 2019 and to
delermine the appropriate remuneration for proposing the Board of Direclor to subsequently
propose it to the shareholders for approval.

7. Review the Audit Committee Charter, The Audit Committee meeting approved the amendment of
the Audit Committee Charter o addition of the self-assessment of the Audil Committee In order 1o
comply with the principles of good corporate governance of listed companies.

To summanze in 2018, the Audil Commiltee performed ils duties wilh prudent and independent in
giving opinions and advices for the highest benefit of the company and also performed its duties in
accordance with the Audit Committee charter and assignments from the Board of Directors in full of which the
Audit Committee opinioned that the company had compliance system and intemal control at the sufficient and
appropriate level for the company's business including the company conduct the business with good
governance to ensure that the preparation of financial information fully and duly presented facts in material
part in compliance with the general accounting standard, disclosed of information to various regulatory
agencies comectly, performed duties in compliance with the Good Corporate Govemance principles with

adequacy, transparency and reliability.

ﬁ/{gm a_ (/iﬂ.mut

(Mr. Krisada Visavateeranon)

Chairman of the Audit Committee

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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INDEPENDENT

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

My opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements in which the equity method Is applied and the separate financial statements
of Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited {the Company) present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial
position in which the equity method is applied and the separate financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2018,
and its financial perfformance in which the equity method is applied and the separate financial performance and its
cash flows in which the equity method is applied and the separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

What | have audited

The Company’s financial statements comprise:

« the statement of financial position in which the equity method is applied and the separate statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019;

¢ the statement of income in which the equity method is applied and the separate statement of income for the
year then ended,

= the statement of comprehensive income in which the equity method is applied and the separate statement of
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

» the statement of changes in eqguity in which the equity method is applied and the separate statement of
changes in equilty for the year then ended;

¢ the statement of cash flows in which the equity method is applied and the separate statement of cash flows for
the year then ended; and

+ the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my
report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Professions under the
Royal Patronage of his Majesty the King's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilites
in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the
financial statements of the current period. | determine one key audit matter: Valuation of inventories. The matter
was addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming my opinion thereon,
and | do not provide a separate opinion on the matter,




INDEPENDENT

Key audit matter

How my audit addressed the key audit mait'u_r

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 26 (accounting policies) and nofe 9
(inventones).

The valuation of irventories is an area of focus
because imventories are a significant part of the total
assets. The allowances for cbsclete and slow-moving
inventories are subject to management’s judgement and
expenence, who may intentionally or unintentionally be
biased, This could affect the appropriateness of the
valuation of inventory.

Assessing the allowances for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories requires a degree of estimation using
judgement. Management based their assessment on
their expenence and historical data and set a 100%
allowance for inventones with no movement over 12
months. In addition, the management assessed the
appropriate level of the allowance by taking into account
the histonical and recent sales experience, the aging of
inventories and other faclors that cause slow-moving
inventories to deteriprate and become obsolete.

Other information

| updated my understanding of the assumptions used to
develop the allowances for chsolete and slow-maoving
inventories and determined that the accounting policies
are consistent with the prior years.

| assessed whether the assumptlions management used
to develop the allowances for obsolete and slow-moving
inventories were reasonable by considering historical data
and prior years’ experience including key inventory ratios,
| also challenged whether the specific periods that
management had assumed were appropriate enough to be
used to determine the valuation of inventary.

| tested the reliability of the inventory aging report that
was used to assess the valuation of inventory by tracing
the last movement date of the inventory aging report to the
supporting documents to check whether inventonias were
assigned to the comect aging category by the system.

| tested the mathematical accuracy of the allowances of the
inventory balance that were derived from management's
assumptions. | found no variances from performing this work.

| also assessed whether any cbsolete and slow-moving
inventories were omitted from the detailed analysis. | did
this by examining the completeness of the inventory aging
analysis and tracing information oblained during inventory
counts, to check that allowance for all inventories with no
movement over 12 months in the inventory aging
analysis were fully recognised. | also verified that the
obsolete inventories found during inventory count at the
year-end were appropriately set the allowance for,

=ing the above procedures, | considered that management's
assumptions were properly used lo estimate. Also, the
estimation of the allowances for obsolete and slow-mowving

inventones was recognised appropriately.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon. The annual report
is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | will not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be maternally

misstated.

When | read the annual report, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to

communicate the matter to the audit commities,

AMNUAL REPORT 2018



BTATEMENTS

OF CASH FLOWS

INDEPENDENT

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with TFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis
of accounting unless the directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibiliies for oversesing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. | also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a maternal misstaternent
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the overnde of internal control.

+  Dbtain an understanding of internal conftrel relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to conlinue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



INDEPENDENT

| communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide the audit commitiee with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on my independencs, and where applicable, relaled safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, | determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these
matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

Wﬂ»{.f—'

Varaporn Vorathitikul

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4474
Bangkok

17 May 2019
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Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2018

Financial statements in which
the equity method is applied

The Company only

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,671,996.877 2012032313 1671996877 2012032313
Short-term investments held to maturity 7 3,625,000,000 4,212450217 3,625,000,000 4,212450217
Trade and other accounts receivable, net a8 2549177679 2347 8048952 2548177 679 2347 B804 852
Inventories, net 9 1,090,780,580 674,727 701 1,099,780,589 674,727,701
Current portion of loans to employees 10 41,877,305 25,348,038 41 877,305 25,348,038
Other current assets 45 970,733 17,692,303 45 970,733 17,692,303
Total current assets 9,033,803,183  9,200,055524 9033803183 9,290,055524
Non-current assets
Loans to employees 10 24,920,939 10,806,651 34,920,939 10,806,651
Investment in an associate 11 1.357.930.008  1,131.686,653 54,044 189 54,044,189
Investment in a joint venture 12 22.165,315 22 706,618 3,132,500 3,132,500
Long-term investmeants, net 13 112,401,215 113,201,215 112,401,215 113,201,215
Property, plant and equipment, net 14 7703011731 5564806688 7703011731 5564 806688
Intangible assets, net 15 974 757,302 75,113,671 a74 757,302 775113671
Deferred tax assets, net 186 - - 94 132282 a7 036,833
Cther non-current assets, net 15,514,088 30,324 712 15,514,080 30,324 712
Total non-current assets 10,220,700,600 7,648716,208 80991914257 6,638 536,459
Total assets

19,254,503,783

16.938,771,732

18,025,717 440

15,928,591 983

Thas s, b thee Enoncial simament o0 poge 29 10 61
are an inegral pat ol these finoncal sakments,
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Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Statements of Financial Position
Az at 31 March 2019

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
MNotes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Liakilities and equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable - other companies 601,416,601 o914 745 721 601,416,601 014 745,721
- related parties 28 549 860 146 498 282 289 540 860, 148 408 282 289
Other accounts payable - other companies 1,004 252 283 322204 024 1,004, 252 283 322 204 024
- related parties 28 169,764 056 223210120 169,764,058 223 210,120
Accrued corporate income tax 28 376,783 181,649 546 218,376,783 181,649 546
Accrued expenses 17 338 438 086 326,088 616 3389 438 088 326,088 616
Total current liabilities 2883107955 2066180316 2883107955 2 066,180,316
Maon-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities, net 16 170,451 435 132,406 483 - -
Provision for post-employment benefits 18 234 385 053 208,806 352 234 385053 208,805,352
Total non-current liabilities 404 836 488 341,211 835 234 385 053 208,805,352
Total liabilities 3,287 944 443 2407 392151 3117483 008 2 274 D85 668
Equity
Share capital 19
Authonsed share capital
76,625,000 ordinary shares, par value
of Baht & each 383,125,000 382,125 000 383,125,000 383,125,000
Issued and pard-up share capital
¥6,625,000 ordinary shares, par value
of Baht 5 each 383,125,000 383,125,000 383,125,000 383,125,000
Pramium on share capital 19 504 250,000 504,250 000 504,250,000 504,250,000
Retained earnings
Appropriated
- Legal resarve 21 38,312,500 38,312,500 38,312 500 38,312 500
Unappropriated 15,229,792 248 13,788,404 424 13979,256,932 12,723,098,815
Cther components of equity (188,920,408) (182,712,343) 3,280,000 3,920,000
Total equity 16,966 559 340 14.531,379.581 14,908,224 432 13,653 606,315
Total liabilities and equity 19,254 503,783 16,93B.771.732 18025717 440 15928591 983

Financial statements in which
the equity method is applied

The Company only

Tie ncsbees i e femrsiad sdcstesnen®s an P e i
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Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited
Statements of Income

For the year endad 31 March 2019

BTATEMENTS

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied The Company only

2019 2018 2019 2018

Motes Baht Baht Baht Baht

Revenues from sales and services 5, 26.28 14634621280 13220445698 14634621208 13220445698

Cost of sales and services

(11,864,534,640)

(10,775,579,608)

(11,864,534 640)

(10,775,579,608)

Gross profit 2 770,086,650 2,444 866,000 2,770,086,650 2 444 866,090
Other income

- Dividend income 11.12,13 71.979.332 10,303,166 155.496,731 892,815,468

- Gain on exchange rales, net 21,236,295 19,754 392 21,238,205 19,754 392

- Interast income 71,137,511 60 486,678 71,137,511 69,486,678

- Others 22 108,091,969 90 330,130 108,091,960 99,330,130
Profit before expenses 3,042 533,766 2.643,740,456 3,126,051,165 2726252778
Selling expenses (582,126,700) (539,043,028) (582,126,700) (530,043,028)
Administrative expenses (345,671.284) (350,907 911) (345 671.294) (350,907 911)
Total expenses (927,797 904) (BB0, 950, 939) (927,797 994) (BE9,950 939)
Operating profit 23 2,114 735,772 1,753,789,517 2,198.253171 1,836,301,839
Share of profit from investments

in an associate and a joint venture 11, 12 316,179,533 294 757,654 . -
Profit before income tax 2 430,815,305 2 048,547 171 2,198,253, 171 1,636,301 839
Income tax 24 (453,153,181) {388,885 ,568) (406,620,754) (347,436, 502)
Net profit for the year 1877.762,124 1,658,661,603 1,791,632 417 1,488,865,337
Basic earnings per share 25
Met profit for the year 25.81 21.65 23.38 19.43

Thas s, b thee Enoncial simtament, o0 poge 29 10 61
are an inegral pat ol these finoncal sakments,




Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Statements of Comprenensive
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied The Company only
2018 2018 2019 2018
Mote Baht Baht Baht Baht
Net profit for the year 1,977,762,124 1,658,661,603 1.,791,632417 1,488,865,337
Other comprehensive expenses
for the year after tax:
Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
LInrealised loss on change in fair value
of available-for-sale investment 24 (640,000) (768,000) (640,000) (768,000)
Exchange differences relating fo investments
in an associate and a joint venture 24 {5,568,065) {84 B67 476) - -
Other comprehensive expenses
for the year - net of tax 24 (6,208,065) (85,635 476) (640,000 (768,000
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,971,554,060 1573,026127 1,790,992 417 1,488,097,337

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Statements of cash flows
For the year endad 31 March 2019

ETATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

The Company anly

2019 2018 2013 2018
Motes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before income tax for the vear 2.430.915,305 2,048 54T 171 2,188 253,171 1,636,301,838
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income
tax for the year to net cash provided by operalions:
- Depreciation 14 1,020,563,009 1.051,782,513 1,020,563 009 1,051,762.513
- Amertisation 15 228,988,633 214 489 984 228 988 633 214,489 984
= Interest income (71,137,511} (69, 486,678) (71,137 511) (68 486 678)
- Share of profit from invesimenis in an associate
ard a jolnt venture 11,12 (316,179,533) (294 757 654) - -
= Dividend income
- Investmenis in an associate and a joint venture 11, 12 - - (83,517,399 {82,512,322)
- Long-term investments 13 (71,979,332) (10,303, 166) (71.979.332) (10,303,166)
- Zain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment, net 22 (4,118,553} (4.184,100) (4.118,553) (4,184,100}
- Reversal of allowance for doubtful account 2 (3,413,073) {400,227 (3.413.075) (400,327}
- Revearsal of allowance far cbsalate and
slow moving inventories and net realisable
value lower than cost of inventories ] (2,548 579) (21,802,363) (2.548,573) (21,802 363)
- Corporate income tax refund offset against
withholding tax on dividend and surcharge - 16,882 357 - 16,882 357
- Pravision for corporate income tax 30 - 17,628,080 - 17,628,080
= Provision for post-employment benefits ig 28,844 046 26,616,720 28,544 046 26,616,720
- Unrealised gain on exchange rates, nat (791 ,567) (467 965) (¥91,567) (467 965)
—ash flows before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 3,239,142 843 2,974 544 582 3,229,142 843 2,974 544 582
Changes in operating assets and liabilties
- Trade and other accounts receivable (202,338,308) (296,816,174) {202,338,308) {296,916,174)
- Inventories (422,504,309) 66,811,679 {422,504 309) 68,811,879
- Other current assels (28,278 ,430) (9.879,222) (28,278,430) (9,879,222
- Cash receved from corporate income tax refund = 18,922,011 = 18,822,011
- Other non-current assets 14,880,623 2,146,718 14,880 623 2145718
- Trade accounts pavable - other companies 86 670,880 57,295 867 26,670,880 a7, 295,867
- Trade accounts payable - related parties 51,577 857 74,691,957 51,577 B57 74,691,957
- Qther accounts payable - other companies 117,085 401 45,984 089 117,088,401 45,984,589
- Other accounts payable - related parties [1,745.524) 27,893 B0S (1,745,524) 27,883,805
-« Accrued expenses 13,349 470 48,614,813 13,349,470 48,614,813
- Payment for post-employment benefit obligation 18 (3,264, 345) [2.142,105) (3,264 345) (2,142,103}
Cash generated from cperations 2.864.579.158 3.009 969 120 2,864 579,158 3,009,969, 120
Interest raceived 16,019,633 15,590,920 16,019,633 15,590,920
Income tax paid (376,828,976) {292 B61,955) (376,828 976) (202 861,955)
Met cash recaived from operating aclivities 2,503,769 B15 2,732 698 085 2.503,769.815 2, 732,698,085

Thas s, b thee Enoncial simtament, o0 poge 29 10 61
are an inegral pat ol these finoncal sakments,




Thai Stanlay Electric Public Company Limitad

Statements of cash flows
For the year endad 31 March 2019

Cash flows from investing activities:

Loans made to employees

Loans repayments fram employees

Purchases of properly, plant and eguipment

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and eguipment

Interast received on shorl-term investments
held to maturity

Dividends received
= Investments in an associate and a joint veniure
- Long-term invesiments

Purchases of intangible assels

Cash receipls from shor-term invesimenis
held to maturity

Cash payment an shori-term investmenis
held to maturity

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activity:
Dividends paid

Met cash used in financing activity

i TR S

Iird
L bl HLERYSS

Financial stalements in which

the equity method is applied

The Company only

Net increase [decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effecis of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalenis at end of the year

Non-cash transactions:

Cutstanding liabilities arisen from purchases
of plant, equipment and intangible assets

Cutstanding liabilities arisen from purchase of
plant and equipment from related parties

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

2019 2018 2019 2018

Motes Baht Bafkt Baht Bafkut
10 (81.931,308) (329,854) (51.931,308) (329,854)
10 41,287,751 34,041,648 41 287,751 34,841 648
(2,647,383,944) (962,220,796} (2,647,383,944) (962,220,796)
4,153,763 4,865,975 4,153,763 4,865,975

59,498,534 55,432 057 50,496,534 £5,432,057

11,12 83,517,309 82,512,322 83,517,399 82,512,322
13 71,079,332 10,303,166 71,979,332 10,303,166
(426,792,264)  (273,682,350)  (426.792,264)  (273,682,350)

7 10.5647,000,000  £.954.000,000 10.647,000.000  8.954.000,000
7 (10,059,549783) (9,320,466,305) (10,059,549 783) (9,320 466,305)
(2,308,222 518)  (1.423,644,137) (2.308.222,518)  (1,423,644,137)

20 (536.374,300)  (383,124,500)  (536.374,300)  (383,124.500)
(536,374,300) (383,124,500) (536,374,300) (383,124,500)
(340,827,003) 925020448 (340,827,003 025,920 443
2012032313 1085634900  2.092032.313  1.085634.900

791,567 467 965 791,567 467 965

1671996877 2012032313 1671996877  2.012.032.313

744,347 600 179,387,742 744 347 600 179,387,742
13,955,447 65,655,987 13,955,447 65,655,087

Thie nctes b e fioancial skshements, an page 29 16 61
ot an {nfegpal part of thesa Enoncial sicements,
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Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year endad 31 March 2019

1

2.1

2.2

Thas s, b thee Enoncial simtament, o0 poge 29 10 61
are an inegral pat ol these finoncal sakments,

General information

Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited (the "Company”) is a public imited company, incorporaled in
Thailand. The address of its registered office is 29/3 Moo 1 Bangpoon-Rungsit Road, Banklang, Amphur
Muang, Pathumthanee, Thailand 12000, The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand,

The principal business operation of the Company is the manufaciure and sales of automotive bulbs, lighting
aquipment, molds & dies and product designs.

These financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of directors on 17 May 2018,
Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai generally accepted accounting prnciples
under the Accounting Act BE. 2543, being those Thai Accounting Standards issved under the Accounting
Professions Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except the measurement of
available-for-sale investmenl as explained in the relevant accounting policies,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting principles requires the
use of certain crtical accounting estimates. |t also requires management o exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the enlily's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexily, or areas
where assumplons and estmates are signihcant to the inancial statements are disclosed in MNote 3.

Comparative figures have been reclassified o conferm with changes in classification in the current year.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial statements that
are in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages,
the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.

Revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations

221 Revised financial reporting standards sre effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
which have significant changes and are relevant to the Company:

TAS 7 (revised 2017) Statement of Cash Flows
TAS 12 (revised 2017) Income Taxes
TFRS 12 (revised 2017) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

TAS T (revised 2017). the amendmenlts require additional disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities. This includes changes ansing from cash and non-cash.

TAS 12 (revised 2017), the amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an assel is
measured at fair value and that fair value is below the assat's tax base. Specifically, the amendments
confirm that:

- A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset is less than its tax base at
the end of the reporting period.

- An entity can assume that it will recover an amount higher than the carrying amount of an asset lo
estimate its future taxable profit.

- Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular types of deferred tax
assels can be recovered, the recoverability of the defemed tax assets can only be assesszed in
combination with other deferred tax assets of the same type,

- Tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deferred lax assels are excluded from the estimated
future taxable profits,

TFRS 12 (revised 2017), the amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements of TFRS 12 apply to
interests in entities that are classified as held for sale in the scope of TFRS & (revised 2017), except for
the summarnised financial information.

The management assessed and considered that the above revised standards do not have a significant
impact on the Company.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED




FOTES TO
THE FEAMCLAL
STATEAMENTS

Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year endad 31 March 2019

2

2.2

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

Revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations (Cont'd)
2.22 New and revised financial reporting standards and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective.

2221 The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued new standard, TFRS 15 Revenue from

Caontracts with Customers. This standard will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Company has not early adopted this standard.

TFRS 15 provides the requirements for the recognition of revenue. This standard will supersede
the following standards and interpretations:

TAS 11 (revised 2017) Construction Contracts

TAS 18 (revised 2017) Revenue

TSIC 31 (revised 2017) Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
TFRIC 13 (revised 2017) Customer Loyalty Programmes

TFRIC 15 (revised 2017) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estale

TFRIC 18 (revised 2017) Transfers of Assets from Customers

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a goods
or service transfers to a customer - so the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks
and rewards.

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

Step 1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

Stap 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price o the performance obligations in the confract
otep 2. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Key changes to current practice are:

= Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognised, and any
discounts or rebates on the contract price must generally be allocated to the separate
alements

= Revenue may be recognised earlier than under current standards if the consideration varies
for any reasons (such as for incentives, rebates, performance fees, royalties, success of an
outcome ele) - minimum amounts must be recognised if they are not at significant risk of
reversal

= The point at which revenue is able fo be recognised may shift: some revenue which is
currently recognised at a point in time at the end of a contract may have fo be recognised
over the contract term and vice versa

=  There are new specific rules on licenses, warranties, non-refundable upfront fees and,
consignment arrangements

=  As with any new slandard, there are also increased disclosures.

Entities will have a choice to apply this standard retrospectively in accordance with TAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, subject to the expedients or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earmnings of the annual reporting penod that includes the date of initial application with
additional disclosures.

The management is currently assessing the impact of initial adoption of this standard.

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The Company intends to
adopt the standard using the modified refrospective approach which means that the cumulative
impact of the adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 Apnl 2019 and that
comparatives will nol be restated.
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2

2.2

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

Revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations (Cont'd)

2.22 New and revised financial reporting standards and interpretations which have been issued bul not yet effective.

(Cont'd)

2222

2223

Revised financial reporting interpretation will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2012 and is relevant to the Company. The Company has not yet adopted this
interpretation.

TFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transaclions and Advance Consideration

TFRIC 22 provides guidance for determining the exchange rate to be used on the initial recognition of
a related asset, expense or income where an entity pays or receives an advance consideration in a
foreign currency. The interpretation requires an entity to use the exchange rate at the date on which
an entity recognises the non-monetary assets, such as prepayments and advances, or non-maonetary
liability, such as deferred income ansing from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
advance payments or receipts of payments, the exchange rate is to be used on the date when each
non-monetary asset or liability is recognised.

MNew financial reporting standards and interprefations will become effective for annual perods
beqginning on or after 1 January 2020 and are relevant to the Company. The Company has not
vet adopted these standards.

22231 The group of financial reporting standards related to financial instruments comprise
accounting standards, financial reporting standards and interpretations as shown below.
The early application is permitted only for the penod beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

TERS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TERS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Invesiment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instrumeants

The above new standards and interpretations will supersede the following standards:

TAS 101 Bad and Doubtful Debts

TAS 103 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Bank and Similar Financial
Institutions

TAS 104 Accounting for Troubled Debt Restructuring

TAS 105 Accounting for Investment in Debls and Equily Securties

TAS 106 Accounting for Investment Companies

TAS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, provides the requirements for the
presentation of financial instruments as liabilities or equity and for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilties. It applies to the classification of financial instruments,
from the perspective of the issuer, into financial assets, financial liabilities and equity
instruments; the classification of related interest, dividends, losses and gains; and the
circumstances in which financial assets and financial liabilities should be offset.

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures, provides the requirements for the disclosure
that are intended to enable users to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for
an entity's financial position and performance, and to understand the nature and extent of
risks arising from those financial instruments o which the enlity is exposed during the
period and at the end of the reporting period, and how the entity manages those risks.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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2.2

Accounting policies {Cont'd)

Revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations (Cont'd)

2.22 New and revised financial reporting standards and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective.

(Cont'd)

2223 MNew financial reporting standards and interpretations will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and are relevant to the Company. The Company has not
yet adopted these standards. (Cont'd)

22231 The group of financial reporting standards related to financial instruments comprise

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

accounting standards, financial reporing standards and interpretations as shown below,
The early applicaton is pemitted only for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
(Cont'd)

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments, establishes principles for the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilites, impairment requirement and
hedge accounting as follows:

Classification and measurament:

- The classification and measurement of debt instrument financial assets has three
classification categories, which are amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss
and fair value through other comprehensive income. Classification of debt assets
will be driven by the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and
contractual cash flows characternistics of the financial assets.

- Equity instrument financial assets shall be measured at fair value through profit or
loss. An entity can make an imevocable election to recognise the fair value change
in other comprehensive income without subsequent recycling to profit or loss.

- Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost. An entity can
choose lo measure a liability at fair value through profit or loss when the conditions
are met.

- Derivatives are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The impairment requirements relating to the accounling for an enlity's expected
credit losses on its financial azszets measured at amortised cost, investments in
debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
lease receivables, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. It is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. The entity always accounts for expected credit losses which invalves
a three stage approach. The stage dictates how the enlity measures impairment
losses and applies the effective interest rate method. Except for trade receivables
and contractual assets which apply in TFRS 15 and are no significant financial
components and lease receivables, they are permitted to measure by simplified
approach for credit impaired consideration.

The ohjective of hedge accounting is to represent, in the financial statements, the
effect of an entity’s risk management activities that use financial instruments to
manage exposures arising from parficular risks that could affect profit or loss
(or other comprehensive income, in the case of investments in equity instruments
for which an entity has elected to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income). This approach aims to convey the context of hedging
instruments for which hedge accounting is applied in order to allow insight into
their purpose and effect.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 Revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations (Cont'd)

2.2.2 New and revised financial reporting standards and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective.

(Cont'd)

2.2.23 New financial reporting standards and interpretations will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and are relevant to the Company. The Company has not
yet adopted these standards. (Cont'd)

22231

22232

The group of financial reporting standards related to financial instruments comprise
accounting standards, financial reporting standards and interpretations as shown below.
The early application is pemmitted only for the penod beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
{Cont'd)

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation, clarifies the accounting
treatment in respect of net investment hedging, provides guidance on identifying the
foreign currency nsks that qualify as a hedged risk. Clanfying that hedging
instruments that are hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation may be held
anywhere in the group not only by the parent. This includes the guidance on how an
entity should determine the amount to be reclassified from equity to profit or loss for
both the hedging instrument and the hedged item.

TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments, provides the
requirements for accounting treatment when the entity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of a financial liakility. The equity instruments issued
shall be measured at fair value. The entity shall remove a financial liability (or part of a
financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is extinguished in
accordance with TFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
ability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished and the fair value of equily instruments
issued shall be recognised in profit or loss.

The management is cumently assessing the impact of initial adoption of these standards
TFRS 18 Leases, the earlier application is permitted for entities that apply TFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
this Standard.

The new standard will supersede the following standards and interpretations:

TAS 17 Leases

TFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

T3IC 15 Operating leases - Incentives

T3IC 27 Evaluating the substance of fransactions in the legal form of a lease

TFRS 16 Leases, a lessee shall recognise a nght-of-use asset and a lease liability for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. A lessee is required fo recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right fo
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 Revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations (Cont'd)

2.2.2 Mew and revised finandal reporting standards and infempretations which have been issued but not yel effective.

(Cont'd)

2223 New financial reporfing standards and interpretations will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and are relevant to the Company. The Company has not
yet adopted these standards. (Cont'd)

22232 TFRS 16 Leases, the earlier application is permitted for entities that apply TFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
this Standard. (Cont'd)

Key changes to current practice are;

- The standard removes the current distinction between operafing and financing leases
and requires recognition of an asset (the nght to use the leased tem) and a financial
liahility to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemplion exists for
short-term and low-value leases,

- The total expense is typically higher in the earlier yvears of a lease and lower in later
years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced with interest and depreciation.

- Dperating cash fiows will be higher as cash payments for the principal portion of the
lease liability are classified within financing activities. Only the part of the payments that
reflects interest can continue to be presented as operating cash flows.

- The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may anse as
a result of the new guidance on the definition of a lease, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
pernod of ime in exchange for consideration.

Entities will have a choice to apply this standard retrospectively in accordance with
TAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changas in Accounting Estimates and Emors, subject to the
expedients or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained eamings of the annual reporling peried that incudes the
date of initial application with additional disclosures,

The management is currently assessing the impact of initial adoption of this standard.

2.3  Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic enviranment in which the enlity operales (functional currency). The financial statemenis
are presanted in Thai Baht, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactions are franslated into the functional curmency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item 15 recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
compaonent of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely. when a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit and loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in profit and loss.

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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2

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shori-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less which are not used as collateral.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recognised initially at original invoice amount and subsequently measured at the
remaining ameount less allowance for doubtiul receivables based on a review of all cutstanding amounis at the year
end., The amount of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the amount
expected to be collectible, Bad debts are recognised in the statement of income as part of administrative expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined by the average method.
The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the
inventory, such as import duties and transportation charge, less all atinbutable discounts and rebates, The cost
of finished goods and work in process comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and related
production overheads which are allocated based on normal capacity. Net realisable value is the estimate of the
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Allowance is
made, where necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.

Investments in associate and joint arrangement

(1)  Associate
An associate s an entity over which the Company has significant influence but nmot control, generaily
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 0% of the voting nghts. An investment in an associate is
initially recognised at cost and accounted for using the equity method in the financial statements in which the
equity method is applied.

{2)  Joint arrangement

An investment in joint arrangement is classified as either joint operation or joint venture depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Company has a nght to the net assets of the arangement.
An interest in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method.
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2.7

2.8

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

Investments in associate and joint arrangement {Cont'd)
(3)  Accounting under equily method

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carmmying amount is increased
of decreased 1o recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investes after the dale of acquisition.
The Company's imvestments in associate and joint vaniurs include goodwall identified on acquisition

The Company's shares of its associate and joint venture's post-acquisition profits or losses are recognised
in the statement of income and ils shares of post-acquisition movements in reserves are recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the camrying amount of the
investments. When the Company's share of losses in associate and joinl venture equals or exceeds ils
interest in the associate and joint venture, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incured obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate and joint venture.

Unrealised gains on fransactions between the Company and its associate and joint venture are eliminated
o the extent of the Company’s interast in the associate and joint venture, Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transfermed.  Accounting
policies of asscciates have been changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Company.

In the Company financial stalements, investments in associale and joint venture are accounted for using
the cost method.

& list of the Company’s associate and joint veniure is disclosed in Motes 11 and 12, respectively

Other investments

Investments other than investmenis in associate and joint venture are classified into the following three categones
which are held-to-matunty, available-for-sale and general mvestmeanis. The classification is dependent on the purpose
for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the approprate classification of its investments at
the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.

Investments with fixed maturty that the management has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held-lo-malurty and are included in non-current assets, excepl for malurties within 12 months
from the statemeant of financial position date which are classified as cument assets

Investments intended (o ba hald for an indefinite penod of time, which may be sold in response to liquidity
neads or changes in interest rates, are classified az available-for-sale, and are included in non-current
assets unless management has expressed the intention of holding the investment for less than 12 months
from the statement of financial position date or they will need to be sold to raise operating capital, in which
case they are included in current assets.

Invesiments in non-marketable equily securities are classified as general invesiments.

FPurchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Company
commils 1o purchase or s&ll the investments. Cost of investment includes transaction costs.

Held-lo-maturity investments are carned at amorbsed cost.

Available-for-zale investments are subsequently carried at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity. The fair value
of investments is based on the quoted bid price by reference to the Stock Exchange of Thailand. When
investments classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are
included i the statement of income as gains and losses from investiment.

seneral investments are carried at cost less impairment.

A test for impairment is carried out when there is a factor indicating that an investment might be impaired. If the
carrying value of the invesiment 1s higher than its recoverable amount, impairment loss s charged to the
statement of income.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
charged or credited to the statement of income. When disposing of par of the Company’s holding of a particular
investment in equity securties, the camying amount of the disposed part is determined by the weighted average
carrying amount of the total holding of the investiment.

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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2 Accounting policies (Conl'd)

29 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are iniially recorded at cost and subsequently stated at histoncal cost less accumulated
depreciaton.

Depreciation 15 calculated on the straight-ling methad 1o write off the cost of each asset, except for land which is
considered to have indefinite life, to its residual value over the estimated useful lives.

Useful life (years)

Buildings and other constructions 10-30
Land and building improvemants 2-10
Machinery, equipment and factory tools 5-10
Molds 4
Mator vehicles 5
Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment 3-5

The assels’ useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusied f appropnate, at
laast at the end of @ach reporting pariod.

The asset's carying amount is written-down immeadiataly to its recoverable amount if the assel's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in which they are
incurnad.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the statemeant of income.

2.10 Intangible assets
Computer soffware

Acquired computer software licences are capilalised on the basis of the direct costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortisad on the straight-line method over their estimatead
useful lives of which between 3 and 10 years. Direct costs include staff costs of the software development team
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes beyond their
ariginal specifications is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense
8s incurred.

Product design costs

Costs incurred on development projects relating to the design of new products are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be successful considenng its commercial and tachnological
feasibility, and only if the cost can be measured reliably. Product design costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. Product design costs are amertised from the
commencemeant of the commercial production of the product based on the straight-line method over the period
of its expected banefit which is 4 years.

211 Impairment of assets

Asset and intangible assats with a definite useful life are reviewed for impairmeant whenever events or changes
in crcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment 10ss is recognised
for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of
an assel’s fair value less cosis to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identfiable cash flows. Assets that have suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporling date.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

Accounting policies (Cont'd)

Leases
Leases - where the Company is the lessee

Leases in which & significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged 1o profit or Ioss on a skraight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Employee benefits

The Company has post-employment benefits both defined benefit and defined contnbution plans. A defined
conlribution plan is a pansion plan under which the Company pays fixed confributions into a separate antity.
The Company has no legal or constructve obligations to pay further contribufions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets o pay all employees the benefits relating to employes service in the current and prior perods.
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan, Typically defined benefit plans
define an amount of pension benefil that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

+  Defined contribution plan
Providgent fund

The Company operates a provident fund, being a defined contribution plan, the assets for which are held in
a separate trust fund. The provident fund is funded by payments from employess and by the Company.
The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The confributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

s  Defined banafi plan

Under Labour Laws apphcable in Thaland and Company's employmeant policy, the severance pay will be at
the rate according to salary and number of years of service which will happen in the future. The liakality
recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporing period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method, The present value of the defined benefit obligation i1s determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using govemment bond interest rate that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have lerms o malurily approximating to the tlerms of the related liabilily.

Gain and loss from acluarial estimation for employee benefit is recognised as other comprehensive income
(e¥penses) in the statement of comprahensive income,
Provisions
Frovisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
evenls, it 15 probable thal an ocutflow of resources will be required o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Where the Company expecls a provision lo be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separale assef but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
Revenue recognition
Revenue from sales comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sales of goods
net of rebates and discounts. Revenue from sales is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are transferrad 1o the buyers,
Revenue from rendenng services is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis unless collectability is in doubt

Dividend income is recognised when right io receive payment is established.

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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Accounting policies (Cont'd)

Current and deferred income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising from differences
between the tax base of assets and habilities and their carmying amounts in the financial statements, However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporling period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised anly to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the same taxable entity or different taxable enfiies where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders
and the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments

Financial assets camied in the staternents of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
invastments held to maturnty, and trade accounts receivable. Financial liabilities camied in the statements of
financial position are trade accounts payable and other accounts payable. The particular recognifion methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

The Company parties to financial instruments that reduce exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates by using
foreign currency forward contracts to protect its exposure from movements in exchange rates. Foreign currency
forward contracts established a predetermined exchange rate (forward rate”™) at which the Company will
receive/ pay foreign currency amounts on a predetermined future date. At the statement of financial position
date, the foreign currency amounts receivable under these contracts are translated into Baht at the rates ruling
at that date. Unrealised gains or losses that result from the translation are recognisad in the statement of income.
The foreign currency amounts payable under these confracts are translated into Baht at the forward rates. Any
premiums or discounts equal to the difference between the exchange rates and the forward rates at the
inception of the contracts are amortised over the lives of the contracts. The foreign currency amounts receivable
and payable have been presented net in the statement of financial position.

Disclosures about financial instruments to which the Company is a party are provided in Note 27.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been idenfified as “the board of directors” that makes
strategic decisions.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

Accounting esfimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal
experience and other factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, During the yvear ended 31 March 2019, the significant accounting estimatas of the Company
are as follows:

Allowances for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Company has estimated the allowances for obsolete and slow-moving inventones o reflect their impairmeant.
The allowances are taken into account inventory aging, recent sales experience and other factors that affecting
obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

Plant, equipment and intangible assets

Management has determined the estimated useful lives and residual value of plant, equipment and intangible
assets of which are principally based on technical information. The management will also review to write down
technically obsolete or non-used assets by sales or abandon,

Post-employment benefits

The Company provides for post-employment benefits, payable to employees under the Thai Labour Law. The
present value of post-employment benefit obligation is determined based on various assumptions which include
the discount rate, the rate of salary inflation, and employee turnover. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the net periodic cost recorded for provision for post-employment benefits.

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an aptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the board of directors who makes strategic decision.

Business segment

The Company manufactures and sells auto bulbs, automotive lighting equipment, molds & dies and product designs.
The Company does not prepare segment information of molds & dies and product designs business becauss
the Company's management considers that the revenues, assets and profit of molds & dies and product designs
segment do not meet quantitative thresholds of reportable segment. The chief operaling decision-maker reviews
operating resulls in the same dimension as presented in the financial statements.

Revenues by product group

During the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2018, the revenues by product group are as follows:

2018 2018
Baht Baht
Auto bulbs and automotive lighting equipment 14,371,448.321 12,778,957 295
Maolds & dies and product designs 263,171,978 441,488 403

14,634 621,209 13,220 445 698
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5 Segment information (Cont'd)

Major customers

ML T
(AR 5 E1 o D
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BTATEMENTS

OF CASH FLOVWS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has revenues from 2 major customer groups which each
of them contributed equal or over 10% of the Company’s total revenues (2018: 2 customer groups). The revenue
from customer group no.1 is Baht 6,774 million (2018: Baht 5,590 million). The revenue from customer group
no. 2 is Baht 4,268 million (2018; Baht 3,692 million). The customers under common control are considered as

one customer and referred to as the customer group.

6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and chegues on hand

Current accounts with banks
Savings accounts with banks

Fixed deposits at banks with less than 3-month term

2019 2018

Baht Baht

862 767 832923

98 537,327 88,751,798
42 596,783 108,447 592

1,530,000,000 1,813,000,000

1,671,996,877 2,012,032,313

As at 31 March 2019, savings accounts with banks and fixed deposits at banks with less than 3-month term
bear interest at the rates of 0.01% - 1.37% per annum (2018; 0.01% - 1.12% per annum).

7 Short-term investments held to maturity

As at 31 March 2019, short-term investments held to maturity represent fixed deposits at banks which have
original maturities over 3 months but not over 12 months (2018: treasury bills and fixed deposits at banks which
have original maturities over 3 months but not aver 12 manths).

Movemnents in short-term investments held to maturity are as follows:

Opening book amount
Additions during the year
Redemptions during the year

Closing book amount

2019 2018
Baht Baht

4,212,450217  3,836,983,912
10,059,549,783 9,329 466,305
(10,647,000,000) (8,954,000,000)

3.625000,000 4212450217

As at 31 March 2019, short-term investments held to maturity bear interest at the rates of 1.25% - 1.63% per

annum (2018: 1.12% - 1.60% per annum).

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the fair value is based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate based
upon the interest rates of treasury bills and fixed deposits as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 (Level 2 of fair value
hierarchy). However, the fair value of shorl-term investments held to maturity is close to their carrying amount

as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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8 Trade and other accounts receivable, net

Trade and other accounts receivable, net as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows;

Trade accounts receivable - other companies
Less Allowance for doubtful account

Trade accounts receivable - other companies, net
Trade accounts receivable - related parties (Note 28)
Prepaid expenses

Accrued income, net

Value added tax recsivable

Other receivables

2019 2018

Baht Baht
2,166,149 433 2,057 587,201
{20,446,001) (23,859,075)
2,145 703 432 2.033.688,125
233,322 287 206 516 522
53,025,056 48 727 691
19,663 252 26,716,955
64,601,020 23,335,262

32 862 832 8,810,397
2549177 B79 2,347 804 952

Trade accounts receivable as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 can be analysed as follows:

Trade accounts receivable-

Trade accounts receivable-

other companies related parties
2019 2018 2019 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Current 2 122 815979  2,005630,823 174,739,248 197,682 647
Overdue:
less than 3 months 24 556 8863 21,080,358 2B 583,038 8,218,924
3 - 6 months 1,380,000 6,686,761 - 13.185
G - 12 months 280,081 - - 991,331
more than 1 year 17,116,410 24,150,219 - 10,435
2,166,149,433 2,057 557,201 233322 287 206,516,522
9 Inventaries, net
2019 2018
Baht Baht
Raw maternials and packaging 248,139,873 240,711,873
Work in process 688,942,830 255,320,170
Finished goods 81,679,548 97,143,936
Goods in transit a5 484 823 89 566,795
1,106,247 083 682742774
Less Allowance for net realisable value lower than cost
and obsolete and slow moving inventories
- Raw materials and packaging (240,999) (4.875.428)
- Work in process (5,152,015) {2,031,543)
- Finished goods (73,480) (1.108,102)
1,099,780,589 674,727,701

Inventories, net

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company recognised allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories
amounting to Baht 6,648,257 and reversed allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounting to
Baht 9,196,836 as a part of cost of sales in the statement of income (2018: the Company recognised allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounting to Baht 472 520 and reversed allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories amounting to Baht 22,274 883 as a part of cost of sales in the statement of income ).
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10 Loans to employees

THE FAMCLAY
STATEVENTS

Movements in loans to employees during the year are as follows:

Cpening balance
Additions
Received during the year

Closing balance

2019 2018
Baht Baht
36,154,689 70,766,483
81,931,306 329,854
(41,287.751) (34,941,648)
76,798,244 36,154,680

Loans to employees bear interest rate at 1.70% per annum (2018: 1.90% per annum). The repayment periods are
betweean 2 months - 3 years.

The analysis of loans to employees is as follows:

2019 2018

Baht Baht

Current portion of loans to employees 41,877,305 25,348,038
Mon-current portion of loans to employees 34,920,939 10,806,651
76,798,244 36,154,689

11 Investment in an associate

The details of investment in an associate as at 31 March 2012 and 2018 are as follows:

Equity method

haro Lol Amsunt Dividands A oLnt Diwidends
Mame Busingss activily captal repiding Baht Eaht Baht Baht
Vintnam Stanley Electng Manufaciurn of
Company Limdod mileenativ WUsH A2
lighting equipment mmillicen -+ 1357 800 009 75531 0ol 1,151, 586 353 T 556 000
1,357 830000 TE531 000 1,131,658 B53 TE 556 000
Cost method
Sl Wl Amosunt Dividenda Asneient Diwidends
Marme Busingss activity capital rI-DI-IIInL Gaht Baht Baht Baht
Wiatmams Stanhay Elacting Manulaching of
Company Limied auloenative Ush 810
lighting equipment millicen 20 5 044 189 230 O o, D, 139 76,558 000
54 044,189 T5 531,000 54 04 189 & 556 000

Vielnam Stanley Electric Company Limited is a pnvate company and there is no quoted market price available for it.
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Company’s interest in an associate.

Movements in an investment in an associate are as follows:

Equity method Cost method

For the years ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Opening book amount 1,131,686,653 1,027,730,997 54,044 189 54,044 189
Share of profit 307 596,290 284 288,718 - -
Dividends received {75,531,080) (76,5596,000) = -
Translation adjustmenis (5,821 844) (103,737,062) - -

Clesing book amount 1,357,930,000 1,131,686,653 54,044 189 54,044,189
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11 Investment in an associate (Cont'd)

summarised statement of financial position and statement of income of Vietnam Stanley Electric Company Limited:

As at 31 March

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Current assets 6,415,086, 429 5342 521,320
Non-current assets 1,024,354 511 916,377,831
Total assets 7,430.440940 6,258,899 260
Current liabiliies 628,933 281 84,580,269
Mon-current liabilities 20,857 G614 15,875,725
Total liabilities 649,790 895 600,465,094
For the year ended 31 March
2019 2018
Baht Baht
Revenues from sales and services 53,908,674 110 5,574 641,366
Met profit for the year 1,537,981 446 1,421,443 589
12 Investment in a joint venturae
The details of investment in a joint venture as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
Equity mothad
Paid-up 2019 214
share % of Ameunt Divedends Amaum Dividantds
Hams Busingss activity  capdal heling Baht Bahit Bahit Baht
Lagz Stanley Company Lirmded Manudaciure of
nutamete S0 025
sghting equipment e p 50 29 985,415 T i A0 23 O E1E 5 G s
23,185,315 7,888,300 22.708.818 5,618,322
Cosl mathod
Paid-up 2013 2018
share ol Amount Ovwedends Amaurnd Dwvidernids
Wame Businexs achivity capial helding Bivht Bahkt Bk Baht
Laa Sanley Company Lirmted Manufaciure of
aubamchive UEh 025
hghting equipmen iwillic 50 3,132,500 7,885,300 3,132 500 5,818,322
3,932,500 7,986,309 3.132.500 5,516,222

Lao Stanley Company Limited is a privale company and there is no quated market price available for it. There are no
contingent liabilities relating to the Company’s interest in a joint venture.

Movements in an investment in a joint venture are as follows:

Equity method Cost method

For the years ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Opening book amount 22,706,618 20,501 287 3,132,500 3,132,500

Share of profit B,583.243 10,468,936 - -
Dividends received {7,986,309) (5,916,322)

Translation adjustments (1,138,237) (2,347 283) - =

Closing book amount 22,165,315 22,706,618 3,132,500 3,132,500
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Investment in a joint venture (Cont'd)

TS TR
THE FAMCLAY
STATEVENTS

Summarised statemnent of financial position and statement of income of Lao Stanley Company Limited:

Current assels
Mon-current assels

Total assets

Current liabilities
Mon-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Revenues from sales and services

Met profit for the year

Long-term investments, net

As at 31 March

2019 2018

Baht Baht
85,178,497 135,266,442
10,870,984 12,479,345
106,045 481 147,745,787
28 641 582 99 967,323
3.077 267 2300227
61,718,849 102,332 550

For the year ended 31 March

Long-term investments, net as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

As at 31 March 2019

Equity securities
- Related parties
- Other companies

Long-term investments, net

As at 31 March 2018

Equity securities
- Related parties
- Other companies

Long-term investments, net

2019 2018
Baht Baht
478.083,052 453,364,727
17,166 487 20937 872
Available-
for-sale General
investments investments Total
Baht Baht Baht
7,480,000 104,921,215 112,401,215
7,480,000 104,921,215 112,401,215
Available-
for-sale General
investments investments Total
Baht Baht Baht
8,280,000 104,621,215 113,201,215
8,280,000 104,921,215 113,201,215

THA| STAMLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMH‘EI:!“




MDEFENLEN]

Thai Stanlay Electric Public Company Limitad
Notes to the financial statements

For the year endad 31 March 2019

13

Long-term investments, net (Cont'd)

The details of long-term investments, net as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Faid=up ama 2018
Share e of Armoun Dwidends Amount Divedends
Hami Eusingss activity capital helding Bahit Bahi Bahi Baht
Ralated parties - svailabie-far-sale
Imacigie Airbbser § Thadand) Manufachire of tyre Bant 200
Pubdic Comrpany Limited mllizn oz 3,380,000 358, B0 3,380,000 330040
Change i Far valuss of
I simesnls &, 100,000 - 4,900 0O -
TASR0DM0 358, B0 B 260,000 339040
Related parties
« general invesiments (o1 cost)
Asian Slankey iniernatonal Fanudactune of small
Compary Limibed bk, LEQD and Haht 400
alacirered componanls mullign 15.0 B, (O D0 58 BED ER2 60000, 000 -
Sinvit BEanley Company Lmiled Manudaching of
alpcironc equEpmant
and aniomalive Eaki 21
Trghling egugpmani mllizn 15.0 3,000,000 4,108 576 5000, 000 1,578,571
Lismax Induisines Lirsted Manudacluing of
Aol lighing
egupiredn | and piAs RS 035
parls. mullign 1.73 =R ] 1,768,158 BFE3 ML 1.1 050
PT. Indonesia Slarey Elecing Maniudaciung of ol ds
and aulamative lighteg WS TS5
aGLepman| mellicn 0.0 33,127 500 5,851,118 33,127,500 7241 465
104 821,215 71,620,732 104 821,215 B O64 125
Other companies
- ganeral inwgsiments (a1 cost)
T Hitech (Thailand) Company Lemiled  Manutacthuie of
plashc products Banl 35.8
and wahds mallicn 138 5,000,000 - 5 000, D00 -
Les livgaimmand of inveshaans {5, 000,000 {5, 000,000 -
112,401 215 71,878 532 113201,215 10,303, 165

Talad long:-lem investments, nel

The available-for-sale investment is carried at fair value which is based on the quoted price by reference to
Stock Exchange of Thailand (Level 1).
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Intangible assets, net

As at 1 April 2017
Cast

Less Accumulated amortisation

et book amount

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfers

Amortisation charge (Note 23)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 March 2018
Cost

Less Accumulated amortisation

Met book amount

For the year ended 31 March 2019
Opening net book amount

Additions
Transfers
Amortisation charge (MNote 23)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 March 2019
Coslt

Less Accumulated amortisation

Pet book amount

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

Product design

Computer Product cost under
software design cost  development Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
238,538,169 924,898,147 232,955,985 1,397,392 301
(197,236,354)  (480,147,142) - (677,383,496)
42,301,815 444 751,005 232,955,985 720,008,805
42,301,815 444,751,005 232,955,985 720,008,805
15,356,790 - 254 238,060 269 594 850
- 228976620  (228976,620) -
(18,535,285) (195,954 699) - (214,489.984)
39,123,320 477,772,926 208,217,425 775,113,671
254 894 959  1,012,509,569 258,217 425 1,525621,953
(215,771,639)  (534.736,643) - (750,508.282)
39,123,320 477,772,926 258,217,425 775,113,671
39,123,320 477,772,926 258,217,425 775,113,671
33,398,310 - 395,233,954 428,632,264
- 183,251,117 (1563,251,117) -
(17.452,800)  (211,535,833) - (228,988.633)
55,068,830 419,488,210 500,200,262 974,757,302
288,293,260 1,018,093 696 500,200,262 1,807 487,227
(233,224,439)  (5089,505,486) - (832,729,925)
55,068,830 419,488,210 200,200,262 974,757,302
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Deferred tax

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

Financial statements in which
the equity method is applied

The Company only

2019 2018 2019 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred tax assets to be utilised
within 12 months 4 426 445 4 384 210 4 426 445 4 384 210
Deferred tax assets to be utilised
more than 12 months 102,797 523 95 797 036 102,797 523 a5 797,036
107,223,068 100,181,246 107,223,068 100,181,246
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities to be
settled within 12 months (107 ,263) (173,610 (107 ,263) (173,610)
Deferred tax liabilities to ba
seftled more than 12 months (277,568,140) (232414119) (12,884 413)  (12,970,803)
(277.,675,403) (232 587.729) {13,091,676) (13,144 413)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) (net) (170,451,435) (132,406483) 94,132,202 87,036,833

The gross movement of the deferred tax is as follows:

Opening balance

Credited/ {charged) to profit or loss
(Note 24)

Credited to other
comprehensive income (Note 24}

Closing balance

Financial staterments in which

the equity method is applied

The Company only

2019 7018 2019 2018

Baht Baht Baht Baht
(132,406,483) (111,786,043) 87,036,833 86,424,176
(39,598,968) (42,028,409) 6,935,459 420,857
1562,016 21,408,869 160,000 192,000
(170,451.435) (132,406483) 94,132,292  §7,036,833
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17

Deferred tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities :
As at 1 April 2017
Charged to profit or loss

Credited to other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2018
Charged to profit or loss
Credited to other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2018

Deferred tax liabilities :

As at 1 April 2017

Charged to profit or loss

Credited to other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2018
Charged to profit or loss

Credited to other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2018

Accrued expenses

Accrued staff costs
Accrued electricity expense
Accrued rebate

Others

TS TR
THE FAMCLAY
STATEVENTS

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

Investments in

an associate and  Long-term
a joint venture investment Buildings Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
(198,211,119) (1,172,000) (11,980,803) (211,373,922)
(42,449 066) - (173,610) (42 622 676)
21,216 86D 192,000 - 21,408,869
(219,443 316) (980,000 (12,184,413) (232,587, 729)
(46,532 427) - (107,263) (46,639,690)
1,392,016 160,000 . 1,552,016
(264 583 727) (820,000 (12,271,676) (277 675403)
The Company only

Long-term

investment Buildings Total
Baht Baht Baht
(1,172,000) (11,990,803) {13,162 ,803)
- (173,610) (173,610)
192,000 - 192,000
(980,000) (12,164,413) {13,144, 413)
- (107,263) (107,263)
160,000 - 160,000
(820,000) (12,271,6786) {13,091,676)

2019 2018

Baht Baht

242 453,382 214,531,614
32,179,796 28 698 989
24,000,000 43,270,000
40,804,208 30,588,013
330 438,086 326,088 616
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Provision for post-employment benefits

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

Fresent value of defined benefit obligations
Liability in the statement of financial position

Mowvements in provision for post-employment benefits are as follows:

Opening balance
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid

Closing balance

The amounts recognised in the statement of income are as follows;

Current service cost
Interast cost

Total

These expenses are included in cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses as follows:

Cost of sales
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Total
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate
Salary increase rale

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

2019 2018

Baht Baht
234,385,053 208,805,352
234,385,083 208,805,352
2019 2018

Baht Baht
208,805,352 184 330,737
23,715 441 21,226,027
5,128,605 5,390,693
{3,264 345) {2,142 1056)
234,385,053 208,805,352
2019 2018

Baht Baht
23,715,441 21,226,027
5,128,605 5,380,693
28,844 046 26,616,720
2019 2018

Baht Baht
26,161,732 23,857 560
884 689 846 480
1,797 825 1,912 680
28 844 046 26,616,720
2.45% 3.01%
5.00% 5.00%



ML T
(AR 5 E1 o D
=LATLAE NS

ETATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWE

Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year endad 31 March 2019

18

19

20

Provision for post-employment benefits (Cont'd)

sensitivity analysis for each principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Impact on defined benefit obligation - Post-employment benefits

Change in Decrease in
assumption Increase in obligation obligation
Yo Baht Baht
Discount rate

Increase 1.00 - 23,052 313
Decrease 1.00 26952 512 -

Salary growth rate
Increase 1.00 29,558 508 -
Decrease 1.00 - 25 624 168

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the
statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptlions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to
the previous year.

Share capital and premium on share capital

Ordinary Premium on

Number of shares share capital Total
shares Baht Baht Baht
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018 76,625,000 383,125,000 504,250,000 837,375,000

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 76,625,000 shares with a par value of Baht 5 per share (2018:
76,625,000 shares with a par value of Baht 5 per share). All shares are issued and fully paid.

Dividends

At the Annual General Shareholders’ meseting of Thai Slanley Electric Public Company Limited held on & July
2018, the shareholders unanimously resolved to pay dividends in respect of the operating results for the year
ended 31 March 2018 for 76,625,000 shares of Baht 7 per share, totalling Baht 536,375,000, There were 100
shares that were not entitled to receive the dividends, totalling Baht 700 as the depository terms were not in
compliance with praclices of the Thailand Security Depository Co., Ltd. The Company recorded actual dividends paid
amounting fo Baht 536,374,300 in the financial statements. The Company paid the dividends to the shareholders on
26 July 2018.

At the Annual General Shareholders’ meeting of Thai Stlanley Electric Public Company Limited held on 7 July
2017, the shareholders unanimously resolved to pay dividends in respect of the operating results for the year
ended 31 March 2017 for 76,625,000 shares of Baht & per share, tolalling Baht 383,125,000. There were 100
shares that were not entitled to receive the dividends, totalling Baht 500 as the depository terms were not in
compliance with practices of the Thailand Security Depository Co., Ltd. The Company recorded actual dividends paid
amounting to Baht 383,124,500 in the financial statements. The Company paid the dividends to the shareholders on
27 July 2017.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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22

23

Legal reserve

Under the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside a legal reserve at least
5% of its net profit after the accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve is not less than 10% of
the registered capital. The reserve is non-distributable.

Other income - others

Scrap sales
Tax rebabe income
Royalty income

Gain on disposals of property, plant and eguipment, net

Others

Expenses by nature

The following expenditure items have been charged in amving at operating profit;

Changes in finished goods and work in process

FRaw materials and consumables used

Staff costs

Depreciation of plant and equipment (Note 14)

Amortisation of intangible assels (Note 13)

Utility expenses
Subcantract service cosls

Repairs and maintenance expenses

Income tax

Current tax :

Current tax on profit for the year

Defarred tax .

Crigination and reversal of

temporary differences (Mote 18)

Total income tax expense

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

2019 2018

Baht Baht
71,190,217 46 357,157
6,836,529 12,897,362
10,022,094 640,718

4 118,553 4 184,100
15,924 576 35,250,793
108,091,969 899 330,130
2019 2018

Baht Baht
(418,158,281) 45 560 601
7.291,371,572 6,276,803,136
1,503,564 260 1,361,983 492
1,020,563,009 1,051,782,513
228 988 633 214 485 984
346,058,147 322 462 055
165,024,074 187,376 696
343 542,291 202,087,758

The Company only

2019 2018 2019 2018

Baht Baht EBaht Baht
413,556,213 347 857,159 413,556,213 347 857 158
39 506 968 42,028,409 (6,935.459) (420,657)
453 153,181 380,885 568 406,620,754 347436502
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Income tax (Cont'd)

TS TR
THE FAMCLAY
STATEVENTS

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic

tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 20%
(2018: 20%)

Tax effect of :

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose

Additional expenses deductible for
tax purpose

Profit from BOI business

Under recorded prior year accrued
corparate income tax

Tax charge

Average effective tax rate (%)

Financial statements in which
the equity method is applied

The Company only

2019 2018 2019 2018

Baht Baht Baht Baht
2430815305 2048547171 2198253171  1,836,301,839
486,183,061 400709434  439650,634 367,260,368
(12,865,812) (383,522)  (12.865,812) (383,522)
1,794,055 8,556,415 1,704,055 8,556,415
(8,143,278) (7,646,636) (8,143,278) (7,646 ,636)
(13,814,845)  (24,990,319)  (13,814.845)  (24,990,319)
- 4,640,196 . 4,640,196
453,153,181 380885568 406,620,754 347436502
18.64 19.03 18.50 18.92

The tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

2019 2018
Before tax  Tax credit After tax Before tax Tax credit After tax
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Unrealisad loss on
change in fair value of
available-for-sale investment (800,000} 160,000 (40,000} {960,000) 192,000 (768,000)
Exchange differences relating
to investments in an associate
and a joint venture (6,960,081) 1382076 (5568,065) (106,084 345) 21,216,869 (B4.867T476)
Other comprehensive expenses
for the year (7.760,081) 1,552.016  (6.205065) (107044 345) 21408869 (B5.635476)
The Company only
2018 2018
Before tax Tax credit After tax Before tax Tax credit After tax
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Unrezlisad loss on
change in fair value of
available-for-sale investment (G00,000) 160,000 (60,000 (960,000) 192,000 (T6&,000)
Dther comprenensive expenses
for the year (S00,000) 160,000 (640,000) (260,000) 192,000 (TGS 000)
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25  Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and paid up during the year.

Met profit attributable to
shareholders (Baht)

Weighted average number of
ordinary share in issue (Shares)

Basic earnings per share (Baht)

Financial statements in which
the equity method is applied

The Company only

2019

2018 2019

2018

1.977,762,124

76,625, 000

25.81

1.658,661,603

76,625,000
21.65

1.791,632,417

76,625,000
2338

1,488,865,337

76,625,000
19.43

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the year presented, so no diluted eamings per

share is presented.

26 Promotional privileges

The Company has received promotional privileges from the Office of the Board of Investment for the production
of molds, mold repairs and production of Eco-car lamps. Under these privileges, the Company will be exempled
from corporate income tax for a period of 8 years from the date of commencement of earning revenue. As a
promaoted entity, the Company is required to comply with the terms and conditions as specified in the promotion

certificates.

Export sales
Domestic sales

Domestic service income - mold repairs

Export sales
Domesfic sales

Domestic service income - mold repairs

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

2019
BOI promoted Non-BO| promoted
activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht
223,656,336 3,969 304 552 4 2892 961,188
262,232 533 10,079 427 578 10,341 660,111
585, B8B BE9 14,048,732.430 14.634,621,299
670,000 - 670,000
_ 2018
BOI promoted Non-BOl promoted
activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht
424 485,034 3,602 402, 106 4 026,887,140
449 454 822 8.744 103,736 9.193,558,558
873,939 856 12,346,505 842 13,220,445 698
506,000 - 506,000
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27 Financial instruments

The principal financial risks faced by the Company are foreign currency exchange rate risk and credit risk,
Foreign currency exposura relates to raw materials imported in foreign currencies and certain export sales in
foreign cumencies. The business fransactions are generally on a short-term period which are between 1 and
3 month terms. The foreign curency exchange rate risk of the Company occurs mostly in Japanese Yen and
LS Dollars, Credit risk arises when sales are made on credil terms.

The objeclives of using hinancial instruments are to reduce the uncertamnty over future cash fiows ansing from
movements in exchange rates, and to manage the liquidity of the cash resources. Foreign currency forward
confracts are entered into to manage the currency nisks. Decisions on the level of nsk undertaken are confined
to the management which has established limits by transaction type and by counterparty.

Trading for speculative purposes is not allowed. Derivative fransactions are subject to approval by the Company's
Board of directors.

Fair value estimation

When a financial instrument is traded in an aclive market, its quoted markel price provides the best evidence of
fair value. The quoted market price for an asset held or liability to be issued is usually the current bid price and,
for an asset o be acquired or liability held, it is the current offer or asking price. When the current bid and offer
prices are unawvailable, the price of the most recent transaction may provide evidence of the current fair value
provided that there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances between the transaction date
and the reporting date. When the Company has matching asset and habibly posiions, it may appropnately use
mid-market prices as a basis for establishing fair values.

The fair values less any estimated credit adjustiments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less
than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosura
purposes is estimaled by discounting the future confractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Company for similar financial instruments.

Infarmation an the fair values of long-term investments is included in Note 13.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

« Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),

» |Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Lewvel 2).

s Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

a) Financial assets and liabilities

As at 31 Mareh 2019 and 2018, the Company has outstanding foraign currency assets and liabilities as details

belonw.
- 2019 : 2018
Currency Baht Currency Baht
Millien Million Million Million
Asseots
Japanese Yen 2.58 0.7r3 2.19 0.63
LS Dollars B.30 199,31 G.90 21414
200.04 21497
Liabilities
Japanese Yen H28.48 153.63 166.40 449,59
LIS Dollars 13,48 431.44 14.89 467 .48
585.07 517.03

Objectives and significant terms and conditions

The Company enters into financial instruments which are foreign currency forward confracts to manage the
risks arising from fluctuations in fareign currency axchange rates.
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a)

b)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets and liabilities (Cont'd)
Foreign currency forward contracts

Foreign currency forward contraclts are entered into to manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates on specific transactions.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the settlement dates on foreign currency forward contracts were ranged between
1 and 3 months from the statement of financial position date. The equivalent Thai Baht to be paid at the
contraciual exchange rates of the outstanding contracts were:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
LUSD 2 million at average rate Baht 31.52 = USD 1
{2018: USD 1 million at average rate Baht 31.29 = USD 1) 53,040,000 31,280,000
JPY 40 million at average rate Baht 268,74 = JPY 100
{2018: JPY 40 million at average rate Baht 29.50 = JPY 100) 11,496,000 11,800,000
74 536 000 43,090,000
Fair values

The favourable (unfavourable) differences ansing from fair value valuation of the denvative financial instruments
al the statement of financial position date were:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Differences - favourahle (unfavourable) 557 875 {(105,591)

The fair values of foreign currency forward contracls were calculated using the rates quoted by the Company's
bankers which were based on market conditions existing at the statement of financial position date {Level 2).

Credit risk

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Company has policy in place to ensura that sales of
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Derivative counterparties and cash
transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institution.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values: cash

and cash equivalents, short-term investments held to matunty, trade accounts receivable, tfrade accounts payable and
other accounts payable due to short maturities of these instruments.

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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Related party transactions

Individuals or enterprisas thal directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or
are under common control with, the Company, including holding companies, subsidianes and fellow subsidianes are
related parties of the Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voling
power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, including
direciors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associaled
with thase individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,
and not merely the legal form.

The Company had the significant transactions with its maijor shareholder, Stanley Eleciric Company Limited Group,
incorporated in Japan which holds 35.66% interest in the Company's share capital. The Company also had significant
transactions with a group of individual shareholders who are members of the Company's management who hold
29.08% interest in the Company’s share capital. Stanley Electric Group comprises Stanley Electric Company Limited
and related companies.

Purchases from related partes are specific matenals or matenals which are manufactured on a large scale at one
source for cost saving benefits. Sales lo related parties mainly represent export sales, and selling price is determined
based on manufacturing cost plus a cerfain margin. A royalty fee is charged at 3% of sales less matenals cost
imported from a related party in accordance with the agresment. A design and development fee and other fees ana
charged in normal course of a business and are presented as other accounts payable - related parties.

The following significant transactions were carried out with related parties:

For the years ended 31 March 2019 2018
Baht Baht
Sales
Stanley Electric Group companies 463 849 038 523,408,361
Companies related by way of the Company's management
and directors as shareholders, or by way of common directors 153,683,650 161,147 625
Associate 22,557 910 18,638,031
Joint venture 409 808,713 402 605 897
1,040.890 311 1,105,800,914
Other income
Stanley Electric Group companies B.090 588 ¥.830824
Aszociate 1,006,799 R
Joint veniure 193,720 158,979
0381277 7.990,903
Dividend income
Stanley Electric Group companies 67.511,156 8,385 555
Companies related by way of the Company’s management
and directors as shareholders, or by way of common directors 4 468 176 1,917 611
Associate 75.531,080 76,596,000
Jaint venture 7.986,309 9,916,322
155 496,731 92,815 488
Rovyalty income
Joint veniure 820,108 640,718
Purchases of goods and services
Stanley Eleclric Group companies 2.918.824 259 2527588725
Companies related by way of the Company’s management
and directors as shareholders, or by way of common directors 391.102 484 396,219,737
Associate 504 076,007 377,949 201

3,614.002,750

3,301,757 663
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Related party transactions (Cont'd)

The following significant transactions were camied out with related parties: (Cont'd)

For the years ended 31 March

Royalty fees
Stanley Electric Group companies

Design and development fee
Stanley Electric Group companies
Companies related by way of the Company’s management
and directors as shareholders, or by way of common directors
Associate

Technical assistance fee
Stanley Electric Group companias

Training fee
Stanley Electric Group companies

Commission
Stanley Electric Group companies

Directors’ and managements’ remuneration
Short-term benefits

Short-term benefits comprise salary, bonus and other welfares.

2019 2018

Baht Baht
338,491,769 302,570,359
252,944 299 124,439,093
348,114 63422
36,153 46,058
253,328,566 124,548 473
18,216,604 10,663,658
9,367 916 9,942,854
20,000,000 20,000,000
49 515,941 47 433,823

The amounts due to and from related parties are mainly denominated in foreign currencies and
and sales transactions. The outstanding balances as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Stanley Electric Group companies
Companies related by way of the Company’s management
and directors as shareholders, or by way of common directors
Associate

Joint venture

Trade accounts payable - related parties
Stanley Electric Group companias
Companies related by way of the Company’s management
and directors as shareholders, or by way of common directors

Associate

Other accounts payable - related parties
Stanley Electric Group companies

AMNUAL REPORT 2018

relate to purchases

2019 2018
Baht Baht
124,225 417 45,981,000
56,256,556 63,003,538
2 182,252 2 395 677
50,658,062 095,136,307
233,322,287 208,516,522
382,151,845 311,530,905
33,278,213 36,166,563
134,430,088 150,575,621
549 860,146 408,282 289
169,764,056 223 210,120
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Significant commitments

a) Bank guarantees

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has bank guarantees of Baht 34 million with respect to income tax
payment and electricity supply of Baht 18 million and Baht 16 million, respectively {(2018: income tax
payment and electricity supply of Baht 18 million and Baht 16 million, respectively).

b) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has capital commitments of Baht 1,972 million (2018: Baht 535
million). The capital commitment mainly comprses construction and machines for production expansion in the
future.

Contingent liability

In 2015, the Company received a ruling letter from the Revenue Department stating that the Company had paid
income tax for the accounting pericds from 1 February 2003 to 31 January 2004, 1 April 2004 - 31 March 2005,
1 April 2005 - 31 March 2008, 1 April 2008 - 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 - 31 March 2010 incorrectly for the
total amount of approximately Baht 18 million. The reason given was that the Company didn't average out the
Company's net profit between BOl and non-BOI businesses before applying the income tax rate at 25% for the
first portion of net profit of Baht 300 million, which is in accordance with the Royal Decree no, 387 B.E. 2544
and no, 475 B.E. 2551. However, the Company has objected to this letter. The Company has asked the bank to
issue a letter of guarantee for this tax amount as mentioned in Note 29 (a).

In 2016, the Central Tax Court of Thailand judged to dismiss the Company's appeal. The outcome of the
judgment means the Company is liable to pay the additional tax to the Revenue Department. However, the
Company has requested the Revenue Department to temporarily suspend the liability for the additional tax
payment until a final judgment is issued, The Company submitted an appeal against the Court's judgment to the
Court of Appeal for Specialized cases - Tax Case Division.

On 12 March 2018, the Court of Appeal for Specialized cases - Tax Case Division rendered its judgment to affirm the
judgment of the Central Tax Court.

On 8 June 2018, the Company submitted an appeal against the Court of Appeal for Specialized cases - Tax Case Division's
judgrment to the Supreme Court.

On 22 April 2019, the Supreme Court ordered to dismiss the Company's petition. As a result, the final outcome of this case
i following the judgment of the Court of Appeal for Specalized cases - Tax Case Division and the Company has lo pay the
addiional tax to the Revenue Department within 22 May 2018,

The Company already recorded liabilities in this financial statements.

Subsequent event after the reporting period

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 17 May 2019, the Board of Directors approved lo propose the
dividends payment in respect of the operating results for the year ended 31 March 2019 for a total 76,625,000
shares of Baht 8.25 per share totaling Baht 632.16 million to the Annual General Shareholders’ meeting which
will be held on 5 July 2019.

On 5 April 2019, an amendment to the Labour Protection Act was published in the Government Gazette, The
amended law will become effective 30 days after its publication. The main amendment is thal the compensation for
employees who have retired and have more than or equal to 20 years of service has changed from 300 day's pay to
400 day's pay. The management has assessed the effects of the amendment on the financial statements and

expects the impact to be Baht 79,831,057,

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED




FINANCIAL STATISTICS IN 5 YEARS

{unit : Thousand Baht Except For Figure Per Share)

31 Mar 18 31 Mar 18 31 Mar 17 31 Mar 16 31 Mar 15

Report on Operation

Sales 14,634,621 13,220,446 11,024,797 10,672,224 0,523,829
Cost of Sales 11,864,535 10,775,580 9,087,201 8,929,410 7,808,825
Net Profit (Loss) 1,977,762 1,658 BE2 1,270,768 1,303,440 1,157,648
Met Profit (Loss) per Share (Baht) 25,81 21.65 16.58 17.01 15.11
Metl Profit Margin (%) 13.27 12,36 11,34 11.73 11.80
Return on Equity (%) (ROE) 12.97 11.91 9.83 10.84 10.35
Return on Total Assests (%) (ROA) 10,93 10.33 §.59 941 8.97
Debt to Equity {time) (DE) 0.21 0.17 0.14 0.15 0.15
Current Ratio (time) 313 4.50 5.00 4,30 3.83
Dividend per Share (Baht) ig 7.00 5.00 5.00 4.80
Dividend Ratio (%) *** : 36.03 34.15 32.68 34.53
Assets & Liabilities and Sharehoiders' Equity

Current Assets 9,033,803 9,290,056 7,738,068 7,059,504 5,947,007
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 7,703,012 5,564,807 5,460,123 5,536,093 5,823,148
Tofal Aszels 19,254, 504 16,938,772 15,185,832 14,407 271 13,293,905
Current Liabilties 2,883,108 2,065,180 1,548,236 1,643,233 1,551,388
Mon-Current Liabilities A04,836 341,212 296,118 256,003 203,185
Shareholders'Equity 15,966,559 14,531,380 13,341,478 12,507,915 11,539,331
Capital Registered 383,125 383,125 383,125 383,125 383,125
Capital 383,125 383,125 383,125 383,125 383,125
Book value Per Share (Baht) 208.37 189,65 174.11 163.24 150.59
Mumber of Shares™™ 76,625 76,625 76,625 76,625 76,625
Per Value (Baht) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

¥ 1t will be Approved From The Ordinary Shareholders Mesting

** Calculated Using The Weighted Average Method

ik ok
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GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION

1. Company Information

1.1 General Information

(1) Name
Public Registered No . 0107536000765
Address
Homepage www_thaistanley.com
Twvpe of Business :
Paid up capital

* Thar Stanley Electric Public Company Limited

Hundred twenty-live thousand baht)
Common share 76,625 000 share par value 5 Baht

(2) Details of Investment in other companics exceed of 10%

Manulacturer of automotive lighting equipment and mold
: 383,125,000 Baht (Three hundred eighty-three million and one

29/3 M. 1 Bangpoon-Rungsit Road, Banklang, Muang Pathumthanee 12000

{LLED) and camera flashes.
Telephone :0-2599-1260
Facsimile : 0-2599-1263

No Name/AddressType Of Business Capital Registered Amount Of Investment
Number Ratio{%a)
OF Share Hold
1. | Lao Stanley Co.,Ltd, USD 500,000 LSD 250,000 50
KM.7 Luangprabang Road, Vientiane, Laos
= Manufacturer of automotive lighting
equipment
Telephone : 85621 222171-3
Facsimmle : 85621 222174
2. | Vietnam Stanley Electric Co.,Lid. USD 8,300,000 LS 1,660,000 20)
Hanoi , Vietnam
- Manulacturer of automotive Lighting
equipment
Telephone - (844) -8 534546
Facsimile ; (¥44) -8 531337
3 Top Hightech (Thailand) Co.Lad 35,9 Million baht 5 million haht 1393
Saha Ratana Makorn Industnal Park | Ayuttaya common stock
- Manufacturer sell assemble plastic goods and 5,000 shares
Assemble light resolution molds
Telephone - {035)364-051
Facsinmle ;: {035) 364-0052
4. | Asian Stanley International Co..Lid 400 Million baht &0 millien bahi 15
48/1 M.1 Kukwang Ladlumkaew . Pathumthani commeon stock
- Manulacturer of lighting emitting diodes GO0, 000 shares

THAI STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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182 M.6 Tambol Cokegluad Muang ,

Nakhonrachasima

- Manufacturer of automotive lighting
equipment and electronic components

(paid — up 3.00
million baht)

commaon stock
600,000 shares

Telephone : (044) 291-411-3
Facsimile ; (044) 291-414

No Name/Address/Type Of Business Capital Registered Amount Of Investment
Number Ratio(%a)
Of Share Hold
5. | Sinvit Stanley Co..Ltd 40 Million bakht 6.00 million baht 15

Jakarta, Indonesia.

Telephone - (021) 59404510
Facsimile : (021) 594045006

6. | P.T. Indonesia Stanley Electric

- Production and Sales o’ Automotive lamps for
motorcycle and motorcar, Die & Molds

LUSD 7,500,000 LISD 750,000

1}

(3) Reference

Registrar

Auditor

Law Consultant

1.2 Other data

- None
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Thailand Secunities Depository Co.,Ltd.

The Stock Exchange of Thailland Building

93 Ratchadapisek Road, Dindang Bangkok 10400
Telephone : 0-2009-9000 Facsimile : 0-2009-999]

Ms.Varapormn Vorathitikul

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No 4474
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited.

I5th Floor Bangkok City Tower , 179/74-80

South Sathom Road, Bangkok 10120

Telephone : 0-2844-1000 Facsimile ; 0-2286-5050

Bangkok Global Law Offices Co..Ltd.

540, Unit 1705, 17th Floor, Mercury Tower,
Ploenchit Road, Lumpini Sub-district,
Pathumwan District, Bangkok 10330 Thailand
Tel: +66 (0) 2 252-5895-6

Fax: +66 (0) 2 252-5897




2.Policy and Business Overview

2.1 Vision Objective Goal / Business Strategies

Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited is a manufacturer of automotive lighting
equipment with international quality. The goal is committed to producing quality products and value
added products that the importance and value to all related group with the company sincerely.

Management Policy 15 to consider customer satisfaction as the first priority by improving
every function; quality control, costing, delivery, development, safety, and relationship through
Planning — Doing — Checking process cycle.

The Board has set a policy for directors, executives and employees, including corporate
governance policies , Code of conduct for Directors and Emplovees which has been published as a
document and distributed to directors, executives and employees for acknowledgment and
implementation in this regard, the Board of Directors has determined the yearly plan for reviewing
the policy | rules and regulations.

2.2 Background

The Company was first registered as a limited company on 30 May 1980. It manufactured,
imported and distributed automotive light bulbs and hghting equipment. That was founded by a
Thai-Japanese joint venture between Seng Nguan Hong (Sittipol) Company Limited (currently
known as The Sittipol 1919 Company Limited) and Stanley Electnic Co., Ltd. of Japan. The
Company operates three separate plants, producing auto bulbs, dies and molds, and auto lamps.

During  year 1980 - 1990 the company invested Bulb factory . Lampl factory and Die &
Mold Factory, has been mvestment promoted from BOI for every plant and has regstered capital of
10 million baht to 153 million baht

During year 1991 — 2001 | the Company was listed on the SET, and the Company's shares
began being traded on the SET under the abbreviation 'STANLY". In the same year, the Company
founded own research and development center with promotional support from the Board of
Investment (BOI). This center is mainly engaged in researching and developing products for the
Company. In July 1993, the Company was converted into a public limited company.

The company entered into a joint venture in establishing new companmies: Lao Stanley Co.,
Ltd. and Vietnam Stanley Electric Co., Ltd. Stanley Electric Engineering India PVT Ltd. PT.
Indonesia Stanley Electric, that also took shares in vanous companies, such as Inoue Rubber
(Thailand) Public Company Limited, Sum Hitechs Co., Lid. {in 2015 the company sold shares to
major shareholder of Sum Hitechs Co.  Ltd.) Sinvit Stanley Co., Ltd., Top Hightech (Thailand) Co.,
Ltd. and Lumax Industries Limited of India. In addition, the Company formed a technical support
alliance with Electro Polymers (PVT) Ltd. of Pakistan and Unitech Machines Limited of India.

The company has registered capital to 383,125 million baht and continued investment in
Land around for new factory and new machinery and equipment for business expansion.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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During years 2002 - 2010 the company has invested Lamp4 factory at Nava Nakom

Industrial Estate |, Klong Luang, Pathumthani (in 2014, the Company sold land and buildings to the
company that in the side area from not any operation and damaged by flooding in 2011) and Lamp
5 in the main area Muang , Pathum Thani

During year 2011 — 2013 Thailand's auto industry development and growth, respectively, but
in the years 2011 have fluctuated dramatically from mega flooding in the central of Thailand impact
on the automotive manufacturers and parts suppliers, the production and interruption and n 2012
from the needs of consumers returning to the policy of the government to make the first car sales and
auto production record high. The company as a manulacturer ol automotive parts has been ordered
by customers many car manufaciurers. As a resull, the company is higher and opening of a new plant
(Lamp7) to produced lamps for ECO Car, that selling are affect to growth of the automotive market,

During year 2014 — 2016 the automotive industry fell again after delivery of the car from the
first car out. The demand for automotive consumer that was used prior to the year 2012, making the
auto industry downturn and the decline continued |, Agriculiural crops production less so the public
revenue less and to spending was less than normal. Only Exports and motorcycle market have
continued to grow slightly. the automotive manufacturers including companies as part manufacturers
have tried hard to remedy the situation and results of operations.

During vear 2017 - 2018, the automotive industry retumed to recover. Sales and production
of cars and motorcycles constantly increasing which is mainly domestic sales , the export marker is
still at a slow level. In order to support the increased production and new model of lighting products
The company invested to construction in the extension of the Lamp 7 factory and for new Mold
factory, which will begin production in 2019 and start the construction of the Lamp 8 factory which
will be completed and start production m 2020,

Management: Since the Company's initial establishment and subsequent listing on the SET,
the original management team has continued in office withour any significant change in management
policy.

2.3 Company group holding structure

The company has 2 related company that manufacture of Lighting Equipment are Lao Stanley
Company Limited at The Lao People's Democratic Republic and Vietnam Stanley Electric
Company Limited at Socialist Republic Of Vietnam which are in the business of lighting equipment.
The operations and management based on the consideration of the Board of Directors of cach
company based on the policy of Stanley group.

Thai Stanley Electrie I'CLL

50% l l 20%%

Lao Stanley Vietnam Stanley Electric
Automotive Lighting Equipment part Autometive Lighting Equipment
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2.4 Major shareholder group Relationship

Major shareholder of the company 15 a group company Stanley Electric Co. Lid. Japan and the
Lee-issaranukul family | who is the founder of the company before listing on the SET. Each group
has a representative on the board for the company.

Business operations in accordance with company poliey accordance with the Stanley group

policy.
Shareholding structure of business groups of major shareholders (data as March 31, 2019)
Stanley Electric Co. Lid, Thai Stanley Electric PCL
(Juapan}
Autemotive and Electronics r Y y 1
e e T 35 0 Lec-issaranukul Family { Thai)
i E'J]r'linl‘:: l*l‘:‘::;}”“m'"i‘- ekl " - MisPomdee Lee-issaranukul
Ell-i'l'ﬂ::I.'l 4 {.E,?.Lm it -1 - MraApichant Lee-issaranubul
e - MrThanong [ee-issaranukul
25.75% - MriPima Lee-issaranukul
67.50%% l 0445 - M Pomthip Sethiwan
Asian Stanley Infernational Co, Lid,
L o The Sattipol 1919
Electronics 1.34% T A
g Co. Lid. (Thai) B1%
1304 Automotive Part
L3
e l DA%
I5% Sopu-Kanok R0
Suwivit Stanley Co.Lid, + Infernational | hai)
{ That) L7300 [[olding Company —
Automoedtive and Electromes »

4. Conduct ol business

The company currently manufactures and market auto bulb, automotive lighting equipment and
dies & moldsand design. The business segment information for dies & molds and design, which 1s
different from auto bulb, automotive lighting, has not been separately reported as the sales of this
segment represent only 1.80% of total sales.




Income Structure
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{The Equity Method)
Revenues 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2017
Million O Million Ua Million %

Baht Baht Baht
Domestic Sale Revenues 1034166 | 6793 919356 67.04| 742598 6479
Exporl Sale Revenues 4 292 96 28 2] 4 02689 2936 3. 59582 31.36
Tolal Sale Revenues 14,634 .62 06.13 | 13,220.45 9640 | 11.024.80  96.15
Dividend Income 71.98 0.47 10.30 (.08 23.24 0.20
Gain on Exchange Rate 21.24 0.14 19.75 .14 21.10 (.18
Interest Income 71.14 0.47 949 0.51 G488 0.57
Other Income 108.09 0.71 0933 0.72 T6.58 0.67
Share of prolit from ' nvestment 31618 | 208| 20476| 215| 25572 224

i Associate

Total revenues 1522325 | 100,00 | 13,714.08 | 100,00 | 1146650 100,00

3.1 Nature of products

The Company's core business is to manufacture and sell products in a single sector. both

domestic and export, namely hghting equipment for use m motorcars, motoreycles and other

vchicles, There are 2 core products:

- Auto Bulb

the company manufactures bulbs for automobiles, such as Bulb T19, GI8,

RP30, 525 to assemble a collection of various types of automotive lamps are available sales through
local dealers and sale export to Stanley group company and for supporting to production and

assembly a set of automotive lamps.

-Lighting Equipment Lamps , the company manufacturing in the automotive parts such as

Head Lamp, Rear Combination lamp or Tail lamp , Stop lamp |, Signal Lamp and Room Lamp that
jointly developed with automotive manufacturer in specific models.

In addition to the core products, the Company also manufactures all kinds of

-Dies & molds in support of the core business and for sale to other industnal operatars. The

details of the dies & molds and design segment are not identified in this filing because their sales

account for only 1.80% of the Company's total sales.

Certificate of Promotion

The company received investment promotion from The Board Of Investment total 18

certificates of promotion as follows :

(1) Manufacture Automotive Bulbs (Certificate of Promotion No, 1038/50r. Aor.2533)
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(2) Manufacture Automotive Lamps (Certificate of Promotion No. 1044/2527)
(3) Manufacture Die & Mold (Certificate of Promotion No. 1214/Sor. Aor.22530)

(4) Manufacture Die & Mold (Certificate of Promotion No. 1078/Sor. Aor.2533)

(5) Manufacture of Automotive Lighting Equipment and parts

(Certificate of Promotion No. 1279/Sor. Aor.2533)
(6) Research & Development of Automotive Lighting Equipment

(Certificate of Promotion No. 1176/2534)
(7) Manufacture Dic & Mold (Certificate of Promotion No 1767/2538)
(8) Manufacture of automotive Lighting Equipment, Machine or Electrical

(Certificate of promotion No. 5675/2539)
(9) Manufacture Electronic Bulbs  (Certificate of promotion No. 1016/2541)
(10) Manufacture Engineering Plastic parts

(Certificate of Promotion No, 1017/2541)
(11) Manufacture of automotive Lighting Equipment, Machine or Electrical

(Certificate of Promotion No, 4290/2341)
(12) Manufacture of automotive Lighting Equipment, Machine or Electrical

(Certificate of promotion No. 4573/2541)
(13) Manufacture Dhe & Mold (Certificate of Promotion No 1096/2543)
(14) Electronic Design (Certificate of promotion No. 1294 (2)/2545)
(15) Manufacture and repair Dhe & Mold

(Certificate of promotion No. 1539 (2)/2545)

(16) Manufacture of Automotive Parts c

(Certificate of Promotion No. 1545 (2)/2546)
(17) International Standard Lamp for economic car

(Certificate of Promotion No.1631(2)/2012)
(18) Manufacture and repair Die & Mold

(Certificate of promotion No.2216(2)/2013)

Now the company have right from received investment promotion from The Board Of
Investment total 2 certificates of promotion as follows :

1. Certificate of Promotion No. 1631 (202012 | was 1ssued on 22 May 2012 to engage in
the international standard Lamp economic car , category 4.10 vehicle part production . The privileges
and benefits under Certificate of Promotion No. 1631(2)/2012 include the following: Certificate

1. Be exempted from import duty on machinery as approved by the BOI

2. Has been a reduction of 90% of the incoming rate to import raw material or necessary
material required for use in the production of distributors in the country for 1 year from the first day
of imported. The raw and necessary matenial must not be same as made in a similar quality to the
imports, and a sufficient quantity to supply them and in term and conditions in the time of the BOI to
stipulate,

3. Be exempt the income tax , net profit from operations that have been promoted but not
exceed 100% of the total investment , excluding land and current capital for 8 years from the date of
the income from the operation. In the calculation of net income that including income from the sale

of defect from productions.
THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY UMH‘EIJ“
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The loss of business during the income tax exemption , that losses can be deducted lrom the
net profit after the peniod of exemption from mcome tax that for a period not exceeding five years
from the date of expiration of the period , by deducting from net income of any year or many year.

4, The dividend from the promoted has exempted that to not calculation for the income tax |
duration the period of exemption right in income tax.

5. Be exempted from import duties on raw and necessary materials that imported for use in
production to export in a period of 1 year from the first date of 1imported.

6. Be exempted from import duties for the imports to exports for a period of 1 year form the
first date of import.

2, The certificate of promotion No.2216(2)/2013 dated September 4, 2013 to engage in the
manufacture of molds and mold repair category 4.2 Manufacture of machinery. Equipment and
parts , the rights and privileges as follows:

1. Be exempted from import duty on machinery as approved by the BOI

2. Beexempt the Income tax , Net profit from operations that have been promoted but not
exceed 100% of the total mvestment, excluding land and current capital for s yvears from the date of
the income from the operation.

In the calculation of net income that including income from the sale of defect from
productions.

The loss of business during the income tax exemption , that losses can be deducted from the
net profit after the period of exemption from income tax for a period not exceeding s years from the

date of expiration of the period , by deducting from net income of any year or many year.

3. The dividend from the promoted has exempted that to not calculation for the income tax |
duration the period of exemption right in income tax,

4. Be exempted from import duties on raw and necessary materials that imported for use in
production to export in a period of 1 year from the first date of import.

5. Be exempted from import duties for the imports to exports for a period of 1 year from the

first date of import.
The general conditions and project conditions as follows:

General Condition

1. Use land that is permitted to engage in activities that promote only.

2. The machine that has approved the exemption or reduction of import duty in accordance
with privileges.

3. Raw and necessary material to apply preferences in promote activities only ,and must be
submitted for approval to import not less than 2 months,

4. Must provide Income — expenses statement for the promoted business separately from the
other business for the purpose of calculating other net income that is exempted from income tax.

5. Raw matenials and necessary material must be a specific product or assembly that 15 used
to export product and product from promoted business.

6. Shall provide and protection system to prevent environmental damage or a danger or
nuisance to the neighboring .

7. Quality of products from manufactured or assembled. Must be in accordance with
international standards.
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Project Conditions

I. Machinery for the promoted business must be a new machine and purchasing within
March 4 2016,
2. The operation must be completed within :s months from the date of the promotion,
3. The implementation of sigmficant projects have been promoted in the following.
3.1 Kind of produet : Mold and Mold Repair
3.2 Size of the business. The production capacity for Mold , about 100 sets and Mold
repair 50 sets per vear. (Working time 16 hours / day : 300 days / year) , outgrowth

15 defect from productions
4. Minimum investment (Excluding land and current capital) not less than + million Baht

5. Income tax exemption worth up not over than 190,000,000 baht,

3.2 Market and competition
a. Policy and marketing

Because of the limited competition in thas industry, the Company's strategy 1s to manufacture
high-quality products at a reasonable price. The pricing policy is based on the cost of manufacturing
with a standard profit margin. The Company also has a policy of expanding additional lines of
automotive products to meet the demand in the automotive market.

The Company's customers include manufacturers and distnibutors of motorcycles and
motorcars (passenger cars and commercial vehicles). The Sittipol 1919 Co., Ltd. is the Company's
dealer in automotive spare parts that The Company has not paid any compensation to dealers.

Distribution channels and customer base
|. Local channels
1.1 Original equipment market: The products are sold directly to local assembly plants in
Thailand. Usually, they are used in the manufacturing process or kept as spare parts.
1.2 Replacement equipment market: The products are sold through the Company's dealer,
The Sittipol 1919 Co., Lid. In this market, the products are as replacements,

2, International channels
2.1 Original equipment market: The products are sold directly to local assembly plants

abroad. Usually, they are used for manufacturing or kept as spare parts.

2.2 Inter-member market: The products are export sold to each international member of the
Stanley Group which engages in automotive assembly. This is to enable those members to assure the
avatlability and quality of their stock. Deliveries are made on their orders from time to time on the
basis of a single source. That means the Company is the sole manufacturer and distributor of these
kinds of products for the Stanley Group worldwide. This creates economies of scale and efficient
cost control. For some members in the Stanley Group, if only a few items are required and 1t is not
cost-effective to order them directly from another manufacturer, an occasional delivery from the

Company is a better alternative.
THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY umn‘ﬁn“
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In 2018, The company had domestic sale approximately 70.67% of the company total sale ,
increased 12.49% from the previous year which was the automotive industry in stagnation of
economic conditions and export sales approximately 29.33% of the company's total sales | increased
6.61% that sale to foreign customers are in Asia, Europe and the USA.

b. Competition situation

The Company's policy in competitive to practice under the rules of the competition. Will not
take any action as a monopoly or reduce competition or limited competition

In the local automotive hghting equipment industry, the competition 1s hmited with very few
market players. Basically, there are only 3 main manufacturers in Thailand. However, if compare
by size of company . the potential for production and competitiveness there 1s only 1| company that be

similar to the company and another are difference size . The company has advantages in terms of
diverse customer base. because the Company's business integrates research and development,
design, moulding, manufacturing, assembly and quality control. As regards cost, the Company can
take advantage of its being a listed company so can obtaining lower cost financing through the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. Currently, the company estimates the market share in high level that
considering from the company's current products are in current automotive in Thailand . The
customer is always evaluation satisfied in our quality, price and delivery .

The barriers to entry are high for the following reasons:

1.Significant investment is needed to acquire the costly machinery, tools and devices,
including the equipment for quality testing.

2. The specialist training for workers is expensive and time-consuming.

3.The business naturally relies on specialised technology and must conform strictly to each
country's safety standards.

4 The Company benefits greatly from the modern technology and valuable experience
transferred from its joint venture partner, Stanley Electric Co., Ltd. of Japan, thereby increasing
customers' confidence in the Company.

Because there are so few operators in this industry, the Company has the bargaining power
over its customers at a particular level. However, the course of business is still based on the facts,
especially, the basis of the actual cost of manufacturing plus standard profit.

Despite the limited number of operators in this industry, there are many suppliers. The
Company has a non-monopoly policy with suppliers so that it can negotiate for the lowest price
possible,

The automotive industry plays an essential role in the country’s overall industrial
development. Structurally, the automotive industry is linked to a wide range of other industries,
That starts with basic materials, such as steel, plastic, rubber, glass and animal hides and the
manufacture of automotive parts. The final process ends with assembly.
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Over the past decade, Thailand's automotive industry has improved substantially, making
Thailand the largest manufacturer of vehicles and component parts in Asian. The growth of the
automotive industry over the past decade can be classified by types of vehicles: motorcars and
motorcyeles | details as follows

Cunntity Prodoction of Matnrear
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Remark : Not shown graph of motoreyele production data because production and sale are same level

In 2018, the situation of the automotive industry in Thailand In the overall car segment, both
domestic production and sales the motorcycle sales decreased slightly. According to the overall

THA| STAMLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMF'I‘EI:!“
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Naturally, the Company's business aims at the OEM market while the replacement market is
its secondary channel. Therefore, the growth of the Company's business over the past decade has
been in line with the direction of the country's automotive industry.

3.3 Supplies and services

a. Manufacturing and raw material

The Company has three manufacturing plants as follows:

l.Automotive bulb plant : capacity = 113 million pieces per year

All production from customers’ orders and the other portion supplies the Company’s lamp

2. Automotive Lamp plant : capacity = 40 million pieces per year
All production from customers’ orders

3. Die and Mold plant: Production = 400 pieces per vear
All production from customers' orders and the other portion supplies the Company's lamp

The Company currently acquires 71% of materials from local supphiers and 29% import from

foreign suppliers. That their price has not changed significantly over the years. Details of local and
foreign acquisition of matenials over the past three vears are as follows

Unit : Million Baht

BFCRMATION

Sources 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Local 10,341.66 | 70.67 4,258.22 70,57 3,397,57 67.95
Foreign 429296 2933 1,775.76 29.43 1,602.63 32.05
Total 14,634.62 | 100.00 6,033.98 | 100.00 5,000.20 | 100.00

The majority of materials are supplied by Stanley Electric Co_ Ltd. of Japan and other

company members in the Stanley Group for the following reasons:

1. The material has charactenistic features and can be acquired in large quantities from a

single source to save costs. Conversely, it 1s not cost-effective for the Company itself to manufacture

the material in Thailand because of the low demand.
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2. A large order is necessary for cost-effectiveness. However, local demand 1s not large
enough. In other words, a small order increases the cost. The Company has therelore opted to buy
only essential material locally out of the total quantities obtained from Stanley Electric Co., Ltd. of
Japan. This is to reduce the cost of procurement and the risk of dead stock.
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3. A single source provides the material on the basis of the alliance among the members of
the Stanley Group, resulting in economies of scale. The material is distributed to all other members
worldwide.

The price of material provided by Stanley Electric Co., Ltd. of Japan and the Stanley Group is
fixed at a reasonable and favourable level. The pricing formula is the actual cost plus administrative
expenses. If some kinds of general material can be acquired from other suppliers on favourable
conditions, the Company has absolute discretion to proceed with that procurement without abiding
by anv commitments within the Stanley Group.,

b. Environmental impacts

In every production process , The Company to realized the effective to do not adversely
affect the environment. For the painting process, a water shield and sludge disposal system are in
place to prevent dust in the air. In this regard, the Company has engaged to the company which
holds a waste disposal licence, to dispose of and treat the waste. Consequently, no pollution is
emitted outside the Company's facilities. That means the environment suffers no impact from the
Company's operations.

Now the company has completely Waste Water Treatment |, the waste water from all factory
will be sent in for proper treatment whose water level can be measured for the standard | that can be
brought back for reused in production process and other activity such as toilet flushing , water plant
and Lamp? factory has reuse it in painting process and flushing water for toilet , and other factory
are adjusting this water for appropriate use. Therefore . the company have not any affect to
environment.

In all circumstances, the Company recognises the importance of environmental conservation.
It has campaigned for environmental management and was awarded IS0O14001 certification . The
company have designed our products to be envircnmentally friendly (green products) by relying on
chemical-free substances or reducing the use of poisonous chemicals such as mercury (Hg), lead (Pb),
chromium 6 (Cr6+), cadmium (Cd) and flame retardants (PBB & PBDE).

In addition, we also provide a green space project in the company , by providing a tree
Planting activity on the last working day of the year , Enhancing the green space in the company and
create a habit of environmental importance to employees.

The company has no disputes or litigation regarding environmental issues from local
communities.

3.4 Undelivered Projects
- None -
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4. Risk lactors

In 2018, Thai Stanley Electric assessed major risk factors and determined measures to
minimize them, of which details are as follows.

1. Manufacturing risk

Our customers are our first priority. We underline the importance of building trust and
confidence in product quality and on-time delivery for customer’s best satisfaction. We conducted
surveillance against nisk that could disrupt our manufacturing process and therefore damage
machines or prevent raw material from being delivered to suppliers. Some of the risk management
plans for our manufacturing activity previously prepared included:

A database of secondary/reserved producers of raw materials in case main suppliers failed to
deliver raw materials;

*Regular assessment of suppliers;

<A preventive machinery maintenance plan and a supplementary plan that would allow us to
adjust the manufacturing area in case of emergency.

In addition, Thai Stanley Electric was accredited [ATF16949 and 1SO%001 for quality
management system where a strict internal preventive-based inspection system to monitor quality of
raw materals, the manufacturing process and product delivery to customers was implemented.

2 Financial risk
The Company does not have any risk relating to financial liquidity. However, since we
import raw materials and equipment and export our products, mainly in Japanese Yen and US Dollar,

we could be exposed to exchange rate volatility. We minimized this risk by buyving forward contracts
based on the policy to maintain forward contracts to 50% of our net habilities in foreign currencies.

3. Computer and IT risk
We have increasingly introduced IT systems into our operation to collect data and enhance
production capability in the manufacturing process, which means we could be exposed to IT safety

risk or technology threat resulting from system defect or cyber attack.

To control and prevent the risk, we formulated rules and regulations regarding the use of IT
system. IT disaster prevention plans and backup plans were drafted to prevent and manage the nisk.
Internal communication to create awareness in this subject was also conducted on a regular basis.

4. Safety . Occupational Health and Environment nisk

The Company underlines the importance of quality of life of employees ranging from
promoting operation safety to reducing workplace and out-of-work accidents and compliance with
occupational safety and environment work rules and regulations.

The safety policy and plan was formulated and responsible persons were designated to
supervise the safety. Campaigns to promote safety work culture were organized. An emergency
response plan was written with a regular drill. We were certified to OHSAS18001 and recognized on
a continuous basis as an award in the outstanding occupational health and safety.

Regarding the environment, measures to ensure that our operation has no effect to
communities and the environment were implemented. We have a wastewater treatment plant and
quality of wastewater and emission was monitored to ensure no environmental impact. Industrial
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waste was managed in compliance with the laws and the company was certified to ISO14001
environmental management system,

5. Public utility risk
We heavily depend on public utilities ranging from electricity to running water in the

production process. In case of emergency when there 1s a blackout or a shortage of water, this could
disrupt our production process, which means we won’t be able to deliver products to our customers,
As a result, we implemented preventive measures by acquinng additional electnieity from private
companies, build our own water supply facility and plan a regular maintenance activity.

6. Risk from natural and other disasters
The Company was affected by Thailand’s major flood in 2011 and is very much aware of the
urgency to be prepared for the disaster. That’s why we have put in place an emergency response plan

and conduct a regular drll. In addition, we also recogmze the rnisk from fire since it could create
extensive damage and impact.

The Company have prepared preventive measures through strict surveillance, An annual fire
drill is conducted every year. A Top Gun Team has been formed for emergency response.

The Company continue to place priority to the overall operation as well as our pronuse to
deliver goods to customers regardless of circumstances. That’s why any consideration about the nsk
matenally related to business disruption must be jomtly reviewed by the Risk Management
Committee. A Business Continuity Plan (BCP) must be drafted and selected for every department to
jointly conduct a drill on an annual basis. Identificd matenal risks for which a BCP was written in
2018 included fire, flood, blackout, failure of Information system and epidemic.

In 2018, we selected the BCP affected by fire to exercise an annual drill with a purpose to
keep continuing our operation despite the disaster. The department, which was responsible for this
risk, was able to control and maintain efficiency while handling the situation together with other
relevant umits. It also managed to properly retum the affected location to the onginal condition,

Since being founded, Thai Stanley Electric has seen no change in its structure of major
shareholders or its business policy, which means no impact so far to its major shareholders and the
management.




5. Structure of Securities holding and management

5.1 Securities of Company

(1) The Company has paid up capital of 383.125 million Baht and fully paid up,
divided into 76,625,000 ordinary shares each ol baht 5 per share.

(2) Other Share
- None

5.2 Shareholders
(1) Major sharcholder list

(A) Top ten shareholders as at the last closing book date July 13, 2018

Number of Share

Shareholder Name F— % of holding
| Stanley Electric group 27,091,250 35.36
- Stanley Electric Holding Asia-Pacific PTE 26,756,750 34.92
Asian Stanley International Co_ Ltd. 334,500 0.44
2. Lee-issaranukul Family 22,620,196 2952
- Mrs. Pamndee 1.ee-isaranukul 7.695 876 10,04
- Mr.Apichart Lee-1ssaranukul 4,500,036 5.87
Mr. Thanong Lee-issaranukul 3.208.920 4.19
Mrs Pinyal Lee-issaranukul 2,170,370 283
Mrs.Pormnthip Sethiwan 2,162,670 2.82
The Sittipol (1919) 2,556,074 334
Sopa-Kanok International Co. Ltd. 326,250 0.43
3. Nortrust Nomunee Ltd—CL AC 1,975,500 258
4. Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 1,923,010 2.51
5. Aberdeen Small Cap Fund 1,915,300 2.50
6. BNP Paribas Securities Service , London Branch 1,805,000 236
7. Aberdeen Long Term Equity Fund 1,673 500 2.18
3. Aberdeen Growth Fund 1.619 600 2.11
9. Mr.Kenneth Rudy Kamon 1,303,800 1.70
10, State Street Bank and Trust Company 945,234 1.23

(www thaistanley.com) before the Annual General Meeting,
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(B) Major Shareholders to participate in its operations by sending member to be a board
of director.

Shareholder Name Number of Share | % of holding
(Share

1. Stanley Electric group * 27,091,250 35.36
Stanley Electric Holding Asia-Pacific PTE 26.756,750 34.92
Asian Stanley International Co.,Ltd. 334,500 0.44

2. Lee-issaranukul Family 22 620,196 29.52
Mrs.Porndee Lee-isaranukul 7.695 876 10.04
Mr.Apichart Lee-issaranukul 4.500.036 5.87
Mr.Thanong Lee-issaranukul 3.208.920 4.19
Mrs.Pimjai Lee-issaranukul 2,170,370 2.83
- Mrs.Pornthip Sethiwan 2,162,670 2.82
- The Sittipol (1919) 2,556,074 3.34
- Sopa-Kanok International Co.,Ltd. 326,250 0.43

* Stanley Electric , Japan holding 100% in Stanley Electric Holding Asia-Pacific FTE |
Smgapore and holding 67 .50% 1n Asian Stanley International Co., Lud.

*# Lee-issaranukul Family is the major shareholder and executive management in Sittipol
1919 ( holding 81%) and Sopa Kanok International (Holding 80%)

5.3 Other Securities
-MNone

6. Dividend payment policy

The dividend payment policy of the company is that the rate of dividend payment of the
Company is not less than 30 per cent of the net profits deduction of tax. (The Company Only)

Fiscal Year 2017*% | 2016 2015 2014 2013
Earnings Per Share (Baht) ** | 2165 | 1658 17.01 15.11 19.41
Dividend Per Share { Baht) 7.00 5.00 5.00 480 | 6.00
Dividend Raito (%) ¥%¥ 36.03 | 3415 32.68 34.53 3Z5]

* Fiscal Year 2017 as | Apnl 2017 - 31 March 2018
** From the equity method is applied *%% From the company only

THA| STAMLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMF'I‘EI:!“
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7. Management Structure

7.1 Board of Director and Meeting

Name Position Board of Director Mecting
Number of Number of Attend
Meeting the Meeting
Mr. Apichart Lee-issaranukul Executive Chairman 7 T 7
Mr. Koichi  Nagano President 7 7
Mr. Thanong Lec-issaranukul Director 7 7
Mr. Tadao  Suzumura Director 7 7
Mrs. Pimjai  Lee-issaranukul Director 7 7
Mrs. Pomthip Scthiwan Director 7 6 W

Independent Director and

Mr.Kri Visav : : : T 7
r.Krisada g atetan Chairman Audit Committee
[ ' :
Wi Chickeatis Tanponnsitin | psudent Director-and 7 7
Audit Committee
e ; [ > (b)) o
Mr. Suchart Phisitvanich ndf:?::l.,nd-:nl ; irector and 7 6
Audit Committec
Mr. Picharn  Sukparangsce Independent Director 7 f)
1 T
5 3 x E.'. -ll.:l
Mr. Katsutosht | .
- hSHioshn Hhe Director 7 TV Conlerence — 63
"1
Mr. Toru Tanabe » [irector 7 3

[ TV Conlerence - 2)

Remark + Director worked at Japan.

*¥#* The reason of not attending the meeting (1) The director have oversea business.  (2) Suddenly sick

Authorized directors and condition
Mr. Apichart Lee-issaranukul or Mr. Thanong Lee-issaranukul sign with Mr.Koichi Nagano
or Mr.Tadao Suzumura and company seal.,

Board of directors meeting

The company has set the procedures and methods of the meeting in the regulations on the
board meeting of the company that must be held at least once every 3 months and all directors are
required to attend. There might be additional meeting if necessary. And according to the company's
regulations , in the Board of Directors' meeting, there must be at least half of the directors present at
the meeting and at least 1 independent director or audit committee member must attend the meeting
to constitute a quorum,

The resolution of the meeting of the board of directors requires the majority votes of the
directors present at the meeting. One member has one vote. In the case of equal votes, the chairman
of the board shall have the casting vote. The director having interests has no right to vote for that
agenda. The procedure of the meeting has been described in the rules of board of directors meeting.

AMNUAL REPORT 2018
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OF CASH FLOVS

Meeting schedule and key agenda have been set for the whole year in advance in order to
make sure the adequacy of time and the availability of the board members, The invitation letter is
sent out at least 14 days in advance both in Thai and in English. TV conference 1s also set up for the
board member who is on overseas business trip to join the meeting from abroad.

In the board of directors meeting, chairman of the board of directors and executive chairman
shall set the agendas together and screen the agendas proposed by directors. As there has not been
any one being appointed to replace the former chairman of the board; hence, executive chairman and
corporate secretary together shall set the meeting agendas.

Every time in the meeting, each director is required to report sale/holding of securities to the
meeting. The Company has not yet set a policy for directors and the executives to inform about
trading of shares at least one day in advance of trading to the Board of Directors,

For the normal business transactions, executives will report to the board meeting on the

quarterly basis,

The Meeting operation in FY2018

- Total numbers of Board of Directors meetings are 7 times. At every meeting, adequate
details in the form of supplementary documents will be sent out to the board members to study in
advance.

According to attendance record, 10 out of 12 members that working in Thailand and 2
members main working in Japan that had attended the meeting via TV Conference .

- Attend the every meeting ( 100%) 8 persons or 66.67%
- Attend the meeting 6 time (85.71%) 3 persons or 25.00%
- Attend the meeting 3 time (42.86%) | persons or 8.33%

The director does not attending the meeting that have oversea business trip

7.2 The Executive Board
On March 31,2019 the executive board name list are 6 persons as follows

Name Position

1. Mr. Apichart Lee-issaranukul Executive Chairman and Executive General Manager
Administration Division

2. Mr. Koichh Nagano President

3. Mr. Tadao Suzumura Director and Executive General Manager
Lighting Equipment Division

4. Mr. Kazunori Nakaii Exccutive General Manager - Marketing Division

3. Mr. Ko Kobayashi Executive General Manager - R&D Center

6. Mr. Etsuya Kawashima Executive General Manager - Die & Mold Division

Meeting of Executive Board The executive directors meeting will be held 4 times a month
and there might be additional meeting if necessary. Management or involved person might be invited

to give information directly to the meeting .
THAI STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY umrran“
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7.3 Company Secretary

The Board of Directors has appointed Mrs. Sudjai Srifuengfung. Held the position of
company secretary Since July 4, 2008 by the properties of the incumbent secretary of the Company
15 a5 follows:,

Company Secretary Practice requirements as set out in Section 39/15 and 89 /16 of the
Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4 ) Act 2551 which comes into force on 31 August 2551 with
responsibility. caution And honesty Including compliance with the legal regulations of the company's
objectives . Board of Directors The resolution of the shareholders of the Company Secretary are

required by law .

1. Establish and maintain the following documents.

A register of directors

B. Director Meeting Notice letter , Minutes of the Board meeting and company annual report

C. Notice of the annual general meeting of Shareholders. And the minutes of the

Shareholders meeting

2. Keeping report on interest filed by a director or executive and deliver a copy of the report
Stakeholders under Section 89/14, the Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit Commuttee
within 7 davs rom the date we receive the report,

3. Carry other According to the Commission the notification .

There 15 also the Company Secretary of the Company and other duties as assigned .

- Advise on the laws and regulations related . And best practices in governance and in the
activities of the Commission in accordance with the law.

- Served on the Board of Directors' meetings and shareholders meeting.

- Contact with other departments within the company. To comply with the resolutions of the

Board of Dircctors and sharcholders.

- Contact with regulatory agencies such as the SEC | the Stock Exchange of Thailand , and
overseeing the disclosure and reporting information to the regulatory agencies and the
public

- Provide orientation Advises directors to be appointed new,

- Other duties as assigned by the company




List of Directors, Managers, and Company Secretary

| Name — Surmmame
Position

Daie of Appointment
Age
Education Degree

Training

% ol Holding {as 31/03/201%)
Relations

Working Experience and position
- Listed Companies in SET

- Non Listed Companies

= Other
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Mr. Apichart Lee-issaranukul

Executive Chairman and Executive General Manager Administration

Division,
Year 988
S6

Honorary Doctor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering) |
Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi

Master of Business Administration

Oklahoma City University, USA,

Bachelor of Administration

The University of the Thai chamber of commerce.
Centificate Directors Certification program 8/2001]

Thai Institute of Director (10D))
Certilicate Executive Business and Invesiment Development
Institute of Business and Industrial Development (IBID)

7.09%

Son Mr.Vitya Lee-issaranukul and Mrs.Pomdee Lee-issaranukul
Brother Mr.Thanong Lec-issaranukul Mrs. Pimjai Lee-issaranukul
and Mrs. Pornthip Sethiwan

| 991 -Present
201 3-Present
2016-Present

1992-Present
| 993-Present
| 994-Present
| 995-Present
| 996-Present

1997 -Present
| 997-Present
| 999-Present
2000-Present
2003-Present
2006-Present
2006-Present
201 4=-Present
1993-Present
20022019

2004-2019

2019-Present
2017-Present

2019-Present

Director  Inoue Rubber (Thailand) Public Co. Lid.
Executive Chairman Thai Stanley Electric PCL
Independent Dhrector and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Leo Global Logistic PCL

President Sopa-Kanok International Co..Lid

Director  Pacific Industries Co.Lid.
Director  Bussayapan Co. Lid.
Director  Sungold Holding Limited

Executive Viee President
Asian Stanley International Co.,Lid

Director  Sirivit Stanley Co., Lid,
Director  Daido Sittipol Co.Lid.
Chairman Lao Stanley Co.,Lid.

Director Vietnam Stanley Eleciric Co., Lid.
Director Wangchula Co.,Lid.

Director  PT Indonesia Stanley Eleetric

Director Total Onil (Thailand) Co.,Ltd,

Director Pacific Auto Part (Thailand) Co.,Lid.
Deputy Chairman  Stanley Thailand Foundation
Director  Investor Club Association

Executive Director  Investor Club Association
Vice Chairman Investor Club Association
Chairman Mitsubishi Motors Cooperation Couneil
(Thailand) : MCC

Advisor Toyota Co-operation Club  (TCC)
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2. Mame — Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

% of Holding (as 31/03/2019)
Relations

Working Expericnce and position
- Listed Companies in SET

- Non Listed Company

- Other

3.Name - Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age
Education Degree

% of Holding (as 31/03/2019)

Relations

Working Experience and position
- Listed Company in SET

- Non Listed Company

Mr. Koichi Nagano

President

July 3, 2009

39

Bachelor of The Faculty of Engincering
Hosel University , JAPAN

0.0013%

Mone

2009-Present  Director
201 3-Present
2010-Present
2013-Present
2013-Present
2011 3-Present

2001 1-Present

Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
President Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
Sirivit — Stanley Co., Ltd.
Director Top Hightech Co. Lid
Director PT Indonesia Stanley Electric

Director

Honorary Chairman Lao Stanley Co,. Ltd.
Deputy Chairman  Stanley Thailand Foundation

Mr. Tadao Suzumura

Director and Executive General Manager
Lighting Equipment Division

June 1 | 2016

39

Bachelor Faculiy of Engineering |

Tokar Unmiversity , JAPAN

None

None

2009 -2015  Department Manager
New Model Development Control Department
Thai Stanley Electrie PCL.,

2015 -2016  Deputy Executive General Manager , Lighting

Equipment Division

Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
2016 - Present Director and Executive General Manager
Lighting Equipment Division
Thai Stanley Electric PCL
Section Manager , New Maodel Control Section |
Hadano Plant , Stanley Electric Co.,Lid.
2017 — Present Second Deputy General Director

Vietnam Stanley Electric Co. Ltd.

2007 — 2009




4. Name - Surname
Position

Date ol Appoiniment
Agpe

Education Degree

Training
% ol Holding (as 31/03/2019)

Relations

Working Expenence and postlion
- Listed Company in 5ET

- Non Listed Company

- Other

J.Name - Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

Traming
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Mr. Thanong Lec-issaranukul

Direclor
Year 1983
59

Bachelor of Business Administration — Commercial |
Manzan Umiversity, JAPAN,

Certificate Director Accreditation Program 1362017
Thai Institute of Director (10D)

3.41%

Son Mr.Vitva Lee-issaranukul and Mrs Porndee Lee-issaranukul
Brother Mr.Apichart Lee-issaranukul. Mrs. Pimgai Lec-1ssaranukul
and Mrs. Pomthip Sethiwan

1953 - Present
1986 - Present
20017 - Present

1986 - Present
1993 - Present
1995 - Present
1995 - Present
19935 - Present
1995 - Present
1996 - Present
1996 - Presemt
1996 - Present
1998 - Present
20001 - Present
2003 — Present
20006 — Present
20114 - Present
2015 - Present

2015 = Present
2001 - Present
2015 - Present

Director Thar Stanley Electnc PCL.

Dircetor  Inoue Rubber { Thailand) PCL.
Independent Director and Chairman M Vision PCL.

Managing Director  The Sutipol 1919 Co., Lid.
Dircctor  Sopa-Kanok International Co., Lid.
Executive Director - Total Oil (Thailand) Co.,Lid.
Sungold Holding Co., Lid.

Director  That Incac Component Co. Lid.
Dircctor  IRC (Asia) Research Co, Lid.

Viee Chairman  Daido Siuipol Co_o. Lid.
Executive Dircector  Seng Npun Hong Co., Ltd.
Chairman  Bike Clinic Co. Lid.

Director  The Studio Production Co.,Ltd.
Chairman  Smart Sport Promotion Co. Lid.
Director Wangchula Co. Lid.

[Mrector Bussavapan Co Lid.

Director Pacific Autopart (Thaland) Co,, Ltd.
Dirgctor The Studio 888

Director Somic Design (Thailand) Co.,Lid.
Chairman  Kanok-Sopa Foundation

Public Relations Subcommittee

Organ Donation Center  Thai Red Cross Sociely

Direclor

Mrs. Pimjai Lee-issaranukul

Director
Year 1983
58

Master ol Business Administration operation Management,
Drexel University, USA.

Bachelor of Engincering  Chulalongkom University

Traming Director Certilicate Program course 37/2003 from
Traming Role of the Chairman Program course 3172013
Traming Risk Management Commuttee Program course 1/2013
Thai Institute of Director Association (1003)

Capital Market Academy Leadership Capital Market (CMA)
Diploma, National Delense College |
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% of Holding {as 31/03/2019)
Relations

Working Experience and Position
- Listed Companies in SET

- Mon Listed Companies

- Others

fi. Name — Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Ape

Fducation Degree

Traming

% of Holding {as 31/03/2019)
Relations

Waorking Experience and Position
- Lisied Company in SET

- Non Listed Company

The National Delense Course  class 26/2013
wNational Defense College (NDC)

Business Revolution and Innovation Network Batch 1 (BRAIN 1)

The Federation of Thai industries

3.70%

Daughter Mr.Vitya Lee-issaranukul and Mrs. Porndee
Lee-issaranukul

Sister Mr Apichart Lee-issaranukul | Mre Thanong Leeaissaranukul

and Mrs Pornthip Sethiwan

|983-Present
201 3-Present
1993-Present
[995-Present
1995-Present
1995-Present
2001 -Present
2003- Present
2006- Present

2013 = Present Honorary Chairman Inoac Tokai (Thailand) Co. Lid.

[hrector

Tha Stanley Electric PCL.

Chairman Inoue Rubber (Thailand) PCL

Direetor

Sopa-Kanok international Co._Lid.

Chairman Thai Inoac Component Co., Lid.

Direcior
Dircetor
Dircetor
Director
Director

IRC Asia Reseach Co. Lid.
Sungold Holding Co.,Lid.

Kinno Hoshi Engineering Co. Ltd.
Wangchula Co. Lid.

Dido Sittipol Co. Lad.

2010- Present  Global Advisory Board Member

Babson College , Ma, LS A

20012- Present Dhirector of Risk Management Club

Thai Listed Companies Association

2016 = Present Director Thailand Capital Market Academy

Mrs, Pomthip
Director

Year 1990

52

Sethiwan

Bachelor of Business Adminstration, Faculty of Commerce and
Accounmance, Chulalongkorn University,

Certificate [Director Accreditation Program 5720003
Role of the Compensation Commttee 17/2013
Thar Institute of Director (1013)

2.82%

Daughter MrVitya Lee-issaranukul and Mrs. Porndee
Lee-1ssaranukul

Sister Mr. Apichart Lee-issaranukul, Mr. Thanong Lec-1ssaranukul

and Mrs. Pimjan  Lee-issaranukul

[OE0 - Presen
1991 - Present
985 - Presemt
1990 - Present
19490 - Presemt

1993 - Present
1993 = Present
1996 - Present

Dhrecior That Stanley Eleciric PCL
Director  Inoue Rubber {Thailand) PCL.
Director Seng Mgun Hong Co. Ltd.
Executive Director  The Sittpol 1919 Co. Lad.
Managing Direclor

Pacific Indusiries (Thailand) Co.,Lid.
Director  Sopa-Kanok International Co.,Lid.
Director Bike Clinic Co.,Lid,

Diareetor  Daido Sittipol Co. Lid.

THAI STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED




71.Name — Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

% of Holding

Relations

Working Experience and Position
- Listed Companies in SET
- Non Listed Companies

8.Mame — Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

% ol Holding (as 31/03/2019)
Relations
Working Experience and Position
- Listed Company in SET
- Non Listed Companics
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20003 - Present
20006 - Present
2014 — Present
2015 — Present

Director Wangchula Co., Lid.

Director IRC Asia Research Co. Lid.
Director Pacific Auto Part (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
Director Sonic Design (Thailand) Co.,Lid.

Mr. Toru Tanabe

Director
June 26 , 2012
o0

Bachelor Faculty ol Electric Engincering |
Hoseir Umiversity , JAPAN

Mone
None

2012 — Present
2017- Present
2012 -2019
2012 — Present
2014 — Present

20114 — Present
2014 — Present
2014 — Present
2014 — Present
20114 — Present
20014 — Present
2014 — Present
2014 — Present
2015 — Present

Mr, Katsutoshi
Director

July 4, 2014
5%

Director Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

Managing Director Stanley Electric Co.,Lid.
Director SL Lighting Corporation

Director Stanley Electric U.S.Co, Inc

Dircctor Asian Stanley Intemational Co.,Inc.
Director Stanley Electric Sales of India PVT. Lid.
Director

Stanley Electric Trading (Shenzhen) Co.,Lid.
Director

Stanley Electric Holding Asia-Pacific PTE Lid.
Director Stanley Electric Korea Co. Lid.
Director Stanley Electric (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
Director Vietnam Stanley Electric Co., Lid.
Director Lumax Industrial Lid,

Director PT.Indonesia Stanley Electric Co., Lid.
Director Tianjin Stanley Electric Technology Co., Lid.

lino

Bachelor of Economy Industnal Management |
Nihon University , Japan

None
None

20114 - Present
2008 - Present

2012 - Present

2013 - Present

Director Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

President Stanley Electnic PAL Co.,Lid.

President Stanley Elecine Holding of Amernica ,
President Stanley Electric Holding Europe Co.,Lid.
President

Stanley Electric Holding Asia-Pacilic PTE | Lid.
President

Stanley Electric (China) Investment Co..Ltd.
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9 Name - Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

Traimng

Yo of Holding (as 31/03/201%)

Relations

Working Experience and Position
- Listed Company is SET

- Non Listed Company

10.Name - Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

Training

% of Holding (as 31/03/2019%)

Relations

Working Expenence and Position
- Listed Company in SET

- Non Listed Company

Mr. Krisada Visavateeranon
Independent Director and Audit Committee Chairman
October 15, 1999
6y
Master of Engineering  Kyoto University, JAPAN
Bachelor of Engineering Kyoto University , JAPAN
Centificate - Directors Certification program
Audit Committee Program
Thai Institute of Directar (10D)
Nong
None
1999 — 2010  Independent Director and Audit Committee
Thai Stanley Electrnic PCL.
2010 = Present  Independent Director and Chairman

Audit Committee

Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
2009 — Present  Audit Committee Textile Prestige PCL
2012 — Present  Director

Wazeda Education (Thailand) Co.,Lid.

Mr.Chokechai Tanpoonsinthana

Independent Director and Audit Commitiee

March 31, 2000

71

Master of Business Administration

{Quantitative Analysis & Finance)

University of Wisconsin ( Madison Campus)

Master of Civil Engineering

University of Wisconsin at Madison, U.S.A.

Bachelor of Civil Engineering (Structure)

Chulalongkorn Umversity

Centificate Director Certification Program 3/2000 |

Monitoring Fraud Risk Management 1/2009,

Audit Commuttee Program 282009

Monitoring the Internal Audit Function 6/2009 |

Monitoring the sysiem of Internal Control and Risk Management
72009, Monitoring the Quality of Financial Reporting 12/2010
Than Institute of Dircctor (10D)

None

Mone

2000-Present Independent Director and Audit Committee
That Stanley Electne PCL.
2003-Present Independent Director and
Audit Commitice Chairman
Advance Information Technology PCL.
2013 — Present Independent Director and Audit Committee
Witcorp Co.,Lid.




| 1.Name — Surname
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- Non Listed Company
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Mr.Suchart Phisitvanich

Independent Director and Audil Commitiee
June 7, 2010

73

Master of Electnical Enginecring

Lowisiana Tech University USA.

Bachelor ol Electrical Engineering
Chulalongkom University

Certificate - Director Certification Program ,
Audit Committee Program

Financial Statements for Dircctor

Board Matter & Trends 6/2018

Thai Institute of Director. (10D)

None

None
2010-Present  Independent Director and Audit Committee
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
Executive Advisor

Navanakorm PCL.
2006-Present  Director  Investor Club Association
2011 - Present Monitoring and Evaluation Committee
Mimistry of Industry

2006-Present

Mr.Picharmm Sukparangsee

Independent Director

June 7, 2010

a8

Master of Faculty of Law Umversity of Warwick , ENGLAND
Masiter of Faculiy of Law University of London , ENGLAND
Bachelor of Faculty of Law Thammasart University
Certificate  Director Certification Program

Board Matiers & Trends 6/2018

Thai Institute of Director, (10D)

MNone

Nong

2010 - Present  Independent Direclor
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

1987 - 2005 Associate /Pariner
International Legal Counsellors Thailand
2005 -2015 Direclor

Siam City Law Offices Limited
Managing Director
Bangkok Global Law OfTices Limited

2015 — Present

CENERAL
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13.Name — Surname
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Date of Appointment
Aue

Education Degree

% of Holding (as 31/03/2019)
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Workimg Experience and Position
- Listed company in SET

- Non Listed Company

14 Name — Surname
Position

Date of Appointment
Age

Education Degree

% ol Holding (as 31/03/2019)

Relations

Working Experience and Position
- Listed Company in SET

- Non Listed Company

Mr. Kazunon Makai

Executive General Manager Marketing Division
November 6, 2018

57

Bachelor of Arts , Law and Politics Department

Law and Politics College . Rikkyo University , JAPAN
None

None

2018 — Present Executive General Manager |
Marketing Division
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

2001 -2011 General Manager

Electronics Sales Division

Stanley Eleectric Co.,Ltd.

General Manager LED Division

Sale Department

Stanley Electric Co.,Lid.

President

Stanley Eleetric (Asian Pacifie ) Co., Lid.

2011 -2016

2016 - 2018

Mr.Etsuya Kawashima

Executive General Manager Die&Mold Division
February | , 2017

52

Bachelor Department of Mechanical Engincening |
Nihon University , Japan

None
None
2010-2013 Advisor, Die & Mold Division ,
Thai Stanley Electric PCL,
2013 - 2015 Department Manager ,
Die & Mold Division ,
Thai Stanley Electnic PCL.
2015 -2017 Semor Advisor
Die & Mold Division |
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.,
2017 - Present Executive General Manager,

Dic&Mold Division
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
Chief of Section , Die & Mold Division
Rescarch & Development Center
Stanley Electne Co.,Lid.

1999 - 2010
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Mr.Koji Kobayashi

Executive General Manager R&D Center
July 5, 2013

56

Bachelor of Mechanical Engincering |
Moeiser University |, Japan

None
None
2013 - Present  Chief of Center R&D Center
Thai Stanley Electric PCL
1986- 2011 Engineering Technology Center Division
Stanley Electric Co.,Lid.
2001-2013 Manager Engincering Technology Center Division

Stanley Electric Co.,Ltd.

Mrs.Sudjar Srifuengfung

Company Secretary

July 4 . 2008

()

Bachelor of Accountancy  Thammasart University

Effective Minute Taking (EMT)

Corporate Secretary Development Program ~Chulalongkorn University
Company Secretary Program - Thai Institute of Director, (10D)
Registration system of listed companics

FTI Business Administration FIBA # |

The Federation of Thai Industries

None

MNone

1999 - 2002  Departmeni Manager
Accounting & Financial Department
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

2002 -2015 Deputy Executive General Manager
Adminmistiration Division
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

1999 — 2008 Board of Director Secretary
Thai Stanley Electnc PCL.

1999 -2013  Audit Commitiee Secretary

Thai Stanley Eleetric PCL
2008 — Present  Company Sccretary
Thai Stanley Electric PCL,
Advisor
Admimstration Division
Thai Stanley Electric PCL.
2002 = Present  Director Lao Stanley Co. Litd.

2015 — Present
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Shareholding Proportion of The Board of Directors and Top Management

Spouse ! Minor Children

-

Name Position Amount of Amount of Trading Sharcholding
Shares Shares during the Proportion
As March As March liscal year (*a)
31,2019 31,2018 2018

Mr.Apichart Lee-issaranukul | Executive Chairman 5435971 | 4500036 | 9359354 7.09

and Executive General

Manager

Admimstration

Livision
spouse ! Minor Children - - -
Mr Koichi Nagano President | 0 | £Hd 0.00
Spouse / Mimnor Children Z E 3 -
Mr. Thanong Lec-issaranukul Director 4144855 3.208.920 035.935%* 341
Spouse ! Minor Children . = - -
Mr Tadao Susumura Dhrector s Executive

General Manager

Lighting Equipment

Ihvision
spouse S Mmor Children - - .
Mrs.Pimjai Lec-issaranukul Dircctor 2R3IZAS 2170370 HOR 5254 370
spouse [ Minor Children : 2 - -
Mrs Pornthip Sethiwan Director 2R31.195 2162670 O6R 525% 3170

Mr Kresada Vissavatecranon

Spouse /! Minor Children

Independent 1director
and Audit Commniee
Chairman

Mr Chokechan
Tanpoonsinthana

MNone Spouse / Minor Children

Independemt Dhirector
and Audit Committee

Mr.Suchart Phisitvamich

spouse [ Minor Children

Independemt Director
and Audit Commitiee

M. Pochiam Hukpmangwu

spouse [ Minor Children

IIIIJI..'JJ'L'IIliL']ﬂ. [ Mrector

Mr Katsutoshn Iino Dhrector
spouse / Minor Children y g i .
Mr. Toru Tanabe I hrector

Spouse [ Mimor Children

Mr. Kazunori Makai

Spouse / Minor Children

Executive General
Manager Marketing
ivision

Mr. Etsuya Kawashima

Spouse / Minor Children

Executive General
Manager
Dhie & Mold Division

Mr.Kon Kobayashi

spouse / Mimmor Children

Executive General
Manager
& D Center

Remark * The increased amount of shares that are acquired by inheritance
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7.4 Remuneration for the company’s management

(1) Remuneration in cash

The company setting the remuneration policy for director on the appropriate consideration and
comparing with the remuneration for the directors paid by the companies listed in Stock Exchange of
Thailand with the same size of business or the same industry, and approved by shareholders’
meeting.

The policy of remuneration for executives shall be considered from their roles and
responsibilities as well as performance
(A) The Board of director remuneration for 2018 | details as follows

Namc Position Director Fee (Bahu
Director E‘q:::i:i]l[m: Total
Mr Apichart Lee-issaranukul Executive Chairman 275 06K - 275 (M)
Mr.Koichi Nagano President 275,000 - 275,000
Mr. Thanong lee-1ssaranukul Director 275,000 - 275,000
Mr. Tadao Suzumura Dircctor 275,000 - 275,000
Mrs Pimjan Lec-issaranukul Director 273,000 - 275,000
.Mrs.Pm'.mhi;J Sethiwan | Director 2% I','ﬂt}{} - 2?{];{“}[]

Independent Director and
Aundit Committee Chairman
Independent Director and

Mr.Krisada Vissavalecranon 275,000 405,000 673,000

Mr.Chokechar Tanpoonsimihana Audit Commitiee 275,000 2RO 000 555,000
Mr.Suchart Phisitvanich Indepenican: Sieaor 20000 | 280,000 | 550,000
Audit Committee 4 -
Mr Picham Sukparangsee Independent Direetor 273,000 - 275,000
Mr Katsutoshi lino Director 270,000 - 270,000
Mr.Toru Tanabe Director 255,000 - 255,000
Total 3265000 | 960,000 | 4225000

Remark Company only has Audit Committee

The executive board remuneration

In vear 2018 the company paid the remuneration for executive board as salary and bonus to 6
person amount 45,29 million baht

(2) Other remuneration

- Other remuneration of directors - There is no other compensation or other benefits , other
than monthly director fee and meeting allowance,

- Other remuneration of executive director - The company provides a provident fund for
Thai executive directors, which the company has contributed at the rate of 7% of salary as well as

AMNUAL REPORT 2018



contributions to employees However, the amount of payment in 2018, the company has disclosed in
the employee remuneration in item 7.5

7.5 Personal

Total employees as at March 31st, 2019 were 3,196 persons . The company paid for
employee’s remuneration in year 2018 were 1,503.56 Million Baht as salary , bonus , provident fund
and other welfare such as Public transportation and Shift expense , details as follows:,

Division Male Female Total
Admimstration 42 58 100
Marketing 24 31 55
Production 1.645 1,371 3,016
Japanese 25 - 25

Total 1,736 1,460 3.196

The total number of employees increased by 6.64% from the previous year. In the past 3
years, the number of emplovees has changed to a level not exceeding 10%, so there is no significant
change in the number of employees and no labor disputes.

Policy of personal * s development

The company determines the personnel development policy every year. To develop personnel
to have knowledge and skills in both management and work skills ,with a target value that all
employees must receive training, knowledge or skills in the job . we divided into general employee
levels must be trained at least 1 course per year and have at least 6 hours of training per person per
year. In the supervisor level and manager level Must train at least 2 courses per year

The company policies in employee training and development plans to all levels of employees
about knowledge and skills to work , Foreign language , Mind development , and internships to
study abroad, such as Japan, U.S A and other country regularly.

That for 3 vears ago, the Company does not have any conflict or dispute with employees and
the company was awarded the Qutstanding Labor and Welfare Labor continuously since 2006 — 2018
(13 consecutive vyears) certification system and standard of Thai workers. (MRT. 8001-2546)

complete level from the Ministry of Labor.

THA| STAMLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMH‘EIT!“
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8. The Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors attaches great importance to corporate governance. The company has
a transparent business operation, honesty , fair competition environmental and social considerations

8.1 The corporate governance policy
The board has developed the corporate governance policy with details as follows:

|. Develop Business Ethics or Ethics and Code of Conduct for the board and employees to
comply with, ensure the compliance, together with review and update it.

2. Define structure, role and responsibility of the board and the executive clearly and
appropriately
3. Require the board conduct performance self-evaluation

4. Create, maintain, and review the control system 1n respect with finance and operation,
ensure the operational effectiveness and compliance with law and ethics, and manage risks by
paying attention to red flag warning and unusual transaction,

5. Ensure that disclosure information 15 accurate, complete, in time, and in equitable manner
for shareholders and stakeholders.

6. Develop reliable financial reporting procedure and inspection process, and assess the
sufficiency of internal contrel, risk management, and effective monitoring system

7. Assure that the rights of shareholders and stakeholders are protected and treated in an
equitable manner,

8. Resolve the conflict of interest with discretion and transparency
9. Develop environmental and social care system

To comply with the corporate governance policy The company has prepared the code of
conduct for directors and employees. In order to abide by the guidelines and to prevent damage that
may occur from misconduct of the person in the company by publishing as a manual for directors,
executives and employees to acknowledge and abide . This includes the vision and ethics are
provided in the orientation program of directors, executives and new employees, which are disclosed
in the website. (www.thaistanley.com} of the company as well

8.2 Director

The company determines the structure of directors , qualifications of the board roles and
responsibilities, recruitment and appointment of directors ., Performance evaluation of the Board of
Directors - in the regulations of the Board of Directors as follows

(1) Director structure - The company has 3 groups of directors, as the Board of Directors |
the Executive Board and the Audit Committee by defining the roles and responsibilities of each
committee as follows
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The Board of Directors

Structure of Board of Directors as of 31 March 2019 consists of 12 members as follows:

1. Executive Directors : involving in managing day to day operations or have authority to
sign and bind the company, total 4 peoples or 33.33% of total members.

2. Non-Executive Directors : including independent directors totaling 8 people accounting
for 66.67% of the total Directors. Four independent directors are accounted for one-third of the
Board’s total numbers which is in accordance with the provision of Securities and Exchange Act
(No. 4) B.E. 2008,

All directors are qualified in terms of knowledee and experience required for company
business operation and focus on performing their role.

Independent directors meet the qualification as required by Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Authority of the Board of Directors

The framework of the Board's duties and responsibilities includes organizational strategies,
corporate governance, human resources management, financial reporting, information disclosure and

communications as follows:

1. Organizational strategies Review and advise on key strategies and policies, financial
objectives and other plans, including the Company's budget. Monitor the implementation of the
Company's plans and policies.

2. Corporate governance |, establish a policy of corperate governance and regularly evaluate
the outcome in practice. Ensure that all stakeholders are properly protected and treated. Create a
proper understanding on various matters among different classes of stakeholders and ask for their
cooperation in enhancing the stability of the Company's business.

Determine the necessary procedures and mechanisms to ensure that all the Company's
activities comply with the law and are carried out on a sound moral basis.

Make available the code of conduct or code of ethics, monitor the directors” and employees’
compliance with these codes, and occasionally review and update them,

Prepare, maintain and review the financial control, operating control, corporate governance
and risk management, and be alert to warning signs and irregularities on any transactions.

Establish an independent internal control unit with a precise defimition of roles, duties and
responsibilities,

Ensure that the existing structural and procedural requirements of the Board concerning
corporate governance and the code of ethics are effective enough and may be adjusted if necessarv.

Monitor and resolve any conflict of interests which may arise relating to management, the
Board and shareholders, any illegal use of the Company's assets, and any irregularities on connected
transactions.

3. Human resources management , to appoint the executive committee and evaluate their
performance once a year. Appoint the Company secretary, whose main duties relate to Board
meetings and shareholder meetings. The Company secretary's duties include providing legal advice
to the Board.

4. Financial reporting Ensure that the financial reporting and audit system is reliable and that
efficient mechanisms are made available to evaluate the adequacy of internal control, risk
management and performance monitoring systems.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION

From the company’s regulations, the authority of the Board of Directors are to take
responsible for the company’s business management, making decision and to supervise the business
within the scope and law, as well as the company’s objective and regulations, The company has
determined the matter to be approved by the board of directors in the regulations regarding the board
meeting, such as

1) Considering the calling of the general meeting of shareholders and the resolution of the
draft document proposed for consideration

2) Considering calling for the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders and voting on
draft documents proposed for consideration

3) Considering and approving documents, financial statements, including the balance sheet,
profit and loss statements of the company To send the SET

4) Selection of the appointment of directors and the release of directors

5) Considering and approving the trading of shares of rival companies and the trading of

company shares of directors
6) Consider issuing new shares and buy back the company's shares

Except the following topics that have to get approval from shareholders® meeting.

1. Anything that has been stated by law has to get the shareholders’ conclusion.

2. Conduction of any related items that meet the criteria of getting permission from
shareholders’ meeting.

The Company setting for directors can serve as director in no more than 5 histed companies,
there are no exceptions that for the efficiency of their duties.

The Executive Board of Directors

Consist of 3 directors and 3 executives , The role and responsibility is to develop policy and
direction and inspect the implementation

Authority of the Executive board

The Executive board has a duty to set policies and directions for the management of the

company and check the company's performance , approving various plans, including monitoring and
evaluating performance to achieve the objectives

The Executive board will report the performance according to the policies and goals of the
company. that 13 consistent with the Stanley Group policy which is defined as a medium-term long-
term plan, each year there are annual numerical strategies and numerical goals such as quality
targets, cost, safety, etc. which are considered both positive and negative factors as well as various
risks That the stakeholders will pay attention the annual policy meeting will be held for executives
and inform in documents format to employees.

Audit Committee

Consisting of 3 independent directors; one of those has enough knowledge and adequate
experience to review the reliability and accuracy of financial statement. Role and responsibility is
clearly stated in the audit committee charter, amended for additional roles on 10 February 2017 to be
in accordance with the notice from Stock Exchange of Thailand subject; Qualification and scope of
work for audit committee B.E.2551.
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GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION

Authorities of audit committee are as follow

I. To verify and assure that the Company’s financial report is accurate and sufficiently
disclosed

2 .To verify and assure that the Company shall have an appropriate and effective internal
control and internal audit systems. To consider the independence of the internal audit agency, as well
as provide an approval for an appointments, transfer, termination of the chief of the internal audit
agency or any other agencies responsible for the internal audit.

3. To Review that the Company has acted compliance with the company’s anti-corruption
policy.

4. To verity and assure that the Company has acted in complhiance with the law on Securities
and Exchange, requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and other laws in relation to the
Company’s business

5. To consider, select, propose to appoint an independent person(s) to perform the duty as
the Company’s auditor. To propose remuneration for that person(s) and to participate in a meeting
with the auditors without the management involvement at least once a vear

6. To consider connected transactions and any transaction that may have a conflict of
interests by referring to the requirements of laws and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, to assure that
such transactions are reasonable and resulted in maximum benefits to the Company.

7. To prepare a report of the Committee as disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report
which must be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and must consist of the information
as follows (at least);

- An opinion(s) about an accuracy, completion and reliability of the Company’s financial
report.

- An opinion(s) about the adequacy of the Company’s internal control systems.

- An opinion(s) about an action in compliance with law of Securities and Stock Exchange,
provisions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand or any related laws regarding the Company’s business,

- An opinion(s) about an appropriateness of the auditors.

- An opinion(s) about any financial transaction that may have a conflict of interests.

- A total number of the Committee’s meetings and each member’s meeting participation.

- An overall opinion(s) or an observation(s) obtained by the Committee from the operation as
required in this charter.

- Other essential information or transactions as deemed to be acknowledged by sharcholders
and investors under the scope and responsibilities assigned to them by the Board of Directors.

8. Any other operation as assigned by the Board of Directors with an approval by the
Committee.

(2) The Audit Committee who adequate expertise and experience in accounting and financial
to audit creditability of the financial reports

Mr.Chokechai Tanpoonsinthana

2000-Present Independent Director and Audit Commirtee Thai Stanley Electric PCL.

2003-Present  Independent Director and Audit Committee Chairman

Advance Information Technology PCL.
2013 — Present Independent Director and Audit Committee  Witcorp Co.,Ltd.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED



CENERA
CORPORATE
BTN

Audit committee performs its duty by having the support [rom internal audit as an operation
unit and report to audit committee. Also, the committee can asks for advices from independent
advisor its expense is absorbed by the company.

The audit committee meeting must be held at least once every 3 months and there might be
additional meeting if necessary. Executive or involved person might be invited to give information
directly to the meeting. Meeting with auditor without executive attending must be held at least once a

year.

Total numbers of audit committee meetings held during fiscal yvear 2018 are 8 times. Details
of meetings are as follows:

- 4 meetings are among auditors, executives, and internal audit

- 4 meetings are only with auditors, no executive attended.

Name Position Board of Director Mecting
Number of | Number of Attend
Meeting the Meeting
Mr.Krsada Visavarceranon Chairman Audit Committee 8 b
Mr. Chokechar Tanpoonsinthana | Audit Committee 8 8
Mr. Suchart Phisitvanich Audit Committee 8 8

8.3 Nomination and appointment of directors and Top management

The nomination and appointment of directors of the Company not through the Nomination
Committee because The Company i1s in the process of setting up the Nomination Committee.
However, in nominate directors the board will consider the qualifications. This is in accordance with
the Company's Articles ol Association , Selection and appointment process , as follows:

I, Have the qualifications required by law (i.e. the Public Limited Companies Act and the

Stock and Exchange Act)

2. Have knowledge, experience and expertise material to the Company's business

3. Be a visionary leader able to express opinions independently of management or any group
of stakeholders

4, Work morally and ethically with an unblemished work record

5. Be able to dedicate enough time to working as the Company's director. And the number of
listed companies that each director to be director not more than s companies.

6. Not be a director or executive of any entity that has a conflict of interests with the
Company

The Company has no restrictions on the qualifications of its directors in terms of gender and
age, to ensure the diversity of the board structure.

The appointment (o be director will be proceed belong to the Public Limited Compames Act

(1) Independent Director

Criteria for selection of independent directors

- Qualifications of independent directors

The Company’s setting definition of Independent Directors to be on a level of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board's definitions No. TorChor, 14/2552 No. 16 details as follows:
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1. Hold not more than 1% of the voting shares in the company, its subsidiaries, associates, or
related companies, major shareholder or person with controlling power over the company, whilst the
number of shares held by any related person of such an independent director must also be counted.

2. Have not been or are not involved in the management, employees, wage earners, advisors
on the payroll of the company | its subsidharies | associates ., or equivalent companies , major
shareholder or person with conirolling power over the company except when such qualifications
have ended for more than two years, provided that such restriction or prohibition shall not apply to
an independent director who has been a covernment authority |, which is the major shareholder of the
company or the person having controlling power over the company.

3. Are not related by blood or registration as parents, spouses, siblings, or children, spouses of
any of the children to members of the management, major shareholders, those exercising control, or
those about to be nominated as members of the management or those exercising control over the
company or subsidiaries,

4. Do not have and have not any business relationship with the company, subsidiaries,
associated companies, major shareholders or those exercising control over the company in the
manner in which independent discretion might be affected, and not be and have not been a
substantial shareholder of or a person having power to control the person that has business
relationship with the company subsidiaries, associated companies, major shareholders or those
exercising contrel over the company unless such an independent director has not been a person
referred to above for at least two years,

Business referred to in the first paragraph above shall meant to include any ordinary course of
business or trade for business engagement purpose , any lease taking or lease out of any property ,
any transaction relating to asset or service , any financial support or acceptance of financial support
by way of either borrowing , lending , guaranteeing or collateral providing or any other manner
similar thereto that could result to an obligation required to be performed by the applicant or the
party thereto in an amount of three percent or more of the net tangible asset value of the applicant or
twenty million baht or more, whichever is lesser, In light of this , the method for calculating the value
of connected transaction pursuant to the Capital Market Supervising Committee’s Notification, Re:
Regulations in respect of an Entering into a Connected Transaction shall be applied mutatis mutandis
for the purpose of calculation of such amount of debt of the applicant, provided that the amount of
the debt incurred during the past one year prior to the date on which such a business relationship with
such a business relationships with such person exists:,

5. Is not and has not been an auditor of the company, subsidiary, associated company, major
shareholder or those with controlling power over the company and not be and have not been a
substantial shareholder of | a person having power to control over , or a partner of any auditing firm
or office in which the auditor of the auditor of the company , subsidiary , associated company , major
shareholder or those with controlling power over the company unless such an independent director
has not been a person referred to above for at least two years.

6. Is not and has not been a professional advisor |, including legal or financial advisor who
obtains fee more than 2 million baht a year from the company , subsidiary , associated company ,
major shareholder or those with controlling power over the company and is not and have not been a
substantial shareholder of , a person having controlling power over , or a partner of any of such
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professional service provider firm or office , unless such an independent director has not been a
person referred to above for at least two years.

7. Is not a director appointed as a representative of a director of the company , a
representative ol a major shareholder ol the company |, or a representative ol a shareholder of the
company which is a related person of the major shareholder of the company.

8. Does not engage in any business with similar nature as that of the company and is
competitive with the business of the company , subsidiary or is not a substantial partner in a
partnership ., a director participating in any management role , an employee or officer , an advisor
obtaining regular salary from . or a shareholder holding more than one per cent of the voting shares
of accompany engaging in any business with similar nature to the company or subsidiary.

9. Does not have any characteristics which will inept the ability to provide independent
comment or opinion on the operation of the company.

- Process of recruiting independent directors

The appointment independent director not yet approve by nomination committee because of
in considering process to setting but the board of director considered the qualification due to their
knowledge and capability will benefit to the company and The Company has no restrictions on the
qualifications of independent directors in terms of gender and age, and not yet fix term end of the
independent director.

Business relationship of independent directors - Have |, 1. The company paid for law service
to Bangkok Global Law Offices that Mr.Picharn Sukparangsee be director in amount 0.74 million
baht . this transaction was not over than the company ‘s definition .

The election of directors through at the shareholders meeting | as follows

1. Provide that shareholders vote for the election of directors by shareholders or other person
who 1s not a shareholder. Each shareholder shall have one vote for each share

2. Each sharcholder shall exercise all votes applicable under (1) for the appointment of one or
more Director, provided that the votes of any shareholder shall not be divisible and shareholder voted
one by one for one director.

3. Persons who obtain the highest vote and the next highest vote appoints (in descending
order) shall be appointed as directors in order to fill the number of position of director required to be
appointed at that time. In the case where more than one person obtains equal votes | and the number
of directors with such vote exceeds the remaining number of directors positions to be appointed, the
chairman shall have a casting vote n respect of those with equal votes.

4. In the case there is vacancy among the Directors which has occurred other than a
retirement by rotation, the Board of Directors shall elect a person who is qualified and not being
prohibited by the Public Company Law to fill the vacancy in the next Board of Directors’ meeting
except in the event that the period of time the Director is entitled to remain in office is less than 2
months. The person who is elected shall remain in office only for such period of time as the Director
he replaces was entitled to remain in office. The resolution of the meeting of the Board of Directors
as specified n the first paragraph shall consist of votes of not less than three-fourth of the remaining
Directors.

Succession plan - The company is in the process of considering and approving policies and
operational plans from the Executive Board.
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8.4 The operations of the subsidiaries and associates company control.

(1) To corporate governance in subsidiaries and associates company .

The company appoint representatives to the company's executives are directors of
subsidiaries, associates and the company holds. The policies acknowledge involvement in the
management of these companies . Counseling and assistance as appropriate and approved by the
Board of Directors. Not intended to interfere with or dominate these affairs.

(21 An agreement with other shareholders in the management of subsidiaries and associated

companies,
-None

8.5 Internal information controlling

The Company published the Code ol Conduct 10 Directors and Employees o take the way of
implement a good appropriate which covers the use of inside information that non-profit for
themselves and others. Based on inside information of the company and set the time o0 employees
and directors not to trade the company’s assets within 1 month before the financial statements are
disclosed or general corporate information to publish and within 24 hours after disclosure of
financial statement and general corporate information . The Directors and Executives will report to
the Secretary trading company and report to the Board Meeting every ime and in addition.

The Company has not yet set a policy for directors and top executives to inform about the
trading of shares at least 1 day prior to trading to the Board of Directors.

Failure to comply with such requirements constitutes a disciplinary offense. The person who
commits the offense will have to go into the process following the company's penalties.

The company announced the information system security policy. To control the company*s
information that cover on customer information. Information System Department | is response to
control all information |, equipment and license computer programs and all department manager to
review , checking and evaluation at least 1 time per year and report to the risk management
committee and the executive board meeting and annual auditing by Internal Audit section.

The company added confidentiality measures in physical control by requesting cooperation,
those who come in contact with every company do not use devices that can take pictures in the
company area , and 1f having to take pictures in the company must be allowed in every cases |, in
which the photographers must attach a label showing the permission to take every time, In addition,
the ban on the recording device communication equipment or equipment that can be photographed
into a strict control area, such as Research and Development Department , New Product
Development and Production Engineering Department.

In the year 2018, the Stanley Group began publishing the use of "European Data Protection
Law" GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) let companies in the group know and take
appropriate action.

THA| STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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8.0 Auditor’s remuneration

A Audit fee

The company paid the audit fee for the previous year to the auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABAS Limited total amount 2.16 million baht.

B. Other service fee

- Reviewing compliance with conditions of BOI promotion certificate amount 0.23 million
baht.

- Reviewing Stock Destroy amount 0.04 million baht.

- Reviewing auditing for Vietnam Stanley Electric Co. Ltd. Amount 0.20 million baht

8.7 Other practice from the corporate governance

The board of director has developed the company vision and code of conduct for the board
members and employees as a best practice in order to maintain the dignity and values of the company
and to prevent potential loss due to the misbehavior of internal people. It is published in the form of
booklet providing to the board members, executives employees to be aware and adhere to. The
content of company vision and code of conduct are put into orientation course for new board
member, executive, and employee. The details are also disclosed on the company’s website
(www thaistanleyv. com) as well.

The board of director has complied with the corporate governance policy; the summary of
those 5 sections are as follows:

1. Rights of Shareholders

The company is committed to ensuring that the basic right of the shareholders is protected
and treated in an equal manner as regulated by law. The company gives the right to shareholders to
independently buy, sell, or transfer the securities that they are holding. The shareholders are eligible
to receive dividend, participate in the shareholder meeting, freely express opinion in the meeting, and
can take part in making key decision such as board election, key business transaction approval, and
key company letters amendment. In addition, the company promotes the nght of sharcholders and
facilitates as follows:

1.1 The right to receive important and necessary information to make sure that the disclosed
information is accurate, complete, transparent, and in timely to shareholders and stakeholders as
required by related regulations. Such information will also be posted on the website as another
information channel for shareholders, including other key information such as investment structure,
shareholders, management policy, members of the board of directors and so on, as well as other
financial information and the information disseminated to the public so that the shareholders and the
stakeholders will receive the same information.

The company uses the criteria for determining the list of shareholders (Record Date) for the
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders that for all sharcholders to have time to consider necessary
and sufficient information about the shareholders' meeting , which includes the date, time, venue, and
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agenda, together with supplementary details for each agenda in advance. The company posts such
information on the company’s website | month before distributing the documents.

1.2 The right to participate in the shareholder meeting and the right to vote

The Invitation Letter

The company shall send the invitation letter to the shareholders at least 14 days in advance of
the shareholder meeting. The letter shall include complete and adequate details of the meeting,
agenda, together with supplementary documents which will be both Thai and English language for
foreign shareholders.

Details about the right to participate and vote, what documents needed to bring along will be
advised. In case of being unable (o attend in person, that shareholder can appoint any independent
director or any person to be a proxy for him by presenting any proxy form which the company
attached together with the invitation letter. The proxy form can be downloaded from the company’s
website.

Facility

The company will arrange commuting transportation as facilitation for shareholders.

Staffs to welcome and provide service to participating shareholders will be standby 2 hours in
advance.

For institutional shareholders facilitate to checking number of shareholding and a name list of
the various funds in advance.

For voting process, poll cards will be collected in case of disagree vote in order to use for
processing the data of each agenda. Investigation can be done upon request from shareholders.

The following persons are required to attend the sharcholders’ meeting:

Every member of executive directors and audit committee

Auditors to provide information in case of having inquiries from shareholders or lawvers
Lawyers from the third party company will act as a middleman for voting inspection
Interpreters to ensure the content be understood for shareholders and committee
Employee representatives such as the chairman of welfare committee and elected
members from welfare committee

Community representatives from Ban-Klang Municipality

Voting one share one vote | Sharcholder has votes equal to the number of shares held. Can
not cumulative voting (Cumulative Voting) that from The Articles of Association setting,

1.3 The right to freely express opinion in the meeting

Every shareholder has an equal right to express opinion or make an inquiry with an adequate
time providing for each agenda before resolution. In the shareholders’ meeting, all members of the
boards and executives are required to attend the meeting to answer any inguires to the meeting.

1.4 The right to consider remuneration for board members
In the agenda of remuneration for board members, the criteria and details of remuneration for
each member will be notified.

1.5 The right to appoint and nominate the board members and then have shareholders to vote
individually
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|.6 The board allows shareholders to propose agenda for the annual shareholder meeting. To
ensure the fair and equitable treatment to shareholders, the company sets the criteria and Procedure
for shareholders to propose agenda to the board to consider it to be the agenda in the annual
shareholders’ meeting. The details of right, criteria, and procedure are posted on the company
website, The company shall notify such dissemination through SET news for shareholders to know in
advance.

The company invited the shareholders to proposed the agendas and director nomination in
advance for the 2019 Annual General Meeting period January 22 to April 22, 2019 that there was
no any proposal and director nomination from the shareholders.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The company pays attention to an equitable treatment to every shareholder whether or not
they are major or minor shareholder, institutional investor, or foreign investor. The implementation
includes:

2.1 Every shareholder has right to vote depending on number of shares they are holding; one
vote per share . The company have only common stock.

2.2 The board has developed prevention measure of using internal information as follows:
None of director, executive, or employee can use internal information for the sake of personal
benefits. Employees working in department involving with internal information, executive, and
director are prohibited from trading the company securities for 1 month before the disclosure of
financial statement or information to public and within 24 hours after the disclosure hereof. This rule
is described in the code of conduct for the board and employees. The rule also specify that director,
executive, and accounting manager 1s obliged to declare the number of shares they own to the board
of directors every time during the board of directors meeting.

2.3 For the shareholders’® meeting; the proxy forms approved by Ministry of Commerce
together with the meeting invitation letter, documents, and instruction about proxy assignment will
be sent to shareholders so that they can appropriately prepare themselves for the meeting.

2.4 The company agrees to give the right to vote for shareholder who is late in attending the
meeting; however, only for the agendas on discussion and have not been reached the resolution vet.
That share will be counted for quorum starting from the agenda that he attends as well as votes
onwards, unless otherwise instructed by the meeting,

2.5 Besides Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.. the share registrar of the company, who
will be responsible for sending out the notice for attending shareholders” meeting for 14 days in
advance of the meeting, the notice will also be posted on the company website for 30 days in
advance of the meeting and published on the daily newspaper in Thai for at least 3 consecutive days
and at least 7 days before the meeting date.
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2.6 The Minutes of Shareholders™ Meeting will be posted on the company website within 14
days after meeting . so that the shareholders who did not attend the meeting being able to know the
same information.

3. Role of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders such as customers,
suppliers, employees, shareholders, govemment sectors, and other related parties as well as
community as specified by law and make sure that their rights are properly protected and treated and
will also push for activities or operations that benefit all groups of stakeholders as follows:

3.1 Customers , Most of the company products are sold to automaker; therefore, the
company’s customers mean the purchasers of the products and the end-users as well. Customer
policy is as follows:

Management : Consider customer satisfaction as the first priority by improving every
function; quality control, costing, delivery, development, security, and relationship through Planning
— Doing — Checking process cycle.

Quality : Aim to develop international standard on quality assurance system; delivering the
praducts with the confidence in gaining satisfaction and trust from customers.

The company sets up the Quality Assurance to be responsible for assurance product quality |
aiving advices on products, providing consultations, and receiving complaints, to make sure the
customers will satisfy with the quality of products and services.

In the competition , The Company has policies and practices to fair competition and on
normal business.

In 2018, The Company cooperated with customers automotive manufacturers in participate in
customer activities such as QCC activities, CSR activities, Rally activities etc.

3.2 Suppliers |, Supplier is one of business partners, The company have policy that strictly
complies with agreement or contract made with the suppliers by adhering to operating business with
integrity to self and to other parties in accordance with law and related rules and regulations. The
supplier selection is according to purchasing policy that consider cover to company documents ,
performance , environmental , emplovee practical and human rights,

Meeting with business partner is also held with the purpose to keep partner updated about the
company movement and to hear opinions; for example, for bank or creditor; the company will invite
them to the meeting together with securities analyst so as to be informed about the company
quarterly performance, or for the case of suppliers; supplier meeting is held every year through
purchasing department in order to inform about annual purchasing policy and confer QCD award to
the suppliers who delivered the good products and being punctual.

For construction contractor, a separate meeting will be held by occupational health and safety
officer and invite the staff who is responsible in the field of repairing, construction, or expansion of
the company properties to the meeting in order to ensure that safety measure is extended to the
involved parties.

The company initiated the project of developing raw material suppliers to be quality suppliers
by delivering goods on time, being competitive which leads to quality raw material with reasonable
price. The project has been carried on until present, divided into 2 activities as follows:
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1. Supplier SNAP | The company extends productivity improvement activity to suppliers and
sends SNAP (Stanley New Approach for higher Productivities) team together with purchasing
officer to the supplier company in order to educate and conduct productivity improvement activity in
an periodical manner during 6 month period.

2 Supplier Improvement Project , The company will choose the suppliers to help them to
identify problems and give advices on manufacturing efficiency.

The company also provides customer support and encourage vendors to be certified to

international standards as quality assessment to provide a quality of supply chain.

3.3 Employees , The company realizes that the company is growing because of the
cooperation of every employee so the employees are valuable resource of the company. The
company policy are cover employee sustain in respect with safety, welfare, privilege for employees
and the company have certified for Thai Labor Standard, TLS800-2003 (since June 2008 until
present) from Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare,

The company discloses employee practices in the Sustainability report - Social Operations
Section page.......

3.4 Shareholders , The company policy is to protect shareholders™ rights in an equitable
manner as required by law. The policy is set that dividend paid to shareholders will not be less than
30% of net profit (Financial Statement - The company only), and allow shareholders to visit the
company after finishing Shareholders’ Meeting or the next available time

3.5 Society and Community , The company recognizes the importance of society and local
communities that the company have become a part of society , so from founding to the present the
company has met with representatives of local communities, Banklang Municipality and
participation in support of local activities regularly

The company has been doing social activities wunder the name of Stanley Thailand
Foundation. And reported the foundation activities on Annual Report

In addition, the company has developed the policy about the right of stakeholders and put in
corporate governance policy and code of conduct for directors and employees of the company.
Stakeholders can communicate or complain with the company via as follow

Company Secretary email companyvsecretary(@thaistanley.com

Investor Relations email adths@thaistanleyv.com or infoi@thaistanley.com

The company publishing the principles of contact procedures and operations on the company
website www thaistanley com

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The company and the executive committee focuses on managing and operating business
under the principle of good governance and being aware of information disclosure with accuracy and
in timely fashion as specified by regulatory agencies. Therefore, the company sets the policy and
practice regarding information disclosure as follows:
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Information Policy

- Disseminating information about the company must be aligned to disclosure policy and
under the scope of laws, provisions, and related regulations,

- Disseminating information about the company must be clear, accurate, complete,
transparent, and reliable. The information must be explained clearly, easy to understand, and
promptly to stakeholders,

- The information must be fair to all parties by treating all parties in an equitable and
consistent manner under the scope of operation practice, also avoid causing conflict of interest.

- Ensure that such dissemination will not cause negative impact on relationship between the
customers and the company or violate the privacy of customers, shareholders, or other stakeholders.

- Performing duty about disseminating confidential information must be complied with the
company rules and regulations specified in the code of conduct for the board and employees.

4.2 Communication

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Executive Chairman, have authority to notify key
information of the company and can delegate to management to give information about its own
function through responsible department or person in charge of investor relation.

Company information is available for customers, shareholders, investors, or interested
persons or requesting for more information via the company website (http://www thaistanley.com).

In addition, the company has appointed Investor Relations officer; in charge of providing
general news and respond to inquiries, coordinating with staff or involved person to provide news
and answer to inquiries, monitoring financial and information reporting system notified to various
regulatory agencies. To contact Investor Relations, please call 02-581-5462 ext.1164 email
adths@dthaistanley.com or info{thaistanley.com,

4 3 Communication Standard and Channel

Company performance and general information will be periodically communicated to
shareholders, investors and public through media of Stock Exchange of Thailand and company
website,

Meeting with securities analysts is held in a quarterly basis. Information that is revealed to
analysts in the meeting will be posted on the company website. The company has no policy to meet
analyst, fund manager, investor, or any person interested in investing with company individually.

MNews and information about the company is available on the company website
(http:/fwww thaistanley.com) which includes:

- Vision, Management Policy, Governance Policy

- Disclosure policy consists of information policy, communication channels to the company,
authorized spokesman, type of communication and information disclosure to public

- Financial information such as financial statement, key financial information, financial ratio,
rate of dividend and so on.

- Company information such as type of business, board of directors, executive directors, and
shareholder structure.

- Shareholders™ Meeting information such as Minutes of Meeting, pictures from the meeting,
VDOs presented in the shareholders’ meeting,
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- Annual Report and other reports submitted to Stock Exchange of Thailand and Securities

and Exchange Commission
- Web board
- Investor Relations activities such as quarterly meeting with securities analysts

3. Board Responsibilities

5.1 Directors and Executives Development

The board of directors set the policy to provide an orientation course for new director in order
to educate them about role and responsibility. business operation so as to efficiently support the
company. In case of new directors | the company will take orientation course on the date of
appointment; the content provided in the class such as the company’s regulations, vision, governance
policy, code of conduct for directors and employees, as well as rules and regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and SEC about roles of director and code of conduct for the listed companies.
The directors had visited the factory for better understanding about the company operation.

The existing members of the Board are also educated by attending the training courses
amranged by each function. Any change of information or rules will also be informed to the board in
the board of directors meeting. In 2018 our 2 directors attend to traming with Thai Institute of
Directors : 10D as follows:

1. Mr.Suchart Phisitvanich

Course — Board Matter & Trends (BMT6/2018) date 30-31 October 2018

2. Mr.Picharn Sukparangsee

Course — Board Matter & Trends (BMT6/2018) date 30-31 October 2018

For executive board and managers at all departments , The company has organized outside
seminars at least 1 time per year for increasing knowledge, experience and vision , on 26 - 27
January 2019, organized the seminar, “How will Artificial Intelligence (Al) program changed the
world?” at Nakhon Ratchasima Province.

5.2 Self-evaluation of the Board of Directors,

Since 2007, the Board of Directors has evaluated the overall annual performance of the entire
Board of Directors, covering all roles and duties of the Board of Directors, 6 categories, including 55
items as follows:

1. Structure and Qualifications 11 Items
2. Roles, duties and responsibilities I8 Ttems
3. Board meetings, 9 ltems
4. Director duties 7 Items
5. Relationship with the management 5  Items
6. Self-development of directors 5  ltems

Evaluation process , The company secretary prepares the assessment form. Deliver the
evaluation form to all directors to evaluate themselves as a whole. On the 4 quarterly meeting of
the Board of Directors’ meeting and returned to the secretary of the meeting to calculate the average
value and report the results to the board meeting at the next meeting.
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Assessment criteria  Meaning of score

0 = Strongly disagree or there is no action on that matter
1 = Do not agree or have little action on that matter
2 = Agree or have enough action on that matter
3 = Quite agree or have taken action on that matter well
4 = Highly agree or have performed in that matter perfectly
Score evaluation Results

More than 90 Excellent

More than 30 Very good

More than 70 Good

More than 60 Fair

Equal orless than 60 Should be improved

For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2019, which was evaluated in May 2019. The results
were very good. And brought the evaluation results Remarks and suggestions go to review , to
improve the operations of the Board of Directors

However, The Company does not yet have an individual performance evaluation in Board of
Dhirector, Sub-commuittee and the President.

5.3 Report on interest of directors and executives

At the end of each fiscal vear (March 31), the company requires directors and executives that
have a duty to report their own interests and related persons under Section 89/14 of the Securities and
Exchange Act BE 2535, as amended by the Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4), 2008, requiring
directors and executives prepare reports of their own interests or related persons. Which 1s a vested
interest in the management of the business of the company or subsidiary in order for the company to
have information for the implementation of the regulations relating to connected transactions. The
Company Secretary will collect and report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and inform the
Board of Directors meeting in May.

9. Social Responsibility
9.1 Policy Overview

The Company's policy 15 1o achieve business goals efTectively | be the entrepreneurship to the
society by one of the company's vision i3 to be a priority and uphold the values that support
complementary Stanley sincerely. The Company considers that the underpinning and is involved in
all aspects of the employees, shareholders, customers, suppliers, sellers, local community and
society.

Each wyear the company targets including the implementation of environmental and social.
The top management will monitor and evaluate the various monthly continuously,
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9.2 Operation and report

In social responsibility of the company , each division is involved in environmental and social
issues to focus and perform with caution and evaluate the impact by the operational and top
management, such as product design to using materials that are environmentally friendly , produced
with carelully in security and impact ol other pollutants.

The company issued Corporate Social Responsibility Report that disclosed by GRI (Global
Reporting Indicator) in the annual report. To be sent to the shareholder and publish it on the

The Company disclosed the operation of social responsibility in fiscal year 2018 in
Sustaimnability Report in page ...

10. Internal Control

The company is aware of the importance to good management and internal control. The
company established the CG department to conduct internal audit and risk management and report
directly to the Audit Committee every quarter

10.1 The board of director comment on internal control

The three members of Audit committee has meeting with the Board of Directors meeting No.
3/2019 on 17th May 2019. The Board of Directors have evaluated for the internal control system
from CG Department report and reviewing the progress of internal control of Working System that
approved in the past year as follow :,

- Reviewed the financial report , that were reviewed and audited by the auditor.

- Reviewed the company’s internal control system and risk management in accordance with
the guidelines established with the Securities and Exchange Acts, Regulations of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and other relevant laws

- Reviewed the internal audit system

- Reviewed the Company’s risk management for its appropriateness and adequacy.

- Reviewed and opined related transactions or transactions that may have conflicts of interest,
and disclosure of such transactions

- Considered appointing the external auditors and their remuneration for the year 2019

In fiscal year 1st April 2018 — 31st March 2019 |, there were 8 audit committee meeting that
with auditor but without management 4 times and meeting with the auditor , the management and
Internal Audit 4 imes.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the imternal audit system and had considered the
evaluation of internal control in accordance with the guidelines established by The Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), it was found that there were no significant faults and there was
appropriate attention and maintenance of the activities and accurate ,s0 the audit committee has the
opinion that the company’s activities in fiscal year 1st April 2018 — 31st March 2019 has been
according to the appropriate internal control system and accordance to internal control framework of
COSO , the finance report is accurate , complete and reliable. Operations are concordant with
adequate , transparent and reliable Corporate Governance standards and there is continuous
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improvement for better quality of the business operating system report and the disclosure
information were care in accordance with the appropriate internal control of the company.

Ms.Varaporn Vorathitikul , PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited ,the Auditor of company
was no serious concerns about the internal control.

10.2 The opinion of the Audit Committee in the event of a different opinion of the
board of the activities of the company.

The audit committee not any different opinion with the Board of Directors. There was also a
report of the Audit Committee that is in this Annual Report page 15- 16

10,3 Chief of Office of Internal Audit

(1) In 2002, the Executive Committee appointed the Chief of the Internal Audit, Mrs.
MNongyao Apirum, who currently position as the Corporate Governance Department Manager
responsible for internal audit and risk management , that has experience working in Accounting and
Finance department for 20 years and used to attend the training course related to the audit such as

- Fundamentals for New Internal Audit course 1 (2002) and 2 (2004)

- Audit Report Writing (2000)

- Risk Based Audit (2010)

- Certified Professional Internal Auditor of Thailand (CPIAT- 18 (2011)

- The Corporate risk management - COS0-EEM (2011)
- Internal controls on financial reporting (2011)

- Ethical Audit (2015)

- Working Paper for Anti-Corruption (2017)

- Compliance & Compliance Audit (2018)

Chief of Internal Audit have an understanding of the operations of the company as well. It is
appropriate and sufficient to perform such duties.

(2) The Audit Commuittee ‘s opinion that taking care of the Chief Audit quahfication
experience with adequate training and proper operation.

(3) The appointment, removal and transfer of the incumbent Chief of Office of internal audit
according to the personnel management system of the company. Through the approval of the
Executive Board and acknowledged and approved by the Audit Committee.
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11. The relaled iransactlions

Since last 3 vears, there was no event of spending the income from stock sales for any of the
shared interest person.

The Company has significant transactions with related companies, Which is a company with
common directors and the company in which the major shareholder holds shares. The related
transactions are in accordance with the operating policy regarding the purchase and sale of goods and
assets. Approved by the Board of Directors and 15 controlled by the Executive Board, which will be
considered and approved according to the value of the transaction size regularly

The significant trade with the related company by purchasing and sales items. The
company’s auditor gave the explanation in the Note 28 Page 59 - 60 of the financial statement on 31*
March 2019, The purchasing items form the related company are those particular raw materials or
merchandise from the same production source at the great quantity to reduce the production cost.
The company received the confirmation report from the related company about the sales of raw
materials as the regular trading business. The sales items are mostly exporting by set up the sales
price from cost fee plus the profit. Royalty fee to a related company at the rate of 3% of sales minus
the cost of importing raw materials from that related company, and specified as the regular trading

business, details as follows:

1. Related party transaction by way of the shareholder or common directors.

Name of Company

Related ties

Related transaction

Transaction

The reasonable of

Co..Lid.

of Stanlev Electng
Holding Asia-Pacific
PTE,
holding 35.66%
2. Common Directlor
2 person
- Mr. Katsutoshi lino
- Mr.Toru Tanabe

matenials , goods and
cquipment

2. Selling goods,

713 45milhion baht
Balance
167.72 million baht

Sold amount
12642 million baht
Balance

14.18 mullion baht

details Amount in 2018 transactions
and Balancc at
31 March 2019
l. Stanley Electrie 1. Major sharcholder |. Purchasing in raw | Purchased Specifically products

or materials and
material which are
manufactured on a
large scale at one
source for cost
saving benell
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of busingss and same
practice with the
outsider.

Specilically products
or malerials and
material which are
manufactured on a
large scale al one
source for cost
saving benefil.
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of business and same
practice with the

| outsider,
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Mame of Company Helated ties Related transaction Transaction The reasonable of
details Amount in 2018 iransaclions
and Balance ait
31 March 2019
3.Rovaliy Fee 1s Amount In the normal course
charged at 3% of 33849 million baht | of busincss and same
sales less matenals practices 1n Stanley
cost imported form Group
the related party in
accordance with the
agreement
4. Designed and Amount In the normal course
Development Fee 247 87Milhion baht | of business and same
15 charged in case practices in Stanley
design and Group, pricing are
development product charged same as
for Thai Stanley's outsider,
products
3. Techmical Fee Amount In the normal course
i5 charged lor the | 8.22 million baht | of business and same
specialist come lor practice in Stanley
assistance in Group
proeduction technics.
6. Training fce Amount In the normal course
15 charged for send 9.37 millon baht of business and same
Thai Stanley praclice in Stanley
employee to training Group
and practice.
7. Commission Amount In the normal course
18 charged for an 20000 million baht | of business and same
agent to connected practice in Stanley
with cuslomers Group
8.0ther Income Amount In the normal course
3.28 million baht of business and same
practice in Stanley
Group
2 .Lao Stanley |, Thai Stanley 1, Selling goods Sold amount specifically products

Co..Lad.

holding 50%

2, Commaon Director 2

PETSOns

- Mr. Apichart
Lee-issaranukul

- Mr.Koichi Nagano

409 31 mullion baht
Balance
50.66 million baht

Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of business and
same practice with
the outsider.
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Mame of Company

Related ties

Related transaction
details

Transaction
Amount in 2018
and Balance at
31 March 2019

The reazonable of
Lransaclions

2. Other Income

3. Royalty Income

Amount
019 million baht

Amount
082 mullion haht

In the normal course
ol busimess and same
practice in Stanley

aroup

In the normal course
of business and same
practice in Stanley

Crroup
3. Victnam Stanley | 1.Common major 1. Purchasing poods | Purchased amount | Specifically products
Electric Co.,L1d. sharcholders as 50408 million baht | Pricing are charged

Stanley Eleetric

Co. Lid. Holding 50%

2. Common director 3
persons as

- Mr. Apichart

Lee-issaranuku

-Mr.Tor Tanabe
-Mr, Tadao Susumura

3. Thai Stanley
holding share 20%

2.5¢lling goods

3. Designed and
Development Fee

Balance
13442 mallion baht

Sold amount
22.55 million baht
Balance

2.18 million baht

Amount .04
mitllion haht

in the normal course
of business and
same practice with
oulsider.

Specifically products
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of business and
same practice with
the outsider.

Specifically products
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
ol business and
same praciice with
outsider.

4. Asian Stanley
International Co.,Lid

1.Common major
sharcholder

as Stanley Eleciric
Holding Asia-Pacilic
PTE holding 67.5%

2.Common Director 2

persons
= Mr. Apichari
Lee-issaranukul

- Mr.Toru Tanabe
3.Thai Stanley
holding 15%

4. Holding Tha
Stanley 0,.44%,

1. Purchasing raw
material

2 Selling goods

3. Other Income

Purchased amount
1.914.74 malhion
baht

Balance 173,14
million haht

Sold amount
8.92 million baht
Balance

(.88 million baht

Amount
0.18 million baht

Specilically products
Pricing arc charged
in the normal course
ol business and
same practice with
the outsider.

Pricing are charged
in the normal course
ol business and
same practice with
the outsider.

Pricing arc charged
in the normal course
of business and
same practice with
the outsider.

AMNUAL REPORT 2018




Name of Company

Related ties

Related transaction
details

Transaction
Amount in 2018
and Balance al
31 March 2019

The reasonable of
transactions

5. PT.Indongsia
Stanley Electric

1. Common major
sharcholder as Stanley
Electric Co.,Lid.
Hoding 60 %
2. Common director 3
person as

- Mr.Apichart

L.ee-issaranukul
- Mr.Koichi Nagano
- Mr.Toru Tanabe

3. Tha Stanley
holding 10%

1. Purchasing raw
material

2 Selling goods

3, Designed and
Development Fec

Purchased amount
15,18 million bahi
Balance

1.33 million baht

Sold amount
29977 million baht
Balance

10380 million baht

Amount
14.100 mullion baht

Specifically products
Pricing arc charged
in the normal course
ol business same
oulsider.

Pricing are charped
in the normal course
of business and

same practice with
the outsider,
Specifically products
Pricing arc charged
in the normal course
of busingss same
practice with the
oulsider.

6. Sirtvit Stanley
Co.Lud.

1.Thai Stanley
holding 15%
2.Commaon

director 2 persons
as

-Mr. Apichart

Lee-1ssaranukul
- Mr.Koichi Nagano

1. Purchasing raw
material

2. Selling raw
material

3, Designed and
Development Fee

Purchased amount
378.68 million baht

Balance

31.50 million baht

Sold amount
%85 million baht
Balance

- million baht

Amount
01.35 mullion baht

Specifically products
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of business and
same oulsider.
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of busingss and

same outsider

Specifically products
Pricing are charged
in the normal course
of business and

same oulsider,

7. Inoue Rubber
{Thailand) Public
Company Limited

1.Thai Stanley

holding 0,02%

2 .Common director 4

pCrson as

- Mr. Apichart
Lee-1ssaranukul

- Mr.Thanong
Lee-i1ssaranukul

- Mrs. Pimjai
Lee-issaranukul

= Mrs, Pornthip
Scthiwan

1. Purchasing raw
material

Purchased amount
12,42 million baht
Balance

1.77 mallion baht

Pricing arc charged
in the normal course
of business and same
practice with the
oulsider.

THAI STANLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Name of Company Related ties Related transaction Transaction The reasonable of
details Amount in 2018 transactions
and Balance at
31 March 2019
8 The Sittipol 1919 | 1.The sharcholders 1. Selling goods, Sold amount Pricing are charped
Co. Ltd holding  3.34% |48.83 million baht | in the normal course
2 Common director 2 Balance of business and same
persons  as 56,25 million baht | practice with the
- Mr.Thanong outsider.
Lee-issaranukul
= Mrs.Pomnthip
Sethiwan
9. Lumax Industrics ~ 1.Thai Stanley 1. Purchasing goods | Purchased amount | Pricing are charged
Co..Lid. holding 1.73% 1,31 mullion baht in the normal course
2. Common major Balance ol business and same
sharcholder as Stanley - million baht practice with the
Electric Co.,Lad. oulsider.
Holding 26.31 % 2. Selling goods Sold amount Pricing are charped
3.Common Director | 4.24 million baht in the normal course
person Balance of business and
- Mr. Toru Tanabe (0,95 million baht same practice with
the outsider
|0. Bangkok Global 1. Common director 1 | 1. Law service amount Pricing are charged
Law OfTices Limited | Person as (0,74 million baht in the normal course
- Mr.Picharn Balance of business and same
Sukparangsee - million bahi practice with the
outsider.

2 Transaction with the company whose Stanley Electric Co.,Ltd. Is the major shareholders of
Stanley Electric Holding Asia-Pacific PTE |, LTD (holding 100%) major shareholder of the company,
the transaction are purchasing and selling in raw material or goods that are specific materials which
are manufactured on a large scale at one source for cost saving benefit. Pricing are charged in the
normal course of business and same practice with the outsiders, details as follows :

Company Name Transaction Amount Balance as al
n 2018 31 March 2019
1.Guangzhou Stanley Electric (China) Purchased amount
12941 million baht 2501  million bahi
Sold amount
020 malhon baht - million baht
2. Stanley Electric (Asia Pacific) Purchased amount
(Taiwan) 0,18  million baht - million baht
Sold amount
(.80 million baht - million baht
3. Shenzhen Stanley Electric Co.,Lid. Purchased amount
107.70 miallion bahi 1447  million baht
Sold amount
- million baht . million baht

AMNUAL REPORT 2018



Company Name

Transaction Amount
m 2018

Balance as at
31 March 2019

4. Stanley Electric US Inc. (U.S.A)

Purchascd amount
1.49  mmllion baht

Sold amount

0.34 million baht

0.02  mallion baht - million baht
5. Tianjin Stanley Electric Co.,Lid. Purchased amount
{Chima) 0.2 muillion baht - million baht

Sold amount
1.73  million baht

1.17 million haht

6. Stanley Electric {Asia Pacific)
Singapore

Purchased amount
= milhon baht
Sold amount
(1.32  mllion baht

- million baht

- million baht

7. Shanghai Stanley Electric

Purchased amount
384 mullhion balt

0.39 million baht

8. Stanley Electric Hungary

Purchased amount

0.75  mullion baht
Sold amount

009  million baht

- million baht

0.10  million baht

9. Stanley Electric Do Brazil LTDA

Purchased amount
- million baht
Sold amount
0.29 million bahi

- million baht

0.04 million baht

10. Stanley Iwaki Works Lid.

Purchased amount

12.95 million baht
Sold amount

1.69 million baht

- million baht

i million baht

I1. Stanley Electrie (Asia Pacific)
Hongkong

Purchased amount
993 million baht

0.76 million baht

12. Wuhan Stanley Electric Co., Lid.

Purchascd amount
(.05 million baht
Sold amount

17.07 mualhon baht

- million baht

287  million baht

13. Stanley Clectne Sale of America | Inc

Purchascd amount
million baht

sold amount
2.29 million baht

- million baht

0.24 million baht

14. Tianjin Stanley Electric Technology

Sold amount

Co.. Lid. 7.46 million baht million baht
Design and
Development lee
5.04 mullion baht . million baht
15. Stanley Electric Manufacturing Purchased amount
Co.,Lid. - million baht - million baht
Sold amount

.01 million baht

million baht
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Total Liabilitics
Total liabilities of the company were 3,287.94 million baht or 17.08% of total assets ,
increased from last year 36.58% which comes from the trade accounts payable in construction and

material , increased as production increasing . so the company account payable turnover ratio was

k.

6.11 time , decreased from the previous year ratio was 7.93 times

Equity

Total equity was 15,966.56 million baht or 82.92% of total assets . increased 9.88% [rom
the previous year and return on equity ratio was 12.97% increase from the previous year that ratio
was 11.91%

Cash flow structure
The company had cash and cash equivalents, net 1.672.00 nullion, decreased 12.43% from

the previous vear , that from more investment expansion so current ratio was 3.13 times also
decreased from the previous year that 4.50% and to classified as cash flows from operating
activities amount 2.503.77 million baht cash used in investing activities was 2,308.22 million baht
and financing activities for dividend by 536.37 million baht .

In 2018 The company continue investment in Lamp 8 factory | to support in the automotive
industry increasing trend and for Die & Mold part that for support to new model production that
continuing launch .

Debt servicing obligations and management of off-balance sheet obligations.

The Company adopts the policy to use cash flow to invest and spend in the company. Do not
focus on lending |, the company has no outstanding debt and interest expense. There are only account
pavable liabilities and commercial labilities as usual , the company has a debt 1o equity
shareholders ratio was 0.21 times higher nearly as last year that ratio was 0.17 times .from
construction investment and purchasing in raw material but it is very small because the company has
very little debt.

13.2 Factors or events that could affect the financial position or operations significantly
in the future.

The economic conditions and automotive industry is the main factor that directly affects the
company's operations The current economic situation in the country continues to grow. For the
export market, there 15 a decrease in economic conditions and trade war problems that still have to
monitor the situation continuously ‘The company is still trying to use various cost reduction
measures. In order to comply with such situation

The company continues to make a significant contribution to research and development.
Customers still have plans to launch new models constantly, the company continues to gain the trust
of getting to Lamp products throughout,

The investor can found more data of Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited in the

annual report (Form 56-1) as at www.sec.co.th or www.thaistanley.com
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Milestone
(1980 — 2000 Establishment and growth)

| 950

| 981

1984

1987

1988

1989

199()

1991

1993

| 994

1995

May

April
jlﬂy
August

Apri 1
October

March
April

MNovember

February
July
November
April

May

June
MNovember
jul;-.-‘
September

Clctober
November

December
September
October
May

June

September
November

Establishment and registration of the Company in Bangkok for the purposc of
manufacturing and selling automotive bulbs with and initial capital of [0 million baht
under investment.

Completion of Auto Bulb factory and Increased capital to 18 million bahit.

Increased capital to 36 million baht,

Received investment promotion from The Board of Investment to manufacture Lighting
Equipment and completion of factory for Lighting Equipment,

Increased -mlpi'ta'l_m 44.5 million baht.

Received investment promotion from The Board of Investment to manufacture Die &
Mold plant , Increased capital to 53 mullion baht.

Investment in a new company (Asian Stanley International Co.,Ltd.)
Completion of Die & Mold factory.

Increased capital to 153 million baht.

Received investment promotion from The Board of Investment to expanding Dic & Mold
factory

Received investment promotion from The Board of Investment to expanding Auto Bulb
factory.

Completion of new factory for Lighting Equipment (Lamp1)

Increased capital to 175 million baht.

The Company was listed in The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Completion of head office building,

Received investment promotion from The Board of Investment for establishment Research
& Development Center,

Registered transform to The Public Company Limited and increased capital to 274.5
million baht and changed name to Thai Stanley Electric Public Company Limited.
Signed technical assistance agreement with Electro Polymers (PVT.) Lid. In Pakistan to
produce automotive lighting equipment.

Establishment of The Stanley Thailand Foundation registered capital 200,000 baht.
Signed Joint Venture agreement for establishment of Lao Stanley Co..Ltd. In Lao
People’s Democratic Republic,

Completion of expanding Lighting Equipment factory.

Recetved an award for the best organization form Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare,
Participated of equity for Sum Hitechs Co. Ltd. | Sirivit Stanley Co.,Ltd. And Lumax
Industries Limited.

Signed Join Venture agreement of establishment of Top Hightech (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
Increased capital to 383,125 million baht.

Received investment promotion from the Board of Investment to expanding Die & Mold
factory.

Completion of Welfare building.

Completion of new factory for Lighting Equipment for Automobiles (Lamp2).

THAI STAMLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPAMNY LIMITED



Milestone

1996

194949

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

20077

May
October
January
July

May

2001 - 2011

September

September
July

Oclober

May

July

April
May
March
May
July

August

September

March
May

Seplember
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Signed Joint Venture agreement of establishment of Vietnam Stanley Electric Co.,Ltd. In
Hanoi , Vietnam.
Completion of new [actory for Lighting Equipment for Automobiles (Lamp3).

To certified quality system 150 9002 in manufacturer of Automotive Bulb and Die &
Mold.

To certified quality system IS0 2001 in manufacturer of Die & Mold.

Completion of e:-:panﬁnn lactory for Automotive Bulb and Die & Mold. N
signed technical assistance agreement with Unitech Machines Limited in India to produce
Automotive Lighting Equipment.

The completely integrated manufacturer of automotive lighting

QS 9000 Quality System has been acquired for Automotive Bulb and Lighting Equipment
Division.

To certified environmental management 1SO 14001,

Received The Best Performance Award in Industrial category on “SET AWARD 2003™
from The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Completion of new factory in Navanakomn Industrial Estate for Plastic Injection Parts and
Lighting Equipment for vehicle.

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2004” lrom Ministry of Labour

Received The Best Performance Award in Industrial category on “SET AWARD 2004™
form The 5tock Exchange of Thailand.

Recerved “Best Corporate in Social Security Cooperation Award™ from Office of Social
Security , Pathumthani Province.

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Envirenment Award 2005 from Ministry of Labour for the second vear in a row.,

To certified ;]usiiity syslem ISO/TS 16949.
Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2006™ [rom Ministry of Labour for the third year in a row,

Received The Best Performance Award in Industrial category on “SET AWARD 2006™
form The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Received the Copper Trophy for achievement in The National Zero Accident 1,000,000
office hours without accident Campaign from Ministry of Labour for the first year.
Received “An Qutstanding Establishment in the vear 2006 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award™ from Ministrv of Labour.

Completion of Lamp 5 construction new factory for lighting equipment manufacturer for
automobile.

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety . Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2007 from Ministry of Labour for the fourth year in a row.
Received the Copper Trophy for achievement in The National Zero Accident 1,000,000
office hours without accident Campaign from Ministry of Labour for the second yearina
TOW.




Milestone

2008

2000

2010

2011

2012

2013

May

June

August

September

May

August

September

May
July

Seplember

July

Seplember

2012 -2018

June
July

September

March

July

September

Received “The Best Performance Company of Salety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2008 from Ministry of Labour for the fifth year in a row,

Received Best Employer of Pathumthani and Best Employer of Safety in Working Place.
Received The Thai Labour Standard Certified Completion Level (TLS.8001-2003) form
The Department of Labour Protection and Welfare , Mimisiry ol Labour.

Received the Copper Trophy for achievement in The National Zera Accident 1,000,000
office hours without accident Campaign from Ministry of Labour for the third year ina
Tow,

Received “An Outstanding Establishment in the year 2008 [or achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award™ from Ministry of Labour for the third vear in a
row.

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety . Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2009 from Ministry of Labour for the sixth vear in a row.

Received Best Emplover of Pathumthani and Best Emplover of Safety in Working Place.
Received the Copper Trophy [or achievement in The National Zero Accident 1,000,000
office hours without accident Campaign from Ministry of Labour for the fourth yearina
row,

Received “An Quistanding Establishment in the vear 2009 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award” lrom Ministry of Labour for the fourth yearin a
row,

Received Best Employer of Pathumthani and Best Emplover of Safety in Working Place.
Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety ., Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 20107 from Ministry of Labour for the seventh year in a row.
Received “An Outstanding Establishment in the vear 2010 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Wellare Relations Award™ from Ministry of Labour for the [ifth year ina
row.

Received *“The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2011 from Ministry of Labour for the eight year in a row.

Received “An Quistanding Establishment in the yvear 2011 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relatons Award™ from Ministry of Labour for the sixth year n a
TOW.

The maintaining strongly management

Completion Lamp 7 construction new factory for lighting equipment manufacturer for eco
car.

Received *The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2012" from Ministry of Labour for the ninth vear in a row.

Received “An Outstanding Establishment in the vear 2012 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award™ from Ministry of Labour {or the seventh year in a
row.

Received “Skill Development Promotion Award 2012 from Department of Skill
Development, Mimstry of Labour.

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2013" from Ministry of Labour for the tenth year in a row.

Received a certificate of Green Indusiry in level 3 from Pathumthani Industrial OfTice,
Received “An Quistanding Establishment in the year 2013 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Wellare Relations Award” from Ministry of Labour for the eighth yearina
row.

THAI STAMLEY ELECTRIC PUBLIC COMPAMNY LIMITED




Milestone

2013

2014

2015

2016

2018

2019

October
iﬁly
August

July

September

July

September

August

August

September

Received “Waste Management by using 3Rs Award” from Department of Industrial
Works.

Received “The Best Performance ili:c:ump:my of Safci} - '{':'I-':-:upa[iﬂnal Health and ﬁ"urking
Environment Award 2014 from Ministry of Labour for the ¢leventh vear in a row,

Received “An Outstanding Establishment in the year 2014 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award” from Ministry of Labour for the ninth vear in a
row,

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2015 from Ministry of Labour for the twelfth year in a row.
Received “An Outstanding Establishment i the year 20115 for achicvement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award” from Ministry of Labour for the tenth year in a
FOW.

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupational Health and Working
Environment Award 2016™ from Mimstry of Labour for the thirteenth vear in a row,
Received “An Outstanding Establishment in the year 2016 for achievement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award™ from Ministry of Labour for the tenth vear in a
o,

Participated of cquity for Pracharat Rak Samakkee Pathumthani  (Social Enterprise )
Company Limited

The company has won the royal trophy from Her Royal Highness Princess Maha Chakn
Sirindhom  as The Thailand Labour Management Excellence Award 2017 from The
Department of Labor Protection and Welfare , Ministry of Labour for excellent
performance

Received “The Best Performance Company of Safety , Occupatnonal Health and Working
Environment Award 2017 from Ministry of Labour for the fourteenth year in a row.

Received “An QOutstanding Establishment in the yvear 2017 for achicvement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award” (for the twelfth year in a row).” from Mimstry of
Labour .

Received Zero Accident Award 2017 (Gold)

April

August

September

January

Received Excellence Award in ASEAN — OSHNET Award from The ASEAN—
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH NETWORK (ASEAN-OSHNET) at Siem
Reap , Cambodia

Received “The Best Outstanding Modcel Company of Safety . Occupational Health and
Working Environment Award 2018 (for the fiftcenth year in a row).” from Ministry of
Labour ,

The Her Royal Highness Princess Maha Chakn Sinndhorn visited Thar Stanley at Head
Office , Safety Dojo , RD Center and Lamp 7 plant,

Received “An Qutstanding Establishment in the year 2018 for achicvement on Labour
Relations and Welfare Relations Award” (for the thirteenth yvear ina row).” from Ministry
of Labour .

Completion of Lamp 7 extension factory.
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